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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

S 25 4k 22

Increase/
(Decrease)
2021/20225F  2020/20214 &40, (B 4) %

Operating results (HK$’000) &E&%&(FBx)
Revenue LON 120,546 119,441 1,105 0.9
Gross profit EF 69,075 68,793 282 0.4
Loss for the year FENEE (13,105) (36,846) (23,741) (64.4)
Profitability (%) B FIBE (%)
Gross profit margin VRS 57.3 57.6 (0.3) (0.5)
Net profit margin Ay R (10.9) (30.8) 19.9 64.6
Return on equity & 7S (2] 3 2 (4.3) (11.5) 7.2 62.6
Return on total assets BEERRE (1.9) (5.2) 3.3 63.5
Liquidity REBES
Current ratio (time) BN & (£%) 0.3 0.4 0.1) (25.0)
Quick ratio (time) BN R (F) 0.2 0.3 0.1) (33.3)
Inventory turnover (days) HFER#E(RE) 167.9 110.9 57.0 51.4
Trade receivables turnover B PR E RS

(days) (K& 27.4 33.7 6.3) (18.7)
Trade payables turnover H SN FOERE

(days) (RED 68.8 78.9 (10.1) (12.8)
Per share data BREE
Loss per share FiEE

- Basic (HK cents) - EARGEL) (1.09) (2.93) (1.84) (62.8

- Diluted (HK cents) — #5E (BL) (1.09) (2.93) (1.84) (62.8)
Dividend per share BREE

= Interim (HK cents) — FREFCBAIL) - - - -

- Final (HK cents) - REFOBNL) - - - -
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms and expressions shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Audit Committee”

“Board”

“Brand Development and
Management Segment”

“BVI”

“Company”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“Director(s)”

“Fullshare”

“Fullshare Group”

the audit committee of the Company

the board of Directors

the business segment in which the
Group purchases primarily personal
care products from the brand
proprietors and manages and develops
the brand of such products

the British Virgin Islands

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding
Co. Limited, $T4 % B (B ZERAR A
7], an exempted company incorporated
with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 28 October 2010

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules and, in the context of
the Company, means each of Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and Genwealth

the directors of the Company

Fullshare Holdings Limited, 2 3% % %
BRAF], a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability
whose issued shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 607)

Fullshare and its subsidiaries

DEFINITIONS
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DEFINITIONS

B %

“Genwealth”

“GMP”

“Group”

“Healthcare Segment”

“Hin Feng Group”

“Hin Sang Holding”

Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited ({TE R EZERBER AR, a
company incorporated with limited
liability on 5 October 2010 in the BVI,
the issued shares of which are owned
as to 90% by Mr. Pang and 10% by
Mrs. Pang, a controlling shareholder of
the Company under the Listing Rules

“Good Manufacturing Practice” is a
quality assurance approach used by
drug manufacturing industry worldwide
to ensure that products are consistently
produced and controlled according
to appropriate quality standards.
Hong Kong, like most other countries,
has adopted the GMP guidelines
promulgated by the World Health
Organisation (WHO)

the Company and its subsidiaries

the business segment in which the
Group engages in providing Chinese
medical healthcare related services
which targets for mothers and children
in Hong Kong and the PRC

Hin Feng Group (International)
Holding Company Limited #7744 &
(BBR)IZRE B BR 2 7], a joint venture
company established in Hong Kong
on 7 July 2016, owned as to 51% by
the Company and as to 49% by Five
Seasons VIl Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Fullshare)

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited (7
EEEZERAERAA), a company
incorporated with limited liability on 11
September 2006 in the BVI and directly
wholly-owned by the Company

[GMP]
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“Hin Sang Hong (HK)”

uHK$u

“Hong Kong”

“Listing”

3

“Listing Rules’

“Macau”

“Mr. Pang”

“Mrs. Pang”

“Nomination Committee”

“PRC” or “Mainland China”

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited ($74
1TEBR A F]), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 13 June 1996 in
Hong Kong and wholly-owned by Hin
Sang Holding and an indirect subsidiary
of the Company

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency
of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the listing of Shares on the Main Board

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (& 2>47), an executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (BB 5£), the spouse
of Mr. Pang, an executive Director and
a Controlling Shareholder

the nomination committee of the
Company

the People’s Republic of China

the Pre-IPO share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 25
September 2014
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DEFINITIONS

B %

“Product Development
Segment”

“Remuneration
Committee”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme”
“Stock Exchange”

“Tai Wo Tong

Pharmaceutical”

“Trading of Goods
Segment”

“Year”

6 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

the business segment in which the
Group develops own personal care
products, health supplements and
household products sold under its own
brands, including but not limited to “Hin
Sang ($74)”, “Tai Wo Tong (KFIE)”,
“Cheers Smart (T 2£5)”, “Care Plus
(FL+T#)”, “Shuang Long (&%)’ and
“King’s Antiseptic (% & )"

the remuneration committee of the
Company

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company

holder(s) of the Shares

the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 25 September 2014

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong
Kong) Company Limited (A A1 & 51 %%(&
#)EBR A F]), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 6 April 2009 in
Hong Kong

the business segment in which
the Group engages in trading and
distributing skin care products, personal
care products and household products
purchased from various authorised
dealers and independent traders or
directly from suppliers

the year ended 31 March 2022
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Ms. Tian Shanshan (Appointed on 1 December 2021)
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping
(Suspension of duties with effect from 16 June 2020
and retired on 29 September 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit (Chairman)

Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (Chairman)

Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Kho Polien (Appointed on 2 August 2021)
Mr. Wong Chung Him (Resigned on 2 August 2021)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin
Ms. Kwan Lai Man
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Nt

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 12131215, 12/F, Seapower Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

Chak & Associates
Kwok Yih & Chan

AUDITOR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE/REGISTERED OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hinsanggroup.com

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 6893

ENQUIRES

Company:
Email: contact@hinsanggroup.com
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
AR

As at 31 March 2022
202293 A31H

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Company Limited

[ZE= ERARAR

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited

FTEEBIERERAR

100%
HM Advertising Company Limited

Beautymate Hong Kong Limited

100% Hong Kong Pharmaceutical &
Research Institute Co., Limited

EARERRFTERAR

I Hin On International Company Limited

PIRERHRAR

100% Herbal King Company Limited

BEAKXEHRAR

ng Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
( & VARAR

Tai Wo Tong Company Limited
AMEBRAR

Tai Wo Tong Food Factory
Company Limited
AFE R RBGRAS

Hong Kong Medicine Manufactory
Holdings Co., Ltd.
EBNERIERBRAR

100%

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical &
Research Institute Co., Ltd.
EBNENRFERAR

Hin Feng Group (International)
Holding Company Limited
$18 SR E(BRERR B R AR

Hin Sang Children Chinese Medical &
Health Service Company Limited
IR ERERREROBRRAR

100%

Hin Feng Investment
(NanJing) Co., Ltd.*
PTEREEFARAR

100%

NanJing Hin Sang Animation

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

FIEITERAR

VitaNu (Canada) Health
cts Limited

ERERBRAR

Cheers Smart International
(Hong Kong) Company Limited

TEEEHERARAR

Hin Sang Holding Group
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
PR S BORINERAR

Hin Tai Pharmaceutical
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
IERBER ORI ERAR)

Hin Yat Commercial (Shenzhen)
Company Limited*
Frimm B ORNERAR

Hin Hong Medical Management
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
FIRBEREIE(RYINBRAR

100%

Hin Fai International Holding
Company Limited

PIEEFR A ERAR

Hin Fai Hong Company Limited

PIBTTRRAR

Hin Fai Electronic Commerce
nzhen) Company Limited*
Frats R BERAR

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Hin Yat International Company Limited

FTERARAR

Hin On Organic Agriculture
(Guangdong) Company Limited*
PFREHRE(ERE)BRAR

Hin Sang Biomedical Technology
(Guangdong) Company Limited*
PIEEMEEERERAR

Hin Sang Analysis & Testing
Company Limited*

ERARAR

Hin Sang Health and Medical
(Guangdong) Company Limited*
I fRREE(ER)FRAR

Hongsheng Lankuntang
Chinese Medicine Clinic
(Guangdong) Company Limited*
REMHERELRER)BRAR

Hin Yat Enterprise Brand Management
(Yunfu) Company Limited*
IHRt¥REEE(EDERAR

Love Hong Kong Love Macau Travel

Agency (Yunfu
BB MR

ompany Limited*
SHERAR

70% Production Company Limited*
BRATEENBEXFRRAR
Herbal Family Modern Agriculture
100%

(Guangdong) Company Limited
EARGERAREER)GBRAR

* The English name is for identification only

* B A TEEHRER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EY

MOST IMPORTANTLY, THE GROUP IS
DEDICATED TO NURTURE CHILDREN AND
SINCERELY BELIEVES THAT CHILDREN
ARE THE MOST CHERISHED MEMBER
OF OUR SOCIETY, AND IT IS OUR TOP
PRIORITY TO CARE FOR THEM.

REENR FREFIREBEEFRE ¥HR
RRRERMEBRAYEANKE - ALRMH
EEEBREHEEMmM -

Mr. Pang Siu Hin

HOITRE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FEFTHAEZ

Dear Shareholders: BARE -
On behalf of the board of Directors of Hin Sang Group (International) AN AR KR OTA LB (BRI AR AR E

Holding Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present the =& N HKMBEARMRAIRESAEBAFEE
annual report of the Group for the Year. WEERE o

10 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

ANNUAL REVIEW

The continued and prolonged outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
has adversely impacted the retail and tourism industries in Hong
Kong. Undoubtedly, the Group is facing a more challenging
environment during these few years. Though there were numerous
factors affecting the Group’s performance this year, we were still
able to maintain a substantial market share in the children healthcare
products sector.

The Group has also constructed a production plant for manufacturing
health supplements in Yunfu City of the Guangdong Province, the
PRC, aiming to reduce the product cost by self-manufacturing rather
than Original Equipment Manufacturer (*OEM”) to outside supplier,
increase the efficiency and attain more stringent quality control on its
own brand products.

The Group has laid a strong foundation for a long term development
in the healthcare segment. Notwithstanding the highly competitive
market condition, the Group believes that this segment is a niche
market and in the long run, it will generate sustainable revenue
and bring in value for the Group. Most importantly, the Group is
dedicated to nurture children and sincerely believes that children are
the most cherished member of our society, and it is our top priority
to care for them.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$120.5 million, representing an increase of approximately 0.9%
from HK$119.4 million for the last year. The Group recorded a net
loss of approximately HK$13.1 million, representing a significant
decrease of approximately 64.4% from HK$36.8 million for the last
year.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year.

xR WoE

FEORE

FELRRH2019ERFSRBEHTENT
EXNIRBEREEXNTNFZE - S EEMA -
AEBEMBRATFEEELBENR
B-BEAFEEZERARFZEANKEN
KB RADERESRAERBRITE
BENTISME

AEETCRPREEREE FmEEREE
BEHEAMZEERE  BNEEBBE
A E (M IRE B R AR EM K (TOEM]) 1K 5
ShER L FE R R IR A ERA - IBRMEUAR
HERMHEEREREBR 2 EEEH

AEEDRREDBNERERREERE
Ef - @BEMBHFT0HR - AEEHE
B BERASHENLEBSBEAMS
BAREBTRAKERANER - &E
B AKREFNRBERE YAR
RRZAERHERA/ZHEMKE » AR
PiEE B EHRBEEAMF -

FEXE

AEE  AEEZRRALHAE120588
BT REFEMI19.48 8B T IMNY
0.9% - NEESSEEFENISIEEB
L R EFEMI36.8FEB T AR L
64.4% o

iz =

EEETTRBRNAFRE RIS °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EY R 8

PROSPECTS

Despite difficult market conditions, the Board believes that “Hin
Sang ($T74)” has been well positioned and able to meet the growing
demand for high-quality healthcare supplements from consumers
in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. Therefore, the Group has
stepped up its efforts to expand in the Mainland China market and
has launched a variety of new products including the Bei Er series. To
cope with the upcoming challenges and seize future opportunities,
the Group will continue to remain prudent and implement the
following strategies to create value for our Shareholders:

(a) Actively expanding the business of integrating
production and industrial sightseeing tourism

The Group is actively expanding Yunfu Health Medical Industrial
Park* (B #1074 EFEE & EXE) as an international first-rate
key project of integrating health food for women and children,
health care and medical equipment and industrial sightseeing
tourism to capture this fast-growing health preservation market
to meet the different nutritional and healthy living needs of
Chinese people. People have been in the quest for health and
longevity since ancient times. In Chinese history, Peng Zu (&
#8), a famous the god of longevity, had lived more than 800
years old. Proficient in various health regimens, Peng Zu was
recognized as the ancestor of Chinese health preservation
practices by future generations. The Group will expand the
Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion, a service center based on Pengzu
TCM health preservation techniques, to provide overall
conditioning for the human body. In addition, the Group is
committed to upholding Pengzu’s health preservation values to
develop the industrial tourism business and expand industrial
park tourism as main resources based on the entire enterprise
or industrial park. Integrated with the surrounding environment
and other tourism resources, the Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion
will be developed into an industrial tourism that covers
comprehensive tourism areas, such as sightseeing, leisure and
Southern Medicine Science Popularization Base (R &R & &
). During the Year, the Industrial Park was duly recognised
by the Ministry of Culture and Tourism of the People’s Republic
of China as the first National 3A Tourist Attraction in Yunfu
City. The Industrial Park is not only a production plant and
research and development centre of the Group, producing
high-quality health care products and food that meet the Good
Manufacturing Practice (GMP) requirements, but also a national
tourist attraction to promote the health preservation culture and
medicine and food homology.

RE

BEEMNER  EFSRRIMTEIEHETE
fdeemeBdERTEAMEELEHEE
BEMATMADERNTR - Qi - K&
EmAhEERPEAMLTS  SHERE
RENEZ R M o BEEENR 2 KAk
BMLESROKE  NEEEEERS
BEREEZH GBI MR RREA
EEE

(a) BRAIRESEEETEEX
MRS — B8 2 X5

AREEERBITERFOT AR RS
EXEFERER-RANEHRER
an TN B RIS N T RE
IR EEIA B AR RERIER 2
BEMS > BARBATRNEEM
ELERK RERSEAMAS
AR -« EHBEES - pLEL
BEUZEENBE -ZH METN
BZmR - ARZEBRSERLEMN
FIABEBRESERBRTEREMZ
e REBRBARZHEITESE = —
RAZEPERERMAER 2 RE
L B ABBETTERE IR o LS
REBB NN EERZEBEUL - B
RIFXBCKERS  REXQE
RERABBEERITERESEE
BR RABE2REMEMKESR
R B ETERRERAEBEL
KBS - AR EEMEIENGEAE
REEN—BTRIKERL - RAF
B TRXERFTEARLME M
IR R IE AR E R EF T & B Z3A
AmEsR TXRETE/SAREL
ENGRFEEMRE(GMP)ZRNE
BRBERNMRMANEERFE &%
L TAKEEENERERRIR
MBI R R o
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(b)

(c)

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Developing new products and brands for anti-
epidemic disinfection

In response to the continuous outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
and the recent 5th outbreak involving the Omicron variant in
Hong Kong, the Group cooperated with a number of research
institutions to launch anti-epidemic products. The new product
has been well received in the market after launch and further
enhanced the portfolio of our own brand products.

To build a factory for self-owned brand
production of health supplements and also
equipped with original design manufacturers
(“ODM”) and original equipment manufacturers
(“OEM?”) production methods in Yunfu City,
Guangdong Province, China

As part of the Group’s plan to enhance the production
efficiency of its own brand products to capture future
opportunities, the Group has developed a production plant for
health supplements in Yunfu City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC, aiming to reduce production costs, improve efficiency
and implement stricter quality control of its own branded
healthcare products by not only self-production but also
ODM and non-traditional single OEM outsourcing to outside
suppliers. The Yunfu Health Medical Industrial Park* has been
formally put into production, integrating planting, production,
cultural tourism, health care, and sales. It is believed that it will
bring considerable revenue to the Group.

(b) BABEETHRIBHEE

(c)

X ek

REFHE
an & am &

EHEFEN2019B MBS RIERES
STHRS R Omicron® 2IKM E K&
B AEEEZEFEEESIEHED
PEER- - HEMLEMEBERZTISE
0 E—TRARNEEERDBEE®M
A -

RABEREESFHHEERE
HrxmBEmBEERER

BERBRFTEK(ODM])
R RRRERR(OEM) £ E
FRZBE

EAAEEFERSEERMEER
B A EE R AR IR R 2R HGB AT 81
—2n  AEBMERPHEEREEF
MEEREBARIEERE - LUE
BEEMEEENRREFHEODMKIE
BHE—OEMINAI FHNERLFER 2 &
EFRBEEEKRS  REBERY
EXmEREERBEEEBRECEE
THl c EETARRBEEXEE S
ARAEE  &£&EE - £E XK
RE HER B HEgRAKHE
R AT BRI o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EY R 8

(d) Expanding sales opportunities in overseas
markets

As Hong Kong’s business matures, the Group also plans to
expand overseas markets in addition to actively entering the
Chinese market. At present, the Group’s products are prepared
to be exported to Australia and many countries in Southeast
Asia, including Malaysia and Singapore. The Group will also
expand sales network and recruit related teams in line with the
future development, hoping to increase its overall turnover and
profit from 2022 onward.

(e) The Group will further expand cross-border e-commerce
and explore international overseas e-commerce for its own
brand products, in order to increase the Group’s turnover and
contribute to its profit.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
members of the board of Directors, management and employees
for their valuable contributions to the development of the Group as
well as to our Shareholders, investors and business partners for
their continuous trust and support to our Group. We believe the year
ahead will be full of opportunities and challenges. Hin Sang Group
(International) Holding Co. Ltd. will continue to make effort to create
greater values for our Shareholders and investors.

*

For illustration purpose only

Yours faithfully
Pang Siu Hin
Chairman

28 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (§74)” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumers’ trend, the Group
continues to expand the e-commerce business through electronic
platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase profit,
the Group also trades in personal care and slimming products
of reputable brands. It is also developing its business in Chinese
medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment services
projects.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately HK$120.5
million, representing an increase of approximately 0.9% as compared
to the Group’s revenue of approximately HK$119.4 million for the
last year. The Group has four business segments classified by their
ownership, licensing rights and services rendered. During the Year,
the Product Development Segment, selling the Group’s own brand
products, was still the largest segment of the Group which contributed
approximately 97.3% (2021: 97.1%) of the Group’s revenue. On the
other hand, the revenue contribution from the Brand Development
and Management Segment fell from approximately 1.7% of the total
revenue for the last year to approximately 1.1% of the total revenue
for the Year. The Trading of Goods Segment recorded approximately
0.3% for the Year (2021: 0.4%). The Healthcare Segment accounted
for only approximately 1.3% (2021: 0.8%) of the Group’s total
revenue for the Year.

The Group’s business operations are mainly based in Hong Kong,
though its products are distributed through distributors appointed in
the Mainland China and Macau. Revenue generated from the Hong
Kong market for the Year recorded approximately HK$72.4 million
(2021: HK$64.0 million), representing approximately 60.1% of the
total revenue for the Year (2021: 53.6%). On the other hand, revenue
generated from the Mainland China market for the Year recorded
approximately HK$48.1 million (2021: HK$55.4 million), representing
approximately 39.9% of the total revenue for the Year (2021: 46.4%).
The revenue generated from sales in Hong Kong increased due to
the launch of COVID-19 antigen rapid testing kit during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P o e K o B

Product Development Segment

Under the Product Development Segment, the Group develops and
sells healthcare products, personal care products and household
products under its own brand names, mainly being “Hin Sang ($74E)”,
“Tai Wo Tong (KFE)”, “Cheers Smart (T E£5)”, “Care Plus (fL+
M%)’ “Shuang Long (88)” and “King’s Antiseptic GRE T )”. The
Group started developing the “Hin Sang ($74E)” brand in 2004 mainly
for its health supplements. “Tai Wo Tong (KF1E)” was developed in
2012 mainly for the Group’s proprietary Chinese medicine category.
With a view to further enhancing brand recognition of the Group’s
own brand products, the Group launched several products during
the Year, including but not limited to “Care Plus Rapid Testing Kit
— Nasal Swab (F.+1 & 5 7 PR AIFHEE)”, “Hin Sang Lung
Clearing Tea ($TEEIE/EM A £)”, “Hin Sang Kids Appetite Support
(Granules) ((TEEREEZ N HHE))”, “Hin Sang Kids Cough Care
(Granules) ($THEE R ZEREAHAE))” and “Peng Zu Yan Sheng
AlcoEasy Essence (18074 SEIE & HE AR EE)”,

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$117.3 million for
the Year, represented an increase of approximately 1.1% comparing
to a segment revenue of approximately HK$116.0 million for the last
year. This segment’s profit for the Year was approximately HK$0.8
million, comparing to the segment loss of approximately HK$16.8
million for the last year. This segment’s profit margin for the Year
was approximately 0.7% while the loss margin for the last year was
approximately 14.5%. Despite the adverse impact by COVID-19
pandemic on the retail and tourism industries in Hong Kong, the
revenue of this segment slightly increased, mainly due to the launch
of COVID-19 antigen rapid testing kit during the Year.

Brand Development and Management Segment

The Group has a proven history of managing and developing
a number of brands for its brand proprietors (who are mainly
manufacturers and brand proprietors of the products) in respect of
their personal care products mainly in the Hong Kong market since
1999. The Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement
with each of the brand proprietors and provided them with one-stop
marketing, sales and distribution, logistic and delivery services for
their branded products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Amongst the products managed and developed by the Group for
the brand proprietors, the major brands are “Pahmi (£3F)”, “Enear
()", “Venic (FEHFR)”, “Zici ()" and “Sunew (F3%7)”. The
revenue of this segment was approximately HK$1.3 million for the
Year, represented a decrease of approximately 31.6% comparing
to a segment revenue of approximately HK$2.0 million for the last
year. The segment profit also decreased by approximately 58.0%
from approximately HK$293,000 for the last year to approximately
HK$123,000 for the Year. Such decrease was mainly due to the
shift of focus by the management of the Group to the Product
Development Segment during the Year in order to enhance the brand

image of the Group’s own-branded products.

Trading of Goods Segment

The Group has served its trade customers with high quality products
sourced from authorised dealers and overseas suppliers. Products
within this segment with low profit margin will be phased out, and
more resources will be put into the Product Development Segment
which is expected to yield higher profit margin.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$310,000 for the
Year, comparing to approximately HK$489,000 for the last year and
it accounted for approximately 0.3% (2021: 0.4%) of the Group’s
revenue for the Year. The decrease in revenue of this segment was
mainly attributable to the shift of focus by the management of the
Group to the Product Development Segment during the Year.

Healthcare Segment

The Healthcare Segment provides different types of healthcare
related services and products in Hong Kong and the Mainland China
for mothers and children by establishment of clinics with medical
treatment and consultation by experienced Chinese physician who
specialised in Chinese medical healthcare.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$1.6 million
(2021: HK$1.0 million) and it accounted for approximately 1.3%
(2021: 0.8%) of the Group’s revenue for the Year. While the clinic in
Hong Kong ceased operation since October 2021, the revenue in
this segment still increased, mainly because of the newly established
clinic in Yunfu City of the Guangdong Province, the PRC during the
Year. The segment loss decreased by approximately 27.5% from
approximately HK$4.4 million for the last year to approximately
HK$3.2 million for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P o e K o B

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had a total of 262 staff as at 31 March 2022 (2021: 310).
The employees of the Group are on fixed salary, sales commission
individually and year-end discretionary performance bonus. The
Group has devised an assessment system for its employees
and the Group uses the assessment result for salary review and
promotion decisions. All of the employees undergo a performance
appraisal once a year. Such an appraisal provides the Group with
an opportunity to assess each individual employee’s strengths and
areas for improvement, thereby enabling the Group to effectively train
and develop each individual employee. A Share Option Scheme was
adopted in September 2014 to recognise and acknowledge those
employees who have made contribution to the Group.

PROSPECTS

The Group is confident that Hong Kong market can still provide a
stable platform for its business to expand. The Group continues
its effort in new product development in order to enrich health
supplements portfolio and enhance the brand image as being a
specialist in providing health supplements. The Group ensures that
only those products with high sales volume potential should be
retained in its product portfolio. At the same time, the Group will also
focus on the development of the Mainland China market, especially
in the health supplement market for children. The Group believes that
this market will be greatly benefited by the launch of China’s “three-
child” policy. To seize this opportunity, the Group will continue to
expand its distribution network by recruiting additional distributors
and put more resources to promote corporate image in order to
expand its customer base.

The Group has outlined the following strategies for its future business
development, with caution but aim to creating values for the
Shareholders:

(@) To continue enhancing brand recognition of
the Group’s own brands

The Group has developed the “Hin Sang ($74)” brand into
a well-recognised brand in Hong Kong through an effective
targeted advertising program which is well-positioned
emphasising on product safety and quality.
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(b)

(c)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continued focusing on and applying its brand
strategies of multichannel marketing and diverse product
portfolios. The Group adopted a market oriented research
and product development strategy to meet evolving customer
demands and needs while achieving rapid growth. The Group’s
new product development initiative for the coming year will
focus on developing more products in mother and children
health supplements in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

To expand the manufacturing arm of the Group

As part of the Group’s plan to enhance the production
efficiency of its own brand products in order to capture future
opportunities, the Group has developed a production plant
for manufacturing health supplements in Yunfu City of the
Guangdong Province, the PRC, aiming to reduce the product
cost by self-production rather than Original Equipment
Manufacturer (“OEM”) to outside supplier, and increase
efficiency and attaining more stringent quality control on its own
brand healthcare products.

To expand e-commerce for own-branded
products

The Group will continue to enhance its e-commerce platform
which focus on online sales of the products under “Hin Sang
(£74)”, through which customers, particularly those in the
Mainland China can place orders online and enjoy home
delivery services. Due to the gradual popularity of online
shopping, especially in the Mainland China market, revenue
from e-commerce platforms accounted for approximately
HK$29.3 million (2021: HK$34.9 million) of the Group’s total
revenue for the Year. The Group will continue to introduce
more high quality health supplements on the online platforms to
expand our product portfolio and market scale.

(b)

(c)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P o e K o B

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$120.5 million for the
Year as compared to HK$119.4 million for the last year, representing
a slight increase of approximately 0.9%, which was mainly due to
the increase in its sales of products under the Product Development
Segment.

During the Year, the revenue generated from the Product
Development Segment increased by approximately HK$1.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 1.1% as compared to
last year. The revenue generated from the Brand Development and
Management Segment decreased by approximately HK$0.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 31.6% as compared to
last year. Revenue generated from Trading of Goods Segment was
approximately HK$310,000 for the Year, comparing to approximately
HK$489,000 for the last year. Revenue generated from the
Healthcare Segment was approximately HK$1.6 million for the Year,
comparing to approximately HK$1.0 million for the last year.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales increased by approximately 1.6% from
approximately HK$50.6 million for the last year to approximately
HK$51.5 million for the Year. The reason for the increase was
primarily due to the increase in the cost of sales under the Product
Development Segment as compared to last year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased slightly by approximately 0.4%
from approximately HK$68.8 million for the last year to approximately
HK$69.1 million for the Year. The gross profit margin for the Year
decreased slightly from 57.6% to 57.3%, which was mainly resulted
from the decrease in sales of higher profit margin products from the
Product Development Segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income

The Group’s other income increased from approximately HK$3.9
million for the last year to approximately HK$7.2 million for the
Year, which was mainly due to increase in government grants from
approximately HK$2.7 million for the last year to approximately
HK$4.9 million for the Year and increase in rental income from
approximately HK$0.2 million for the last year to approximately
HK$0.8 million for the Year.

Other Gains and Losses

The Group recorded other gains of approximately HK$10.1 million
for the Year (2021: other losses of HK$357,000). It was mainly
attributable to gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale of
approximately HK$8.2 million (2021: Nil).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately 37.6%
from approximately HK$11.0 million for the last year to approximately
HK$6.8 million for the Year. Such decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was attributable to the decrease in advertising expenses
in Hong Kong due to the change of the Group’s marketing and
advertising strategy by conducting more online marketing and
advertising rather than on TV media in Hong Kong.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$8.9
million or 10.3% from approximately HK$87.0 million for the last
year to approximately HK$78.1 million for the Year, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in staff costs from approximately
HK$29.8 million for the last year to approximately HK$25.2 million for
the Year.

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge increased from approximately HK$174,000
for the last year to approximately HK$1.7 million for the Year.
The increase in income tax expense was due to the increase in
assessable profits of the Group in Hong Kong for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P o e K o B

Loss for the Year

During the Year, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$13.1 million for the Year compared to a net loss of approximately
HK$36.8 million for the last year.

Other Comprehensive (Expense)/Income

The Group recorded other comprehensive expense of approximately
HK$4.7 million for the Year, as compared to other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$19.2 million for the last year. Such
change was mainly attributable to fair value loss on financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$10.1 million (2021: fair value gain of approximately HK$7.4
million).

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

During the Year, the Group held certain investments for medium to
long term purpose, and it represented investment in two listed equity
securities and one unlisted equity security which are stated at fair
value.

The first listed equity security represents 118,765,000 shares in
Fullshare (stock code: 607), and there was no acquisition or disposal
of the shares of Fullshare during the Year. Fullshare is principally
engaged in property, tourism, investment and financial services,
healthcare and education and new energy businesses. As at 31
March 2022, the carrying amount of these shares amounted to
approximately HK$13.8 million (2021: HK$19.8 million), with the fair
value loss of approximately HK$6.0 million was recognised as other
comprehensive expense for the Year, and these shares represented
approximately 0.6% of the issued ordinary shares of Fullshare as at
31 March 2022. The carrying amount of these shares represented
approximately 2.0% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March
2022.

FREE

WA AR E AT E B FERY
1BAEBATT - MR A F5R36.8E
BET -

Hitp2mE (530, IWA

REBRAFEHSEMBEREZN47H
BEL MEAFHESEMEENREL19.2
BEBT ZEHETEZHNRAFETA
Hth2EAKEmeREEN QA FEEBEL
10.1B&BT(2021F : AFERELN7.48
BAETT) e

BAVESAHEMZERANE
MEE

RAEE  AEEFAEFPRINE TR
B REREREMELMERAERK—
EREMEAEFEFNRE  HRAFEA
E\E o

F—E FTRAESE118,765,0000% L 5%
(B RSE : 607) 8k » RAFEIEE A
FHELERRD LRITEREEHE -
R RERSBRE  BERHEUK
FTREIR TS - 202293 A31H @ ZER MK
WEREEAA13.88 &8 7T(20214F : 19.8
BEEL)  ARAFEEHAFEBELY
BOEBATHRAAEMEAMY - B%ZE
PR L e A 2022F3 A1 HE HITE B
M470.6% - ZERMHHERBAGASEER
2022 3HA31 AR EELERLI2.0% °

22 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The second listed equity security represents 45,411,600 shares
in Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (“Nanjing Sinolife”)
(stock code: 3332). There was no acquisition or disposal of this
investment during the Year. Nanjing Sinolife is principally engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of nutritional supplements and the
trading of packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and
New Zealand. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of these
shares amounted to approximately HK$5.0 million (2021: HK$8.9
million), with the fair value loss of approximately HK$3.9 million was
recognised as other comprehensive expense for the Year, and these
shares represented approximately 16.7% and 4.8% of the issued
H shares and the total issued ordinary shares of Nanjing Sinolife
respectively as at 31 March 2022. The carrying amount of these
shares represented approximately 0.7% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 March 2022.

The fair value of these securities as at the date of this report was
approximately HK$20.7 million.

The unlisted equity security represents 10% equity interest in Hin
Hong Homologous (Guangdong) Brand Management Company
Limited* (PTERRAR(ZER)mEEZEBRAF) (“Hin Hong”), a
company incorporated in the PRC in January 2022. Hin Hong
opened chain stores in the name of “Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion*
(ZHESTEEE)” in the PRC, exclusively selling products supplied
by the Group. As at 31 March 2022, the fair value of these shares
amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million. The former proposed
name of Hin Hong is Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion (Guangdong) Brand
Management Company Limited* (2 E{TEEE(BR)mEEEA R A
A]). For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
29 December 2021.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories increased by approximately 35.7% from
approximately HK$20.1 million as at 31 March 2021 to approximately
HK$27.3 million as at 31 March 2022, which was primarily due to
the increase in finished products for distribution by approximately
56.5% from approximately HK$13.6 million as at 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$21.3 million as at 31 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o P o e K o B

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss — Held for Trading

The Group held two listed equity securities for short term trading
purpose and they are stated at fair value. They include 13,710,000
shares in Nanjing Sinolife and 200,000 shares in Mansion
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8456). As at 31 March
2022, the carrying amount of equity securities held for trading
amounted to approximately HK$1.6 million and represented
approximately 0.2% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March
2022. The fair value of these securities as at the date of this report
was approximately HK$2.2 million.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables increased by approximately
116.8% from approximately HK$5.7 million as at 31 March 2021
to approximately HK$12.4 million as at 31 March 2022, which
was primarily attributable to the increase in trade receivables from
customers arising from the purchase of healthcare products of the
Product Development Segment.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables increased by approximately 58.7% from
approximately HK$7.5 million as at 31 March 2021 to approximately
HK$11.9 million as at 31 March 2022.

Liquidity, Gearing Ratio and Capital Structure

The Group’s bank balances and cash were mainly denominated in
HKD and RMB. The bank balances decreased by approximately
4.9% from approximately HK$15.1 million as at 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$14.4 million as at 31 March 2022. As at 31 March
2022, the amount of Group’s outstanding bank borrowings was
approximately HK$318.6 million (2021: HK$336.8 million); and the
amount of unutilised banking facilities was approximately HK$48.1
million (2021: HK$63.2 million). The gearing ratio (total debts divided
by total equity) as at 31 March 2022 was 1.1 (2021: 1.1). The current
ratio (total current assets divided by total current liabilities) as at 31
March 2022 was 0.3 (2021: 0.4).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2022, the Directors were not aware of any significant
events that would have resulted in material contingent liabilities of the
Group.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying value of the assets of the Group
that were pledged in favor of banks was approximately HK$530.6
million (2021: HK$527.2 million).

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any capital
commitment in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (2021: HK$744,000).

Financial Management and Policy

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. The Group’s entire financing and treasury activities are
centrally managed and controlled. Implementation of the Group’s
related policies is made under collective but extensive considerations
on liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate risk. The executive
Directors, with the assistance of the Group’s financial controller, are
responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and analysing the
investment opportunities of the Group. The executive Directors also
regularly monitor the cash position and funding requirements of the
Group.

Significant Investment Held, Major Acquisition and
Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures by the Group
during the Year.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no specific plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ko AR B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, MH (£ 2 17), aged 57, was appointed in
October 2010 as an executive Director. He is the founder of
the Group and has been the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group since 1996. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning, formulation of the corporate policies and the
day-to-day management of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pang has over 25 years
of experience in the distribution, marketing and sale of healthcare
products, personal care products and household products, the
experience of which was gained from the operation of the Group.
Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce since 2005, the honourable president of The
Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Limited (&F/&{t 4
A E & B R A F) in 2008, the honourable chairman of the Hong
Kong Chinese Medicine Industry Association Limited (& i %5 % 17
@ FR/AT]) in 2009. Mr. Pang was appointed as the vice president
of Hong Kong & Kowloon Kit Yeung Clansmen General Association
Limited (A& N 3EBE R ML BRAF]) in 2009, the executive
vice president in 2013 and became perpetual honourable president
in 2017. Since 2009, Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Chiu
Chow Clansmen’s Association of Yuen Long District, Limited (JTRA
1% 8N [B 48 € B[R A 7)), the vice president in 2011 and became the
chairman in 2017. In 2010, he became the life honorary chairman
of Hong Kong Listed Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association
(BARYIPEHE), and titled as the advisor in 2016. In 2018,
Mr. Peng was awarded as honoraries and commendations by the
Medal of Honor (MH) by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Pang was awarded Honorary Fellow (FPVCB (Hon)) by
The Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector
in 2019. Mr. Pang was appointed as honorary advisor by Social
Enterprise Research Academy in 2020.

HITES

WOLTRE  REHE - 575% © H2010F
10 BZEANTES - FAAEEZE
WA B1996FB—HAAREBZFFER
THEH - FaEBREBRERE - FIF7A
AIBREUARAEEZAEEE - B AX
REIZRMBABINES - ZLENRE
Em AAZEREREREERZIOHE -
MEHEREETERER25FLR - %
ERHBRERNEEEE - ZhEB2005
FHREZTAFTSHMNEETSE - 72008
FRZEREAECEMRAZEHEER LA
HESR  R2009FELZ T AEBBPEE
BEAERRABEER - ZELAEN2000F
BETAREANEBERBERSHRA A
Blgk  R2013FKRATHAER IR
2017 RKEZEGRE - B2009%F
BEAEEZTATHERBMNBELSER
NFEE > WHR20MMERABRITE - IR
2017 AEE - 7£2010F + WEZE
AEARITEHekREESR IR
2016 K AFAM - BR20184F » itk
HABEBHATHREER BRI REE
ATHERBETZ (LEFE) - R2019F -
CEEERBHETSETIETEPLEREE
BT LSEAT - 2020 - ZhERET S
MR T AL EEEM -

26 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pang is an active participant in the work of charities, appointed
as the director of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong from 2009 to 2011,
the vice chairman since 2012, the chairman since 2017, and became
the perpetual adviser since 2018. Mr Pang was awarded MH in 2018
for his dedicated community service, particularly his contributions to
the work of Pok Oi Hospital. He worked as the honourable president
of Junior Police Call (Yuen Long District) since 2010, a member of
the standing committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Jieyang City, the PRC, a member of Yuen Long Town
Area Committee under the Home Affairs Department in 2012, a
member of the Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education
under the Home Affairs Department in 2014, the honourable
president of Yuen Long District Healthy City Association Limited in
2017, and the standing vice president of the1st session of Friendship
Association of the Political Consultative Conference (Hong Kong
Provincial Committee) in Jieyang in 2018.

Moreover, Mr. Pang became the co-chairman of New Territories
Walk for Millions Organizing Committee of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong (B8 A% %) since 2014 and appointed as the chairman
in 2017. He was titled as the vice president of Shenzhen Enterprise
Confederation (FIIT{EEEA ) in 2015, and the executive vice
president of Tin Yan Charity Organization (K& &% LX) and the
honourable president of Shen Kong Jiexi Chamber of Commerce
Limited (/& BAAEE AR A7) in 2016. In 2017, Mr. Pang was
appointed as the honourable advisor of Hong Kong Children, Babies,
Maternity Industries Association Limited (B8 LB £ HEER
7~ a]), the honourable president of the management committee in
Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation Limited (B8 & /D&
Z=H4$2HMR A7) and the vice president of the Jiangsu Province
Reflecting Health Industry Association (L& & X AHREITEH )
and president of its children’s health preservation branch. He is also
the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association
focusing on the development of education work in the PRC since
2010. Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
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Ko AR B

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (B8EX), aged 50, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Kwan is a founder of the Group
and has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1996. She
is responsible for supervising the Group’s business operations.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She
has over 30 years of experience in the distribution, marketing and
sale of healthcare products, personal care products and household
products, the experience of which was gained from the operation of
the Group. She is also devoted in the development of education work
in PRC and is the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education
Fund Association since 2010. In 2017, she is appointed as the
vice president of Hong Kong Children, Babies, Maternity Industries
Association Limited (&2 L E ¥ & B A F]). She is appointed
as the member of Committee for Yun Fu City of the People’s Palitical
Consultative Conference in 2018 and appointed the Director of board
of directors of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong since 2018. Ms. Kwan
Lai Man is the wife of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (E£1), aged 61, was appointed in November
2010 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Wong has more than 35 years
of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing. She received
a bachelor’s degree in arts from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1983 and a diploma in Accounting and Finance from
the London School of Economics and Political Science, University
of London in the United Kingdom in July 1985. Ms. Wong was
registered as a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in June 1991 and an associate of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April 1990. She has
worked for more than seven years in major international accounting
firms and major local accounting firms before she set up her own
accounting firm, W. L. Wong & Co., in Hong Kong in 1993. Since
then, she has been practising as a Certified Public Accountant. Ms.
Wong is an independent non-executive director and the chairperson
of the audit committee of two Hong Kong listed companies, namely,
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock code:
3608) and Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3366). Ms. Wong was an independent non-executive director
of AVIC International Holdings Limited (the shares of which were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code:
161 and had been voluntarily withdrawn from listing with effect
from 17 April 2020). Ms. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (stock
code: 527) and resigned on 31 January 2019. She was an executive
director of Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously
known as JC Group Holdings Limited) (GEM stock code: 8326) and
resigned on 18 October 2016. She was also an independent non-
executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (GEM stock code:
8059) and resigned on 22 March 2016.
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Ms. Tian Shanshan (H #t#t), aged 38, was appointed in December
2021 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Tian has over 10 years of
experience in investment management and company secretarial
practice. She obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in English from the
Foreign Language Institute of Southeast University in 2004, a Master
of Economics degree in Industrial Economics from the School of
Economics and Management of Southeast University in 2009, and
a Master of Corporate Governance from Hong Kong Metropolitan
University in 2022. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). From July 2009 to April 2011,
Ms. Tian worked at Changzhou Future Land Wanbo Property Co.,
Ltd.* (M F BB E 2GR A 7)) for business planning. She was
the investment manager of Nanjing Jiangong Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd* FARETEZXEEAR AT from April 2011 to December
2013. She is currently a director of Nanjing Xingfang Enterprise
Management Company Limited* (FA = £ 7 1 ¥ E 2 AR A Al). Since
December 2013, Ms. Tian has served as the deputy investment
director and investment director and currently serves as president
assistant of Fullshare Holdings Limited (Stock code: 00607), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Fullshare Holdings Limited is a substantial shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Kit (2] & ), aged 77, was appointed in October 2017
as an independent non-executive Director. He retired from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”)
in December 2000 after more than 35 years’ of service. Among
the senior positions he held in HSBC, he was the assistant general
manager and head of Personal Banking Hong Kong and assistant
general manager and head of strategic implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
(the “Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s executive
committee (from January 1999 to December 2000) and is currently
the honorary advisor of the Institute’s executive committee. He
served as a member of a number of committees appointed by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administration Region, including
the Advisory Council on the Environment (from October 1998 to
December 2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to
May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January 2000
to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation Fund
Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation
and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting Committee
(from January 2000 to December 2004) and the Law Reform
Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee (from February 1990 to March
2006). He also served as the chairman of Business Environment
Council Limited (from September 1998 to December 2001).
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Royale
Home Holdings Limited (formerly known as Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1198), and Leoch International Technology
Limited (stock code: 842). He is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997). He also served as
an independent non-executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509) (from April 2014 to June 2021).
The shares of Royale Home Holdings Limited, Leoch International
Technology Limited, Chinlink International Holdings Limited and
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Z#£3K), aged 64, was appointed in September
2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee has about
30 years of experience in commercial accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Lee became a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in April 2001 and an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1987. He obtained a diploma in business administration from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in July 1983. He has worked in the Stock Exchange for
around 15 years from 1986 to 1993 and from 1997 to 2005, his
duties included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed
companies in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and
processing new listing applications. His last position with the Stock
Exchange was an assistant vice president of the Listing Division. Mr.
Lee was also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5 years
from 2007 to 2012. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-executive
director of Huabao International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336)
since 1 May 2006 and Yee Hop Holdings Limited (stock code: 1662)
since 25 November 2015, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (882 ), aged 53, was appointed
in November 2010 as an independent non-executive Director. Dr.
Tang has about 20 years of experience in the financial and securities
sector. He is the Election Committee Member (Financial Services) of
HKSAR. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business, majoring in
finance from Edith Cowan University, Australia in February 1993 and
holds a PhD. degree in Economics from Renmin University of China
in July 2007. He became a senior associate of the Australian Institute
of Banking and Finance in December 1995 and was appointed as
Hong Kong Chief Analyst by the Finance and Securities Institute of
Renmin University of China in December 2010. He was the non-
executive director of Edvance International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1410) (from November 2016 to May 2021), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also
the chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and
Professional Commentators Limited and the executive committee
member of the Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association. He
is the deputy chairman of The Listed Companies Council, Hong Kong
Chinese Enterprises Association and the vice chairman of the Hong
Kong Girl Guides Region Association. He is a Managing Partner of
Venture Smart Asia Limited since March 2021.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Polien Kho (S8 & #f), aged 39, was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 2 August 2021. Ms. Kho
previously served as the Company Secretary of the Company from
1 July 2017 to 10 July 2020. She is an associate member of both
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She has more than 14 years of
experience in providing company secretarial services to private and
listed companies.

Mr. Wong Chung Him resigned as the Company Secretary of
the Company with effect from 2 August 2021 and Ms. Kho was
appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from the same date.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement of 2 August 2021 for
further details.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheuk Wah Kit (2 #4#), aged 39, is the Assistant Sales
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005 since
graduation. He is responsible for managing the daily operation of
the sales department. In particular, he is responsible for managing
skin care products, personal care products, general food products
as well as Chinese medicine products in Hong Kong and oversea
markets. He graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in science in 2005. Since
then, he has been working at the Group’s sales department and
made valuable contribution to the Group. Mr. Cheuk is familiar with
the Group’s internal operation and external sales strategies. He has
accumulated 16 years of relevant experience.

Mr. Mak Wing Keung (ZK5), aged 55, is the information
technology director of the Group. He joined the Group in May
2004 and is responsible for its network administration and provides
information technology support. He received a certificate of an
advanced diploma in computer studies and in electronic commerce
in the London International College for Further and Higher Education
in June and September 2001 respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, he has worked as a technical support supervisor providing
information technology support, network administration, hardware
and software development in a firm from 2002 to 2004 and has
worked as a supervisor supervising a team of technicians and
servicing personnel from 1993 to 2002 and has accumulated more
than 24 years of relevant experience.
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1) REPORTING BOUNDARIES

This environmental, social and governance report (the “Report”)
describes the environmental, social and governance (ESG)
performance of the Group during the Year from 1 April 2021 to
31 March 2022.

The Report covered the principal business of the Group, namely
the operations for marketing, selling and manufacturing of
healthcare products. The scope of disclosure included the ESG
performance of the following 4 locations which represented the
main operating sites for the aforesaid business:

1) Hong Kong (Tsim Sha Tsui) — head office
2)  Hong Kong (Yuen Long) — warehouse
3) Hong Kong (Shatin) — warehouse

4)  Yunfu, Guangdong Province — manufacturing factory

The Report was prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as
well as the actual situation of the Group.
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2)

36

REPORTING PRINCIPLE

Quantitative: Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules guides the
Group to prepare measurable KPIs for performance review.
Quantitative information presented in the report is accompanied
by narrative, explanation and comparison wherever applicable.
The frequency of publication is once a year.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to
prepare ESG reports and strives to disclose both challenges
and opportunities of ESG issues that the Group experienced
during the Year. Pictures, charts and graphs reflect the actual
performances of the Group, and with appropriate presentation
formats, to avoid misleading.

Consistency: The Group adopts consistent methodologies
and retrieves social and environmental KPIs from the Group’s
internal record system. The Group also regards Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and Appendix 3:
Reporting guidance on Social KPIs to calculate KPIs, so as to
make meaningful comparisons over the years.

Materiality: The Group communicates with different
stakeholders on a regular basis, so to better understand ESG-
related issues that matter the most. Meanwhile, the Group
concerns ESG development outside and within the industry,
trying to align with available global standards as well as
incorporating it into the Group strategic development planning.
During the year, the Group also conducted stakeholder surveys
to identify their expectations on the Group and developed
appropriate strategies to respond to their views and needs.
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In order to better understand the environmental, social and BTRHMTHFOHENRE g

governance awareness and expectations of our stakeholders, REGEBRE KLl hHER
in addition to the above stakeholder communication channels, BREN  AEBRBREFERER
the Group conducted a survey of stakeholders in the reporting MERE  WEBRBBAT=ETRET
year and proceeded the following three steps to prepare and BB

conduct the materiality assessment:

In accordance with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as the framework for materiality

Step 1 assessment, and taking into account factors such as corporate
Identify topics on development strategies, industry trends, regulatory and market
environmental, social and requirements, the stakeholder questionnaire was developed to proceed
governance survey on 18 sustainability topics in four categories: environmental

protection, employment and labour management, operating practices and
community investment.

BREBMIMNIRE  HEREABMERIMERERMHFHHER
£ TiRAAPBEREE  TXBE  EENMTSEXRFRE - fIELHFHN
BAIRE - e NEAEE ENMES  FSRERE - BEASTERE  K2EILRHRKRES
POREBEEITRE @ @5 T18EAFERRNER -

The stakeholders identified as utmost important to the Group are our
customers, suppliers and employees. According to their respective
perceptions and expectations, specific content of the topics was formulated
in their respective questionnaires. The questionnaires were then distributed
to the sampled stakeholders, whose feedback was collected within the
specified time frame.

BRUAEEZSEZNRNE - 2RI RMNER, - HEBKEET

Step 2
Identify stakeholders and
set up questionnaires

EZ?;B parmsmy | FREAEAOHBEME  RTEARSMETEROARNT B
BB ERIIHRENFNE - EETHRAWREMFINRE -
Through statistical analysis of survey feedback from external
stakeholders, and review of the Group’s strategies and the priorities of
Step 3 internal stakeholders, data of both external and internal demands was
Evaluate and identify consolidated for plotting the “ESG Materiality Matrix Diagram”. From the
material topics aforesaid 18 sustainability topics, the ESG material topics of the Group
were identified (in italics text in the table below, as well within the square
in the upper right corner of the matrix diagram).
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3) BOARD STATEMENT 3) EEEE

“The Eternal Extension of Life” is the Group’s motto. The Group [Ep74dm  £ETBE|AEREBRE
adheres to the Group mission to develop health and wellness Hég o AEBEFERHEAZREERZ
products, so as to bring a high-quality and convenient life to Fa REERETKREEERRESE
every family. Also, the Group is committed to promoting a &SN REBEBROIREREER
corporate culture of business integrity and brand based on high FTEFLBUAEME - FEAFANE
quality, continuous innovation and excellence in the kingdom MAERHNELEMmEREX
of brands management, expanding to the whole country from b WBEBREKE  KEZRE2EE
Yunfu supported by Hong Kong. Consequently, policies have & o EUtHIEBERMARRERNREE
been formulated to disclose the Group’s visions to shareholders AEBHTHEBRES

and the public on the followings:

e To devote to society through contribution and services; e [EFEHE  RERELEREE
HARTS

e To pursue continuous improvement in the culture of o  EERXELEZRATENEN
governance;

e To collaborate with business partners and employees by e NURE AT FIEIKHERRE
upholding accountability, faimess, devotion and integrity; [EEHEEBBHREESE

e To dedicate to attaining sustainable development and o ERXAXRKRERIBFMHEBRSARE
achievement for all shareholders and stakeholders; and BERRKR &

e To emphasise on environmental protection. o  ERRIRRE-
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ESG Governance Structure
ESGHREZERE

Board of Directors

Exg

Formulate and manage ESG strategies Conduct risk management on ESG topics
e R EIRESCHRR HESGRBETARER

A 4

Policy Committee

HREES

Report to the Board on material ESG topics

Recommend ESG policies and targets for review and
approval by the Board

MBS ERESCHR SHESGHAR A BUEFREL

A 4

Execution Committee and Factory Steering Groups

7= =
BITEEERTIKRAS A

Organize with Policy Committee to coordinate Coordinate with relevant employees to involve in and

and implement relevant practices fulfill the defined targets

HERESERERPITIEBER A E T2 E R EITATRLA B

The Board will evaluate the potential risks disclosed from
the ESG information, to prioritise the management of the
ESG topics with significant impacts, and formulate effective
preventive and control measures in order to ensure the
sustainable development of the Group, the scope may cover
but not limited to:

o] Enhancement in the environmental protection
characteristics of the equipment and machinery along the
production lines

o  Collaboration with customers and business partners in
the supply chain to explore green technology

o) Wherever feasible, investment in the exploration and
application of renewable energy projects such as system
for photovoltaic generation of electricity

o] Establishment of sustainability targets such as for use of
resources, emission control, etc.
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The Board of Directors will conduct annual evaluation on the
current business challenges and those ESG aspects that need
to be improved and will determine the relevant polices and
measures to be strengthened for continued improvement in the
performance. From the Board’s evaluation in the current year, it
was confirmed that we had overcome the impacts of the novel
coronavirus outbreak and that the Group had strengthened
occupational health and safety measures for employees, as
well as fulfilled our continued commitment on contributing to
the community and people therein.

It is always the Group’s core value for caring the society and
identifying the appropriate means of supporting the vulnerable
communities. In view of the communities suffered from the
novel coronavirus pandemic and limited supply of personal
hygiene products in society, the Group was dedicated to
search and procure anti-epidemic personal hygiene products
across the globe for donating to the needy people through a
wide variety of community organizations in partnership with the
Group.

Furthermore, we believe that the main factors affecting the
Group’s ESG performance in the coming year would be
geopolitical disputes, as well as global economic downturn
and supply chain strain incurred by the novel coronavirus
pandemic. Consequently, the Group aims to raise products’
competitiveness, particularly on fulfillment of the market trend
for pursuing environmental protection characteristics and the
enhanced performance on energy efficiency and emission
reduction. Moreover, we need to reinforce the partnership with
suppliers of core materials for establishment of reliable and
stable supply of materials, as well as maximizing environmental
protection characteristics during procurement of equipment
and setting-up of production lines. On the other hand, in view
of the environmental and other compliance risks posed by the
global response to climate change, the Board will formulate
relevant policies or targets and regularly review progress and
performance to align with the Group’s sustainable development
direction.
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4) COMMUNITY SERVICE

By connecting with the community, the Group is striving to instill
hope and provide support to the disadvantaged and contribute
to society, while cultivating a sense of belonging among the
Group’s employees. Driven by this social responsibility, the
Group took every effort to participate in community services
and charity events over the past years. It is honourable that
the Group’s contribution has been recognized with the award
of “Caring Company” from The Hong Kong Council of Social
Services for 15 years in a row.

Board members of the Group are actively dedicated to charity
events. Mr Pang Siu Hin, a Chairman of the Group is cordially
participating in public positions of social and charitable
organisations, including but not limited to a permanent advisor
of Pok Oi Hospital, an honorary president of Yuen Long
District Junior Police Calls Honorary President Committee
since 2010, an honorary president of Yuen Long District Fire
Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association since
2011, and a committee member of Home Affairs Department
= Yuen Long Town Area Committee. Moreover, Ms Kwan Lai
Man, an executive Director of the Group is a director of Pok Oi
Hospital 2018/19 Board, a life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan
Education Fund Association and an honorable member of the
Rotary Club of Peninsula East since 2020.
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Hin Sang Scholarship

During the Year, it was the year of 7th Hin Sang Scholarship
since its establishment in 2015, with the aim to award and
sponsor the talent students, especially those from low-income
families. The judging activities were divided into four (4) groups,
which covered kindergartens, primary schools, secondary
schools, and universities, from which a total of 12 students
were awarded this year. Each student winner was awarded a
scholarship of ranging from HK$1,000, gifts worth of HK$3,000
as well as the Certificate of Award. The theme of this year was
to encourage students practicing environmental protection
spirits in the aspects of clothes, food, home, and commute, for
promotion of environmental awareness in Hong Kong.
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The 7th Hin Sang Scholarship — Environmental Protection Award Scheme
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Hin Sang Volunteering Team

The Group encourages employees to participate in volunteering
work and the Group is striving to allocate resources to support
different aspects of community activities. Since its inception
in 2006, “Hin Sang Volunteering Team” was actively involved
in various community and charitable activities. Although some
volunteering activities were hindered by the novel coronavirus
impacts regarding the government’s anti-pandemic policies,
the Group was still dedicated to the community contribution
with the best of its efforts. During the Year, the Team has been
dedicated to the community activities of around 235 hours.

Hong Kong

i
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Mainland China
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Volunteering Service

E TR

Around 20 hours Around 215 hours

#9215/ N

Hin Sang Community Involvement

In addition to volunteering services, the Group has diligently
devoted resources to supporting different community needs
and has been collaborating different stakeholders and
community organizations to reach out the needy people. During
the Year, the following 4 categories of community support had
been delivered to the needy in Hong Kong and Mainland China:
1. Anti-pandemic Support

2. Charity and Poverty Alleviation

3. Education Sponsorship

4,  Environmental Protection
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Anti-pandemic Support
MEXE

Hong Kong

it

Donation of anti-pandemic resources
worth around HKD7.34 million
BREEEBEN7.4EE BT
nEER

Mainland China
FERi

Donation of anti-pandemic
resources worth around
RMB2.74 million
BEEBEOARE
2TABEBTLHNEEIR

Charity and Poverty Alleviation
NS

Donation of resources worth
around HKD300,000 to the elderly
and the vulnerable in partnership
with VIC Social Service
and Gingko House
HEEH RBREEE  ORE
MG P EFREREEE
#7300,0007 T & R

Donation of resources worth
around RMB1.81 million
BREEBEOARE
1.81EBTHER

Hin Sang Scholarship of HKD50,000

Education sponsorship of
around RMB860,000

{74 822 950,000 7T HERBSOARE
. . 860,0007T
Education Sponsorship
HEEY

Collaboration with Senior Buddy
. Charity Farm for free-of-charge

\ ’ distribution of organic vegetables | Sponsorship to tree planting

y and anti-pandemic packs worth | event of around RMB50,000

Environmental Protection
IRIBIRE

around HKD342,000

RERCASERAAE  RBIRE

{B1E #7342,00078 7T ) A #5735 K&
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BEBEEEEN
AR ¥50,0007T

Total Contribution

ERfam

HKD8.03 million
8.03HE®E T

RMB5.46 million
AR¥546EE T
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During the Year, the Group had contributed to the needy in
Hong Kong and Mainland China with both cash and in-kind
donation of around HKD14.3 million in total.

There was a total of 28 community contribution activities
in Hong Kong, 23 out of which belonged to anti-pandemic
support which was equivalent to in-kind donation worth
around HKD7.34 million. In addition to the largest part for New
Territories Association of Societies worth around 4 million,
donation of anti-pandemic materials worth around hundred
thousand HKD or above for the following organizations:

1. New Territories Association of Societies

2. Heung Hoi Ching Kok Lin Association Buddhist Po Ching
Care and Attention Home for the Aged Women

3. Hong Kong Police Inspectors’ Association

4.  TVB anti-pandemic show

5. Society for Community Organization (SoCo)

6.  Chiu Chow Association Secondary School

7. Feeding Hong Kong

8.  Chi Yun School

9.  The Media Evangelism Limited
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Anti-pandemic Events

nEES

New Territories Association of Societies — donation of

anti-pandemic resources to the needy people
MR EsE - RBENENERTE FTAFEAL

Hin Sang Herbaby Health Centre at Shek Mun —

distribution of anti-pandemic packs at free-of-charge
PTHEAFIFREMY - 2 BIREREHES

Chiu Chow Association Secondary School — free
distribution of anti-pandemic lucky bags to students
and teachers
BN SRR 2 - X R R RIE R EZM

Donation of anti-pandemic resources worth RMB1.8

million to Yunfu government

BREEAREISAETHNNARMERE I MERA

Donation of anti-pandemic resources worth
RMBO0.9 million to the government of
Zhangjiajie in Hunan Province
BREEARKIBEETHNNMENELR
R A SRR BT

Nl

Donation of anti-pandemic resources to Yuncheng
District Office of Yunfu City
BENEMEGE TN EREETENFR
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Charity and Poverty Alleviation Events
REBREEE

Chairman of Hin Sang Group Mr. Pang Siu Hin Donation of resources worth RMB1.8 million to the

conducted caring visits to elderly in poverty vulnerable people in rural areas of Yuncheng District
MEEEXFEZ P ITEERABERESE BREEARBI1SEETHMELEWE LR
g5 EFES

Partnership with the social enterprise “Gingko House”, Collaboration with “Love in Friendship” event for
Magician “Avon Lee”, and other volunteers for distributing lucky bags in Shamshuipo
distributing free lunchboxes and charitable lucky bags BRIRIBEENES R K EEER

to the elderly in Sheung Wan
BtEABIRAME] - B/ NE IR —RELE LR
REEORENEERRESMUESE
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Education Sponsorship

HEEY
ﬁ!{ﬁ.‘tﬂ rhll!!ﬁ
e |
ExtRoUARS
e m e TR 06893
Donation to Dongkeng Primary School in Yunfu City Donation of resources worth RMBO0.8 million to
BHEFMRI/NE kindergartens, primary and secondary schools in Yunfu

City for sponsoring education
BEEBEARBOSEELHNYERTIMEHHEE
RNER - TERHEFE

Volunteering Support for Environmental and Caring Events

BRAKHAEEHRIXE

Hin Sang Volunteering Team in Yunfu base

ITESBEFEE TK

Environmental protection — sponsorship to Yunfu Community caring event (e.g. elderly visit) — delivering
Tin Ka Ping School on tree planting activities to community people with free-of-charge service such
IRIR - BBEZ T HRAER B ETEEEE as blood pressure measurement, neck and shoulder
massage, ear inspection and cleaning, etc.
HEEREEHWRFZA) - RERER2ERMH
EMNR - BERKRE  BERERXEZFRS
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Awards and Achievements

It was the Group’s honour with recognition of our achievement
by different parties through a considerable number of awards
for the year ended 31 March 2022. Apart from 15 consecutive
years awarding the “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service, the Group was also awarded on our
CSR performance and product quality.

carlngcompany

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

FELERISHEEH

RIREAR

AEBEREHE2022F3A31HIEFE
REZ[EEE - LRERMOKR -
BREEISFEAES L ERBGH T HEE
[ RBRBEIEFIN  NEBIEE
PEHSETRBLERES4EIE -

Hin Sang Hang Company Limited
AETERAT

corTn

comPony

15 years+ Caring Company by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

FELEREHE - 16F+BAREIZ
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“2021 CSR Award for Corporate Social Responsibility in Greater Bay Area” by Greater-China Association of

Branding Industry

APELBEERE - [CSRAERBERE G E FARE2021]

“Super Brand Award for Child Healthcare and Chinese
Medicine” by Eugene Group
REEE - [BERERRE R P EREAE]

Association of Hong Kong

BEMERER BETERHE

[EERE]
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“Hong Kong Top Brand” by Hong Kong Brand
Development Council/Chinese Manufacturers’
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Moreover, the Group demonstrated the achievement in AN - ANE BT R B B A EEE

the aspects of tourism and education, and illustrated our BXBE - 15 DA FR B (At N RS A
outstanding establishment of Chinese Medicine Exhibition Hall, BHRE RRTEMEBERE
Chinese Medicine Planting Base, Modernized Germ-proof fF - MEEEE  RRLCERAEH
Automated Production Workshop and Ecological Botanical {CEEERRAEREYR S EH S B
Garden, with the following awards from reputable authorities in PR

Mainland China:

— =
R Y | .
A ‘I {
o | L e~
2 W s LN |
| ; (- \:Ll. - i e
l A | M 9T I AR £ sk
| DL e i - =
| SRS 2 or =%
e i
~ y S8 &%, GHOMER (%) TR E S GRAIMDI03
BREHM, 221 HNAn Wom M =R

T :\ @© @ =

“AAA-grade National Tourist Attraction Scene” awarded “Hi-Tech Enterprise” certificated by
by Ministry of Culture and Tourism of the PRC Department of Science and Technology and

B Sb MRz S B 2R [BIR3AKE =R | 2878 Department of Finance of Guangdong Province, and
Guangdong Provincial Tax Service of State Taxation

Administration
EREREE EREMBE BIXEEBERERE
MEBEEN SR RMtEIBE

FEARERT £ SN

REALRELY FERRAAR

Lyl
2022420265 {

A SRR AE AT
Si==kta SN RSN
20215851

“Guangdong Provincial Popular Science Education  “Education base for research and practices by primary
Base” awarded by Department/Association of Science and secondary students in Yuncheng district of Yunfu”

and Technology of Guangdong Province awarded by Yunfu Yuncheng Education Bureau
BRERSZRME HEREBEREAREHEEN] EINMERNELERBEHZEIMERE P/ NBEHE
EBRHEEM]
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5)

54

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s corporate governance policies are based on the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” as required by Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange which is committed to promoting a corporate
culture of trustworthiness, professional ethics and business
integrity. The Group’s corporate values, missions and strategies
are integrated with ethical business practices; the collaboration
with customers, suppliers and employees are also based
on this corporate culture. The Board and management at all
levels strictly undertake these essential responsibilities at both
individual and organizational level.

Code of Conduct

The Group has established a Code of Conduct for the
employees. The Board also adopts the provision in the
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Report of the Directors”
in the annual report as the basis for the Code of Conduct.

The Code applies to both management personnel and general
staff within the Group and has been clearly communicated to
all employees, including the new staff. The Code of Conduct
mainly covers three categories:

° Requesting for, receiving or providing benefits;

° Conflict of interest; and

o Confidentiality of information.

5)
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Anti-corruption

Rigid laws and compliances on anti-corruption bound the
Group. All employees strictly follow all required to abide by
local regulations, perform duties with integrity, and prohibit
acceptance and offer of benefits. The anti-corruption policy
has been established and included in the Code of Conduct.
For reinforcing the effectiveness of the policy implementation,
the Group has arranged relevant training to employees and
directors. A total of 1,653 training hours has been provided
to general staff on the topics related to integrity practices and
anti-corruption. For Directors, the training topics in the Year
covered:

1) New Corporate Governance Guide for Boards and
Directors (issued on December 2021)

2)  Joint Statement on IPO-related Misconduct issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and the
Stock Exchange

3)  Consultation Paper on (i) the Proposed Code of Conduct
on Bookbuilding and Placing Activities in Equity Capital
Market and Debt Capital Market Transactions and (ii) the
“Sponsor Coupling” Proposal issued by the SFC

During the Year, the Group did not identify any legal violation or
complaint related to corruption.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism
to handle misconduct under the supervision of the Group’s
Chairman, Managing Director and the representatives of the
Audit Committee.

Employees are allowed to report and submit evidence of the
suspected or confirmed misconduct to the Group’s Chairman
and/or Managing Director and/or an Audit Committee
representative in verbal or written form (either anonymous or
bearing a name), and thereafter the Group shall launch internal
investigations. In case of violation of the laws, the Group shall
follow procedures to file to the relevant authority.
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EMPLOYMENT

The Group has formulated employment policies and guidelines
in accordance with the local regulations. It complies with the
labour laws and related rules listed in the Mainland China, Hong
Kong and other business regions. The Group currently does not
employ personnel below 18 years old and has never engaged
in forced labour. The Group also assures that no employee’s
salary is paid lower than the legal minimum wage level as
defined in the government regulations of all judicial regions.

It is always the Group’s policy in prohibition of child labour.
Measures are in place to prevent the employment of child
labour by checking their identity cards during recruitment.

The Group formulates control procedure to prohibit all forms of
forced labour. This ensures the employees to work on voluntary
basis and also provides the approach for employees to file
the related complaint. We prohibit all forms of forced labour
which includes: requesting of deposits or collateral during
employment, detention of employee’s personal identification
document with the employer, withholding of wages, involuntary
overtime work, bonded labour, and practices to force working
by using violence, threat or other illegal restriction of personal
liberty.

In event of occurrence of any child labour or forced labour, the
Group will immediately take the required actions to eliminate
such legal violations in accordance with the local laws and
regulations.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any legal violation
regarding the employment of child labour or forced labour
and did not identify or receive any legal violation or complaint
regarding discrimination or recruitment.
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Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group values fair and equal opportunity for each employee
and is committed to eliminating any discrimination. Recruitment
is simply based on candidates’ experiences, abilities and
business needs, regardless of race, gender, age, marital
status, pregnancy, family status, sexual orientation, religion,
disability and nationality. All talented candidates and employees
can be hired and promoted, as well as eligible to attend
relevant training to meet business needs and personal career
development.

During recruitment, the Group checks identification documents
according to the local laws to prevent child labour and forced
labour. In the case of child labour and/or forced labour, the
Group’s shall terminate the employment immediately. The
Group shall proceed in compliance with the local employment
regulations in case of termination on employment. For other
illegal incidents, the Group shall report the case to the local
enforcement agencies.

Retirement

Despite the mandatory retirement policy in place, the Group
will not refuse to consider applicants who are near retirement
age but still want to continue to work after retirement.
For each application of this category, the Group shall
evaluate the relevant staff’s situation, competence, past job
performance and the Group’s retirement policy, to prevent age
discrimination.

Wages and Welfare

The Group’s wages and welfare policy is based on local
industry norms which shall be appropriately adjusted according
to work performance, experience and qualification of the
employee. Employee’s working hours, holidays, and other
benefits are based on the common practices of the local
industry and reasonably adjusted based on the employee’s
experience and seniority. The Group adopts key performance
indicators as one of the criteria for defining the employee
incentive scheme. Additionally, employee-oriented employment
practices have been adopted to appreciate working mother
such as lactation room.
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N

Team Structure B ZEE

As of 31 March 2022, there were 262 employees in the Group, HZE2022F3A318 » "EEF262%
in which 261 of them were full-time employees while 1 of them BT rHF261ABEZHET - B
was part-time employee. There were 30 employees based in BT1A DRIBEHRETMNREE
Hong Kong and 232 based in Mainland China respectively. K232% B T AFEIAH o

Turnover rate by gender’ Turnover rate by working location’

3 3k el Pk S BRIHERSHREE
5.46%

8.96%

Hong Kong
F#
5.67%
MALE FEMALE
B i

Turnover rate by age groups'’

RERANBIHRLE
7.93% 6.67% 7.05% @
18-30 31-45 46-60
1 Calculation for monthly average turnover rate in each specified category ' ERTEINNG AT RAENTE=Z5
= 12-month average of the monthly turnover calculation (Number of TS ARKEFEM12EA FHE G
employees leaving in the specified month/Number of employees in the FAMBBE T AR FEAHE T AHX
specified month x 100%) for that specified category. 100%) °
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Total workforce by gender? Total workforce by working location?
RENRSHR T BRIGHERSHE TR
45.96%  54.04%
v 251 34
v v

~

Total workforce
BIHAM

285

Total workforce

BRIy

285

154
Hong Kong
&4

FEMALE
T

Total workforce by age groups?

BERENNSHR TR
35% 51% 13% 1%
v v v v
Ny, l
99 145 38 3
18-30 31-45 46-60 >60

Total workforce by employment category?

RERANESHEE H?
) ® (o7 ) T (50
(48%) ‘ (34%) u (18%)
Junior Employees Middle Management Senior Management
®E FREER BREER

2 Monthly average number of employees in each specified category was 2 ERTREINERATEHEIASNIEEAZ

calculated by summation of number of employees in that specified category FEEfERI B T AZAEM - BABEBRA125

in each month and then divided the total figure by 12. Monthly average total B AFEHBATHEILHEHR28EES °

workforce was 285 employees in the Year.
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7) OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 7)

60

(OHS)

The Group remains highly attentive to health and safety.
Thereby, the Group ensures the workplace has adequate
lighting and ventilation systems and is always kept clean
and tidy with sufficient workspace. The Group also provides
proper office equipment such as height-adjustable chairs with
adjustable armrest and tilting backrest. The equipment is also
kept in a safe condition and firefighting facilities, as well as
fire drills, are arranged in accordance with the local laws in
the Year. Security measures have been adopted to prevent
unauthorised persons from entering and leaving the Group’s
operating areas.

Furthermore, the Group provides safety training for new
employees and offers relevant OHS training based on the job
nature of employees. This includes the provision of employees
with information about the laws and regulations in OHS for
employees’ understanding of such importance. During the
Year, the relevant employees were provided with a total of
15,190 training hours on occupational health & safety topics.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any violation against
the regulations of operating regions pertinent to occupational
health and safety and had no workdays lost resulting from
work-related accidents. In the past three years (including
the Year), the Group did not identify any fatality as a result of
incident happened within the Group’s premises.
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8)

EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes staff quality is a critical factor for
maintaining growth and improving profitability, while the level
of service and product quality is closely related to employee
training and development. Therefore, the Group strives to
allocate resources to implement an effective training system

o Orientation training for the new employee(s);

° Regular training sessions including technical know-how
and soft skills training for existing employees;

° Training sessions conducted by internal or external
qualified personnel; and

° New employees are trained and assisted by experienced
employees to get familiar with the working condition and
procedures.

The Group arranges the employees to attend training by virtue
of corresponding job duties. Training covers topics of product
knowledge, sales techniques, quality control, as well as and the
latest laws and regulations of proprietary Chinese medicines
that may have a possible impact on business operations. This
not only enables employees to acquire the newest information
or skills but also enhances their self-confidence and capability
to cope with the rapidly changing market. Assessment is
conducted after training to evaluate the effectiveness and to
follow up the employees’ career development.

8)
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During the Year, the relevant training figures for the Group were
depicted by gender and employee category as follows:

RAFE - AEE e EEE I BIRR
R R EEERIEBHRANT

Total number Proportion Total Average
of training  of employees number of training hours
Gender attendance trained® training hours per employee*
EZEIN BHET
4 Bl ZA AR BT LEAIR AR FIPEIIEE
Male
= 1,022.00 65.01% 24,259.00 15.43
B
F |
emaie 1,148.00 62.12% 27,270.00 14.76
g
Employee Category
EEEH
Senior Management
- 31.00 517% 735.00 1.23
BREEE ’
Middle Management
201.00 17.27% 4,768.00 410
FREIEE ’
Junior Employees o
MEET 1,938.00 100.00% 46,026.00 27.79

2,170.00

51,529.00

8 Calculation for proportion of employees trained in the specified category
was dividing the total training attendance by 12 and then further divided by
the monthly average number of employees in the specified category.

4 Calculation for average training hour in the specified category was dividing
the total training hours by the monthly average number of employees in the
specified category.
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ER

C R T BRI IR B b
BEMBINE A TR TABGHE -
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9)

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group strives for partnering with suppliers who share the
same business philosophy in running the business at a fair,
honest and diligent manner. When selecting suppliers, the
Group also evaluates environmental, social and governance
factors in addition to the financial and quality issues.

Apart from requesting the supplied products (including
packaging materials) are free from any toxic substances, the
Group also sets the standards of conduct in the procurement
contracts to encourage suppliers to share the same vision with
the Group. The scope of the standard of conduct shall include
the governance aspects of environmental protection and social
responsibility:

o Suppliers and their upstream entities do not force
employees to work in any form of violence or threat and
do not employ child labour;

o Employment is solely based on working performance and
not affected by any discrimination against race, gender,
age, marital status, pregnancy, family status, sexual
orientation, religion, disability and nationality;

° Salary is paid in fair value and all other entitled benefits
are also fulfilled;

o The safe and healthy working environment shall
be provided in compliance with the local laws and
regulations;

° Business decisions adhere firmly to the principle of
sustainable development. Business processes shall
comply with the local regulations on environmental
protection; and

° Integration of the business and organization into the
circumstances of the community.

Furthermore, the Group encourages suppliers to achieve
management systems certification (including but not limited
to the ISO 9001, ISO 14001, SA 8000, and ISO 22000). In
addition, the Group shall regularly assess the performance of
suppliers for room of improvement.
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As of 31 March 2022, there was a total of 210 suppliers located
in China (including Hong Kong). A total of 32 new suppliers
has been engaged in Mainland China during the Year. All these
new suppliers have satisfactorily gone through the aforesaid
evaluation. Also, the existing 178 suppliers have been evaluated
for assuring the continual compliance with the procurement
requirements of the Group. For some existing critical suppliers
during the Year, the Group also evaluated them and arranged
on-site assessment where necessary for assuring the
comprehensiveness and reliability of the evaluation.

Management of environmental and social risks
in supply chain

The Group will prioritize the engagement with those suppliers
without incurring significant hazards to the environment. They
will be evaluated on their emission, pollution, or other adverse
impacts to the environment. At the same time, business
partners in the supply chain will also be evaluated on their
operational compliance and the associated social risks, such
as compliance in employment of labour, safety compliance.
Consequently, priority was given to those suppliers who have
already attained certification related to environmental or social
responsibility (e.g. ISO 14001, SA 8000).

To protect the environment and enhance the utilization rate of
natural resources, the Group has incorporated the elements
of environmental protection and sustainable development in
its operations. Through supply chain management, the Group
encourages suppliers to cooperate, jointly promote and adopt
good environmental management measures, as well as to
assess suppliers’ operations for continuous monitoring and
improvement of environmental performance.

Preference in Green Procurement

Under the conditions complying with the operational
requirements, the Group will prioritize the use of equipment and
materials possessing environmentally friendly characteristics.
Upon selection of energy consuming equipment, priority will
be given to those attained with energy saving certification or
product label of high energy efficiency.

The Group is also actively implementing green office
management; for example, the use of Enterprise Resources
Planning (ERP) management system to promote the use of
electronic files and forms. The Group fully adopts the use of
Forest Stewardship Council certified paper (“FSC paper”) in
daily operation when necessary. Adopting FSC paper reflects
the Group’s operation fully supporting environmental protection
in the perspective of office paper consumption.
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Furthermore, the Group has formulated the local procurement
policy, as one of the measures in green procurement.
When encountering suppliers with the same level of quality,
preference will be using products and services from those
suppliers situated in the local region (Hong Kong and Mainland
China), for mitigating emission of greenhouse gases during
transportation along the procurement process.

10) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Since the Group launches its brands and acts as an agency
of personal care and health products for international brands.
As a result, the Group has strict control of product quality. The
reporting scope has adopted the ISO 9001 quality management
system to ensure effective procedures and processes are
adopted for the production of excellent and safe products.
Upon receipt of materials, the quality inspection process is
clearly defined and implemented according to the relevant
regulations. Each batch of products shall only be formally
released after it passed the inspection. All food, Chinese
medicine products must go through the testing on remained
pesticides, heavy metals, and micro-organisms. All products
which fall within the definition of proprietary Chinese medicines
under the Chinese Medicine Ordinance are regulated and must
meet the requirements in respect to safety, quality and efficacy
before they can be registered. The Group regularly monitors the
production and quality inspection procedures of the suppliers
to verify and confirm the suppliers’ capabilities in the provision
of compliant and safe products to the Group.

The Group has established the crisis management team
for handling emergency issues and formulating emergency
instruction for remediation of any issues and potential risks
incurred from product safety.

Fair Promotional Information

The Group complies in the Trade Descriptions Ordinance that
prohibits unfair trade practices including false trade descriptions
of services, misleading omissions, aggressive commercial
practices, bait advertising, bait-and-switch and wrongly
accepting payment. Therefore, all employees are required to
provide true and accurate product and service information to
customers when selling the products. The Group also arranges
appropriate training to ensure the personnel are equipped with
proper sales technique and precise product information.
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All products that are registered proprietary Chinese medicines,
the labelling must comply with the statutory labelling
requirements such as main ingredients, method of usage,
dosage, packing specifications, place of production, etc.
Labelling enables customers to understand the products’
ingredients fully and then builds trust towards the products.
Customer service hotline is also set up and is printed on the
surface of each box of product that is easily accessible and
traceable to the customers to make after-sales enquiries when
necessary.

Handling of Customer Complaints

As a responsible supplier of health and personal care products,
the reporting scope has handled all matters relating to product
quality in accordance with the ISO 9001 procedures, including
customer complaints about product quality:

° When receiving customer’s complaints or requests for
goods return, initial reply to the customer will be given
within the time frame specified in the procedure;

o The Group’s customer service representatives or sales
team will resolve the complaint through phone, online or
in person; and

o Serious complaints will be followed up by the crisis
management team.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any violation
against the regulations related to product responsibility, and
no product was recalled for the reasons of safety and health
concerns amongst all products sold. However, the Group
received 16 cases of customer complaints, of which the cause
was originated from the damages to product packaging during
transportation. All cases have been satisfactorily resolved by
return of quality products to the customers during the Year.
The Group has reinforced the appropriate means of packing for
preventing recurrence.
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Management of Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights managed by the Group mainly
cover its own-branded products registered in the business
regions. As of 31 Mar 2022, the Group owned 570 (2021:
583) registered trademarks in Hong Kong and 939 (2021:
821) registered trademarks in the PRC respectively. To protect
the rights of the registered brands, the Group allocates
resources to uphold confidential information such as product
specifications. The server storing such information is equipped
with a licensed firewall which restricts access from external
systems. Users are required to log in with passwords and are
allowed to access the authorised information only.

Apart from protecting its intellectual property rights, the
Group respects the intellectual property rights of the others
and will not use the third party’s intellectual property without
prior authorization. Any unlawful and inappropriate act is not
acceptable in the Group.

Maintenance of Customer Information

Although the Group’s direct customers are mainly enterprises,
their information is strictly handled in the same manner as
dealing with personal privacy. The Group is based on the
“Personal Data Protection (Privacy) Ordinance Cap. 486
(“Ordinance”) of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for its Privacy Policy, which ensures all collected, stored,
transmitted or used personal/corporate information are handled
according to the requirements specified by the Ordinance. The
Group’s management and staff maintain confidentiality and
properly retain all personal/corporate information collected,
stored, transmitted or used by the Group. Moreover, the Group
refuses to use any outdated and unauthorised software so as
to prevent data leakage and improve cybersecurity.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any complaint
related to the privacy issue.
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11) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 11) RIERE
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The Group upholds environmental protection as corporate
culture and recognises the operational impact on the
environment as an indispensable element in the decision-
making process. The Group is committed to complying with
all applicable local environmental regulations and other related
requirements for promoting sustainable development and
preventing environmental pollution. During the Year, the Group
did not identify any violation or complaint against the relevant
environmental regulations.
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The Group is committed to corporate social responsibility
and protection of environment, therefore, has established the
following directional targets with the aim to mitigate the adverse
environmental impacts incurred from the operation:

Environmental

targets Directional statements Measures/plan taken during the year
RREE Bt ReA FREMNER 58
Emission reduction 1. Enhancement in the filtration Increase in the facilities for dust removal and
and treatment system for ozone purification system for exhaust gas
reducing exhaust gases/dust filtration before discharge to environment.
to environment.
B 1. MRBBREERA LUK BINRERREOFCRGHORME - URBERE
VR, ERHRENFY IRIBAETERAR
2o
2.  Decrease in the vehicles’ ° Change in procurement policy which

consumption of diesel oil or
gasoline for reducing direct
greenhouse gases (GHG)
emission.

2. Rk B FELE R s A
LUR > B R = RESHEA -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

consolidated purchase orders of general
materials for reduction in number of
material delivery and hence reduction

in diesel/gasoline consumption, which
eventually reduced direct GHG emission.

Adoption of electric forklifts instead of
diesel forklifts, consequently for reducing
emission of exhaust gases and greenhouse
gases generated by the engines of diesel
forklift.
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Environmental
targets

RRER

Directional statements

75 el 2 B

Measures/plan taken during the year

FRRIBER, FHE

Waste reduction

D REE

Energy use efficiency

RETR 2 A 3k 2

Water use efficiency

FAK e

1. Processing of herbal
residues for other uses
instead of direct disposal.

1. BESESEMIEEMAR -
MIEEERE -

2. Use of naturally degradable
packaging materials for
minimizing waste impact to
the environment.

2. ERRARREHBEM

B AR B IR
B2 o

3.  Reduction in paper waste
generated from the office
operation.

E1

w
?J

BELHE

WO AEE

ﬁo

Application of energy efficiency
equipment

No applicable target for the
reporting year, regarding this was
not considered as material topic
from the stakeholder engagement
as well as internal impact
assessment.
REEFENTREAER
%%T%/A&W%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ

o u:tIET/_\EEK;%% °

Re-use of processed herbal residues for
livestock feeding and fertilizer application.
BT EESSRNUERE RIERER -
Use of POF thermal contraction film which was

degradable, and the consumption amounted to
around 4.87 tonnes in the Year.

{55 FA AT P& R HOPOFEAVAR IR - ANF[EH7E494.87
Mg o

° Strengthened electronic operations
and file management to reduce paper

consumption in offices.

° Maximized the use of papers on both
sides.

° Arranged to recycle scrap papers as much

as possible.
e NRBREFEEERRETE  RIPD
i

s HREBEEARRK-

o  HRARELTHREIKELR -

Use of “Heat pump water heater” for provision
of hot water, which saved around 16,600 kWh
in the Year as compared with traditional heating
facilities.

2 AT ZEsmBe oK s IR 2UK - ML EFTINER
i - ANFEEIE 16,600 T FLE ©

Water consumption equipment in the factory
was currently in adequate efficiency on
utilization of water resources. It is planning

the establishment of rainwater collection pool
which is pending the approval from government
authority.
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Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG) and
Pollutants Emission

Although industrial effluents are not applicable in the
operation of the Group, the Group strives to alleviate the
Group’s GHG emissions and pollutants by identifying
sources of GHG and defining the appropriate resolution.
The primary source of GHG emission of the Group
is generated from purchased electricity and vehicles
transportation. In view of that, the Group is striving to
reduce GHG emission sources, improve the efficiency of
related processes with GHG emissions, lower the use of
gasoline and increase the use of more environmentally
friendly fuels, etc.

Moreover, the Group’s head office is located in Tsim Sha
Tsui where is a city centre, a walkable distance to mass
public transit. The Group encourages the employees
to make use of public transportations and can be free
from private vehicles, living sustainably. Also, the Group
supports the employees to use video-conferencing
instead of business travel to further decrease GHG
emission. The Group’s current emission reduction
measures include the use of the EU 5 trucks across the
board; adoption of detailed inventory plan to reduce
the number of shipments in procurement; maximization
the use of waterway transport. In addition, advanced
planning of shipping routes is adopted in order to deploy
the fastest and shortest route for delivery and more
importantly, to avoid peak seasons and roads with heavy
traffic jams. Emission of the following pollutants from the
use of vehicles were depicted as follows:

a)
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Annual
Emission
Types of Air Pollutants (kilogram)®
FEHHRE
RRSRYESR (AFr)®
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) 149.37
AEY
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) 0.69
matw
Particulate Matter (PM) 13.78
BT IR
The Group’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensities
FREEEREHENRER
LXTIEND
\ Zik
2021/2022
GHG emission \_/olume
e el 51.61 62.04 24.40 0.47 0.14
BERBIE
[CEL T )
2020/2021
GHG emission volume
i /a n/a
(tonne CO, equivalent) 2’577 4368 5669 1901 r] N
Sammn TEA i
(B=StREE)
2021/2022

GHG emission intensity
(tonne CO, equivalent/box)

2021/2022% 0.00036 0.00043
BRI
(M=E{LRER )

2020/2021
GHG emission intensity

Sopo/20ea @™ 0.01074 0.00018 0.00023
BEREHEE
TRy 92

Calculation for pollutant emission from use of vehicles was referenced to
the emission factors issued from “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by HKEX.

The parameter 101.6 kgce/t (kilograms of coal equivalent/tonne) of steam
was used for calculation of indirect GHG emission incurred by purchased
steam

0.00017 <0.00001 <0.00001

n/a n/a
0.00008 i R
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GHG emission’
BEREBER

FY 2021/2022
2021/2022F
MBEE

Scope 1

GHG volume® emission
(tonnes CO, equivalent)

FE 1 REREHHE
BN

Scope 1

GHG emission intensity
(tonne CO, equivalent/box)

E[E 1 RESRENEE

Mg {tEER )

Scope 2

GHG emission volume®
(tonnes CO, equivalent)

HE2REREBHME®
(M= LR AR

Scope 2
GHG emission intensity

(tonne CO, equivalent/box)

HERERBHEREE
(B=F{CERE )

V TOTAL
y

GHG emission volume
(tonne CO, equivalent)

V L Tt
(M|t mEE)

i ) TOTAL
“ia' GHG emission intensity'™®

(tonne CO, equivalent/box)

RBEREIRRE
TR

Annual shipment volume (Boxes)
2FHEE )

Global Warming Potential (GWP) adopted in this GHG calculation were
based on the values disclosed in the Sixth Assessment Report (AR6) of
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).

Scope 1 refers to “direct GHG” emission which was mainly originated from
fuel combustion during petrol/diesel oil consumption by vehicles, and LPG
& acetylene consumption by plant facilities. Method of calculation was
based on “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.
Scope 2 refer to “energy indirect GHG” emission which was originated
from consumption of electricity and steam purchased from external source.
Regional grid emission factor used for calculation of emission form electrical
facilities in Mainland China was referenced to the values issued by National
Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) in People’s Republic of
China, while the emission factor used for calculation of emission from
electrical facilities in Hong Kong was referenced to the sustainability report
of the designated power company.

The base for calculation of emission intensity is the total shipment volume
in term of boxes.

138.19

0.00096

3,227

0.02241

3,365

0.02337

144,007

9

FY 2020/2021
2020/20215F
MFE

152.85

0.00064

2,577

0.01073

2,730

0.01137

240,081
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Waste Disposal

During product design and sales planning, the Group
adopts the principle of waste reduction through innovative
product design, supply chain management, and waste
recycling. The Group generates hazardous wastes, mainly
in the operating site in Yunfu. The Group will record and
report three types of waste according to the National
Hazardous Waste List. They are wasted mineral oil,
batteries, and waste generated in the chemistry and
biological laboratory''; however, a handful of exhausted
compact fluorescent lamp, batteries, cartridges and
toners are generated at the office. The property
management of the building is responsible for dealing with
the lamp and batteries, whereas exhausting cartridges
and toners are collected and recycled by the service
provider. In response to the latest government policy
regarding the Producer Responsibility Scheme (PRS) on
waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE), the
Group also pays particular attention to the WEEE such as
computers, printers, scanners as well as monitors if the
disposal is needed. Merely registered suppliers/services
providers will be employed to handle and dispose of
WEEE legally and adequately.

Non-hazardous wastes were mainly Chinese medicine
residues, which together with other scrap products, like
filter residues, substandard products and etc., would be
processed/recycled as chemical fertilizers and feedstock
for internal farming and livestock feeding.

Waste code was 900—249-08, 90004449 and 900-047-49.
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In regard to other recyclable wastes such as waste paper,
those recycling boxes are placed at the designated
locations and are handed over to the licensed recycling
agencies. The Group also encourage employees to
engage in double-sided photocopying and reuse single-
sided used papers to reduce paper wastage. Moreover,
the Group utilises mobile applications (Apps) to receive
orders from customers. In addition, the Group provides
reusable cutleries and containers for guest to use at the
office.

FLEE R E E b A O U EE Y M
5 ZEEREREREE M
B WA R EERE o
AEBENSBEEETERR
EN - % B A 8 R0 4R @ U 55 A DA
WMAMFORE - RO - AEEF
A% B EREF (App/E I EFET
5o i AEEREARMA
EEERNEARRSRHRAE
B H -

Intensity

Total waste (kilogram per

produced (tonne) shipment unit)

BEEEEY (AFF/ BHE

HE (W) B )

Non-hazardous wastes 26.74 0.19
BERERY

Hazardous wastes 0.27 <0.01
BEEED

Energy and Water Saving

In addition to the efforts for reducing GHG emissions and
waste generation, the Group has also taken appropriate
measures to conserve natural resources with the aim
of environmental protection. The Group’s conservation
measures are mainly conveyed through energy
management.

The Group adopts both administrative practices and
equipment installation for energy conservation over the
years, for example, requesting staff to turn off the air
conditioning and lighting during lunch time and non-
office hours; activating the energy saving mode of office
equipment; maintaining air indoor temperature at a
moderate level; and placing energy saving reminders at
the prominent location. During the Year, the plant situated
in Yunfu of Guangdong province has replaced 183 set of
LED lighting, which outperformed on the energy efficiency
as compared with conventional light bulbs used in the
past.
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The water supply system in Hong Kong and Yunfu is BEAENMEZHHKRGHE I
owned and controlled by the local government. Also, FIHER R H) o phoh - BZER
water tanks are available in Yunfu to store water for BROKFE - A ARKAE TR 2
emergency use and hence there were no difficulties on & ARBORERE - FEE W
sourcing water. Notwithstanding the fact, the Group bt REEZZIKERO MR
is aware of the scarcity of water resources and the MREHE E’JEEI&% Eit - AR
importance of environmental education. The Group, SEBATEFHMERLERE,
therefore, reduces the use of water by placing reminder TRRUATRREE B T & 40 KRRk
at the toilet and pantry to remind employees to save K boh  AEEERERKET
water. Furthermore, the Group is asking employees to SRR KEEBR - AR
pay part of water and electricity expenses to provoke their RIERK R RE B R4 ©
awareness of water and energy saving.
The Group’s Resource Consumption and Intensity
TREZFEEREE
[+ i ity per shi unit C i ity per shi unit
SHREMNERRE 0.29 SHREMNERRE 0.16
2021/2022 2021/2022
2021/2022% * 2020/2021 2021/20225 4 §) 20202021
Qﬁl"i'«ﬁ-tgﬁ /2020/zoz1$ Annual total \ 2020/2021%
u | : A | total
25@%R 0 consumption R cﬁ%&éﬁn
_j SERER C i ity per shij unit 42,27? . 37,885
E 0.13 SHREUNEREE 0.07 (cubic metre) (ILF5%) (cubic metre) (IL%5%)
2021/2022
2021/2022% N . 20202021
Annual total i?]zn?jgotg:a;*
C i unit
0 18 ﬂlﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬁ’lﬁm!! 0 10 1(I|t9re)9§+)3 1('“679,)?‘3”8 8 05 5&3-&3952;&& 0 3"2'
2021/2022
2021/2022% 2020/2021 2021/2022
Annual total 72020/2021% 2021/2022% 2020/2021.
i 2020/2021%
consumption : Annual total Annual total
EHER Mobile consumption consumption Annual to_tal
Petrol EMER 2EEER consumption
26,251 It 24868 g 2EARE
(iitre) (227) o (itre) (243) 7,700 7 6,000
(kg) (2FF) (kg) (8F)
C i ity per shi unit C i ity per shi unit
0 02 SHEEMMHEARE o 01 <o 01 SHERUMNER®E n/a
2021/2022 2021/2022 FEHR
2021/2022% 2021/20224 ™ 2020/2021
Annual total '202012021%
: Al | total A I |
2,314 2,539 zi [
(tonne) (Hi) (tonne) (i) (kilogram) (2 F) =]
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Intensity (kilogram per shipment unit)
BE (aF SHER6)

Other than energy and water, three types of packaging
materials were used for delivering products of the Group
during shipment and the amount of consumption was
listed as follows:

BE (2F SHREG)

Total Total
consumption

d) Environment and the Natural Resources

The Group generated only domestic sewage from
operations in Hong Kong which also do not consume
significant amount of water. On the other hand, the
manufacturing operation in Yunfu has set up on-site
wastewater treatment facilities and septic tanks for
processing wastewater prior to discharge, in order to
meet the emissions standards as defined by the relevant
laws and regulations. Apart from effluent of Yunfu’s
factory, the impact of pollutants released from the
manufacturing site were fully assessed, and the site has
been equipped with other filtration devices like pollutants
removers, odor removers, etc, for assurance of air
emission in compliance with the laws and regulations.

Intensity (kilogram per shipment unit)

consumption
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Intensity (kilogram per shipment unit)

BE r suxst) () 841670

Total
Metal COnSU;ﬁ\gion
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12) CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group is convinced greenhouse gases being the main
cause of climate change and we are committed to supporting
the national policies on achieving the direction of carbon
neutrality. The Group has implemented the following measures
for preparedness and response to the climate change.

Risk assessment

In response to extreme weather and related disasters caused
by climate change, the Group regularly assesses the following
risks to the plant, its infrastructure and production processes:

o] Whether any impact on production processes as a result
of potential heat waves caused by climate change (such
as: air conditioning and automatic machine operation) :

o] Whether climate change may interrupt individual material
supply chain which affects procurement of raw materials
(e.g. prices and quantities);

0  Whether resource constraints caused by climate change
require plans to change the composition of materials.
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Preparedness plan for disaster management

For those identified emergencies (e.g. water immersion,
flooding) that may be caused by extreme weather such as
typhoon and rainstorms, the Group has established relevant
documentation for disaster risk management strategies and
measures which control the risk of flooding in the vicinity of
production and warehouse facilities, and develop contingency
plans to prevent damage caused by extreme weather. They
include the following facilities and measures:

o) Installation of gates or equivalent barriers to prevent
flooding of premises during typhoon or rainstorms;

o) Strengthen the exterior plant structure for enhancing its
strength against super typhoons;

o] Prior to super typhoons hoisted, outdoor equipment or
machinery are secured (e.g. using ropes).

Other responsive measures

In addition to developing preventive measures, the Group also
develops strategies to respond to climate disasters, including
the purchase of insurance to divert possible losses caused by
natural disasters, and the development of business continuity
plans for implementation of scheduled plans to resume
production and continue operations in the event of an extreme
weather disruption.
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REFERENCE TO ESG REPORTING GUIDE
OF HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

Subject Areas/Aspects/General Disclosures and KPls

Section in This Report

A.1 Emissions
A1.1 Types of emissions and respective emissions data.

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

A.2 Use of Resources

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

A.3 Environment and Natural Resources

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

11a.

11a.

11a.

11b.

11b.

11b.

11c.
11c.

11c.

11d.
11d.

Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)
and Pollutants Emission
Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)
and Pollutants Emission
Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)
and Pollutants Emission

Waste Disposal

Waste Disposal

. Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)

and Pollutants Emission
Waste Disposal

Energy and Water Saving
Energy and Water Saving

Energy and Water Saving

. Energy and Water Saving

. Energy and Water Saving

. Energy and Water Saving

Environment and Natural Resources
Environment and Natural Resources
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Subject Areas/Aspects/General Disclosures and KPls

Section in This Report

A.4 Climate Change

A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

B.1  Employment

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

B.2 Health and Safety

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of

the past three years including the reporting year.

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

B.3 Development and Training

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

B.4 Labour Standards

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

B.5 Supply Chain Management

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

12. Climate Change
12. Climate Change

6. Employment
Employment

o

6. Employment

7. Occupational Health & Safety
7. Occupational Health & Safety

7. Occupational Health & Safety
7. Occupational Health & Safety

8.  Employee Training and Development

8.  Employee Training and Development

8.  Employee Training and Development

6. Employment
6. Employment

6. Employment
9.  Supply Chain Management

9.  Supply Chain Management
9.  Supply Chain Management

9.  Supply Chain Management

9.  Supply Chain Management
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Subject Areas/Aspects/General Disclosures and KPls

Section in This Report

B.6 Product Responsibility

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.

B.7 Anti-corruption

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.

B.8 Community Investment

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

SRR OEEN TR W) B A R A

10.
10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

Product Responsibility
Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility

Product Responsibility

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

Community Service
Community Service

Community Service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Group strive to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate sound
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
system from time to time so as to ensure Shareholders’ expectations
are met.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the Year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except for the below
deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code with effect from
1 January 2022), the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Pang Siu Hin is both the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Pang is one of the co-
founders of the Group and has been operating and managing the
Group effectively since 1996, the Board believes that it is in the
best interest of the Group to have Mr. Pang taking up both roles for
effective management and business development with his profound
knowledge and experience in the industry. The Board therefore
considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 is reasonably
justified under such circumstances.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code with effect from
1 January 2022), independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings to gain and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr.
Yuen Chi Ping, the former non-executive Director, did not attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 September 2021
due to suspension of duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1B 56 B 16 e

Under code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as code provision C.6.1 of the CG Code with effect from
1 January 2022), the company secretary should be an employee of
the issuer and have day-to-day knowledge of the issuer’s affairs.
The Company engaged Ms. Kho Polien (“Ms. Kho”), an external
provider, as the company secretary of the Company since 2 August
2021. Ms. Kho, in performing her duties as the company secretary of
the Company, reports to the Board and maintains contact with the
financial controller of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the standards required by the Model Code during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and reports to them at
general meetings. All Directors are required to pursue excellence in
the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill his/her fiduciary duties by
applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard
in accordance with the statutory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises a total of seven Directors including
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board members for the
Year and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Kwan Lai Man Managing Director

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Ms. Tian Shanshan (Appointed on 1 December 2021)
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping
(Suspension of duties with effect from 16 June 2020 and retired
on 29 September 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, the Chairman, is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship), among the
Directors.

Independence

We have strong elements of independence on the Board, providing
independent and objective opinions on strategic issues and
performance matters as well as extensive expertise, experience and
insight of each Director to the integration of the Board. The Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine
on the independence of Directors. The Board determines that the
Directors do not have any direct or indirect material relationship
with the Group. Furthermore, the Company has received an annual
confirmation from each of its independent non-executive Directors
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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During the Year, the Company at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board and it exceeds the parameters of
the CG Code.

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognizes the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that increasing the Board diversity will
enhance the quality of its performance by supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
reviews this Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and
recommends any revisions, if required, to the Board for consideration
and approval.

The Directors are from diverse education background and
professional experience. They bring the Board valuable experience
and expertise for the long-term growth of the Company.

Their diverse skills include distribution and marketing, finance and
accounting, investment management and business operation.
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The diversity of the Board is summarized in the following charts:

Designation

g%
Executive Directors
42.86% o
y 28.57% WITES
I Non-executive
Directors
FEHITES

M Independent

28.57% Non-executive Directors
B IENITES
Age Group
Fie s Bl
42.86%

M 30-39 years old

a2.86%  30-39%
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. 60 years old or above
14.989% 605% A L
Length of Service in the Group
R & B iR 5 5
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14.99% 105 A E
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Board Meetings

During the Year, the Company held 4 regular board meetings,
an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on 29 September 2021, 2
Audit Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 2 Nomination Committee meetings on 24 June 2021 and 22
November 2021, respectively. Details of each Director’s attendance
in the aforesaid meetings are set out below:

RAEFEE  ARARRIT4REHESE S
%o M2021F9A20R BT RBEF KRS
(ERBFRE]) - DRIR2021F6H24H8
N2021F11 A22HBIT2 A EB%RELEEES
2R MHEEegRROAREEES
CE - AUSESLRLLASHZFER
P

Number of meetings attended/entitled to attend

BHEER ARIREEZAY
Regular Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee
meetings meetings meeting meeting AGM
b B M RE BRR
Directors EE EZgeE® 2 ZEgER ZE8ER ZBgga3 BFEXE
Executive Directors UTES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Ny 4/4 N/ANE A N/ATNE A N/ANE A 11
Ms. Kwan Lai Man MEELL 44 NATER 2/2 2/2 11
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERZT 4/4 N/ATE A N/ANE N/ATNE 11
Ms. Tian Shanshan A+
(Appointed on 1 December 2021)  (KR20214F
1281FEZF) 00  NATEA N/ATE N/AT & 0/0
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping RETELE
(Suspension of duties with effect (EEBEE
from 16 June 2020 and retired 20206416
on 29 September 2021) HEBER R R
20219429
HEfE) 0/2 N/A i £ N/ATiE A N/AT i@ 0/1
Independent non-executive BYFBTES
Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit AERESE 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu Fiekis 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HEHEET 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
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The Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for the overall conduct of the Group,
formulating Group policies and business directions, and monitoring
risk management, internal controls and performance of the
management. The Board delegates and gives clear directions to the
Management as to their powers and circumstances in which the
Management should report back or obtain prior the Board approval.

Delegation by the Board

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense upon making request to the Board.

Executive Directors delegate some day-to-day management,
administration and operation to the senior management. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full
support of the executive Directors and the senior management for
the discharge of its responsibilities.

Management for the purpose of this corporate governance
report includes the executive Directors, senior management and
departmental heads. They are responsible for the day-to-day
operations, management and administration of the Group under
the leadership of the executive Directors. They also execute and
implement strategies and directions determined by the Board.

Members of our management are frequently invited to attend the
Board meetings to report and engage in discussions with the Board
in respect of strategy, budget planning, progress and performance
updates to ensure that the Board has a general understanding of the
Group’s business and to enable them to make informed decisions for
the benefit of the Group. They are required to answer any questions
or challenges posed by the Board.
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In addition to regular Board meetings, monthly management
meetings were held to review, discuss and make decisions on
financial and operational matters.

Board Meetings and Board Procedural Matters

The Board meets regularly and has formal procedures to include
matters to be referred to it for consideration and decisions at the
Board meetings. The formal notice and agenda of meetings are
usually sent to all Directors at least 14 days before each meeting
and they are consulted and given an opportunity to comment on the
agenda.

Meeting materials are usually sent to Directors in advance of each
meeting to ensure that the Directors have full and timely access to
relevant information. With a view to becoming more environment-
friendly by reducing paper consumption, meeting materials are
distributed in electronic form and Directors are encouraged to read
the electronic version.

Draft minutes recording substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at the meetings are circulated to all Directors for their
comments (if any) within a reasonable time (generally within seven
business days) of each meeting. The final version of the minutes
is approved at the subsequent meeting and a copy is sent to the
Directors for their records. The final executed version is placed on
record and made available for inspection.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular Board
meetings a year. During the Year, four regular Board meetings were
convened and performed the following work:

1. reviewed and approved the 2020/21 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

2.  reviewed and approved the 2021/22 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

3.  reviewed the operational and financial reports of the Group;

4. discussed and considered recommendations made by the
board committees;
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5. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s affairs,
including strategic plans, financial affairs, progress and updates
of business performance, and budget summary/proposals; and

6. reviewed the effectiveness of corporate governance practices,
internal control and risk management.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the Year, the Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and the senior management;

3.  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the CG Code and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Professional
Development

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continuously updated with the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance with and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has devised a training record to assist the
Directors in maintaining their training record.
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The below chart summarises the participation of Directors in training

and continuous professional development during the Year.

EERRENIBER

T%‘HE%L%%EA$¢F‘@EN R EE

Types of Continuous Professional Development

FRERZEERE

Reading

Material regarding
regulatory update
and corporate

Attending seminars/

governance matters conferences/forums
MECREEEN
Name of Directors BEEpA REEEAEE2ME HENHRE 28 WE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin TR A v v
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BT v v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BEBLL v v
Ms. Tian Shanshan F 3 3 22 £
(Appointed on 1 December (R2021F12H1H
2021) EZE) v v
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REFEE
(Suspension of duties with (B 12 7% 5 20204F
effect from 16 June 2020 6416 £ R
and retired on 29 September R20214F9H29H N/A N/A
2021) RE) NiE A i A
Independent non-executive BIkHTES
Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit EESEE S v v v
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu TREIRSEAE v v
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny B2 BLE £ v v
Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance EERSRBERR
The Company has been maintaining an adequate Directors’ and ZARARIZRREANEELSHBE ([EE
officers’ (“D&Q0”) Liability Insurance, which gives appropriate cover for KRS MEE ) ETRE - AEAR R T

any legal action brought against the Directors and officers since the
Company went listed. To ensure sufficient and appropriate insurance
cover is in place, we review the Company’s D&O insurance policy
annually based on recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The Insurance Policy is available for inspection by
the Directors upon request. During the Year, no claim has been

made since the Insurance Policy came into effect.
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Deed of Non-Competition

In order to protect the Group’s interests, the deed of non-competition
dated 25 September 2014 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
executed by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition, Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and the Controlling Shareholders have jointly and
severally undertaken that they would not engage in any business or
manufacturing any products which are in competition with those of
the Group. The Company’s independent non-executive Directors
will review, at least on annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition by the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates on their existing or future competing
business.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their common law duty
to act in the best interests of the Company and Shareholders as a
whole. Any perceived, potential or actual conflicts of interest between
the Group and its Directors are to be avoided. The Directors are
requested to disclose their interests, if any, in any transaction,
arrangement or other proposal to be considered by the Board at
Board meetings, and abstain from voting if any conflicts of interest
arise or where they become aware of any perceived or potential
conflicts of interest. All declared interests are properly recorded and
made accessible by the Board members. Directors have a continuing
duty to inform the Board of any changes to these conflicts.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Pang serves as the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. The reasons have been explained in the section
headed “Compliance with Corporate Governance Code” of this
annual report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(INCLUDING INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) (including independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”)) make a positive contribution to the
development of the Group’s strategy and policies and scrutinise the
Group’s performance through informed insight and independent
judgement. They constructively challenge the management, which is
vital to fulfill the objectives set out by the Board. In order to preserve
well-balanced governance, the Board has ensured that all members
of the Audit Committee are INEDs, majority of the members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees are INEDs, and that each
committee is chaired by an INED.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All our NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for a term of one year
and are required to offer themselves for re-election at the first AGM
following their appointments. Under the Articles of Association of the
Company, at least one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at the AGM at least once every three years. Retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election at the AGM at which he or she
retires. We confirm that all Directors’ appointments and re-elections
were conducted in compliance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CG Code for the period under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to enhance
the function of the Board, the Board has established the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company’s affairs
under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference. The terms
of reference of each of the Board Committees are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Board Committees are discussed below.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to review and monitor the Group’s relationship with
the external auditors and the auditors’ independence; monitor the
integrity of the Group’s financial information and review significant
reporting judgments contained in it; oversee the Group’s financial
reporting and review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and consider major investigation findings
on internal control matters and management’s response to these
findings.

As at 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee consisted of three
members who are the INEDs, namely Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr. Lee Luk
Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the Year, the Audit Committee convened two meetings and
performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2020/21 annual report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed the 2021/22 interim report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

3. reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditors, taking into account its independence;

4. approved terms of engagement including the remuneration of
the external auditors and audit service plan;

5. assessed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management procedures and internal control systems; and

6. reviewed and discussed the internal control review projects
conducted by the Internal Audit function, including:

i. internal audit function and progress;

ii.  significant internal audit findings and follow-up remediation
status;
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ii.  annual internal audit planning memorandum; and

iv.  major investigation findings on internal controls and
management’s response to those findings.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under its terms
of reference, the Remuneration Committee is required, among other
things, to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the executive Directors
and senior management, and make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration of NEDs (including INEDs).

The Remuneration Committee has also taken into account a number
of relevant factors such as remuneration packages offered by
companies of comparable business and scale, market practices, and
the financial and non-financial performance of the Group to ensure
that the remuneration packages offered remain appropriate and
competitive.

The Remuneration Committee ensures that no individual Director or
senior management approves his or her own remuneration.

Particulars of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements and the analysis of the five highest
paid employees are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three INEDs), namely Ms.
Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing
Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr.
Lau Chi Kit.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee convened 1 meeting
and performed the following work:

1. reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

2. reviewed the remuneration of the executive Directors and senior
management; and

3. make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
NEDs and INEDs.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its term of reference, the Nomination Committee is, among other
things, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and the management of the Board
succession; to make recommendations to the Board for potential
Board members; to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; and to assess the independence of INEDs.

As at 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors), namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr.
Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting
and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

2. assessed the independence of INEDs;

3. nominated suitable and qualified individual for directorship; and
4. made recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

reappointment of Directors and succession planning for the
Directors.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which sets out the principles on guiding the Nomination Committee
to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to (i) the Board
for appointment, or to (i) shareholders of the Company for election.
The Nomination Policy could assist the Company to achieve board
diversity in the Company and enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and its corporate governance standard.

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria in evaluation, selection
and recommendation of any candidate for directorship of the
Company, including but not limited to, diversity in aspects under
the Board Diversity Policy, commitment for responsibilities of the
Board, qualifications, reputation for integrity, potential contributions
to the Board, and plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board, and in case of the nomination of independence non-executive
Directors, meeting the independence requirements with reference to
the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In addition, the nomination procedures with regard to the new
appointment, election or re-election of a Director are set out in the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee may propose to
the Board a candidate recommended or offered for nomination
by a shareholder of the Company as a nominee for election to the
Board and the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors is subject to the approval of the
Board. The Nomination Committee may make the recommendation
by submitting a proposal containing the nominating intention, the
candidate’s consent to be nominated and the candidate’s personal
profile and other relevant information to the Board for consideration.

Each proposed new appointment, election or re-election of a
Director shall be assessed and/or considered against the criteria
and qualifications set out in the Nomination Policy by the Nomination
Committee which shall recommend its views to the Board and/or the
Shareholders for consideration and determination.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and from time to time review the Nomination
Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Company’s independent external auditors is HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited. The roles and responsibilities of our external
auditors are stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Audit services EIZRTS 850 900

Non-audit services IEEZ RS

- Review services - EHRB 150 155

Total A&t 1,000 1,055
Directors’ Accountability and Auditing EEBERZE

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2022 to reflect a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position as at 31 March 2022 and of its results and cash flows for
the Year.

In preparing of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022, the generally accepted accounting principles
in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent
use of appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were prepared on a
going concern basis.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.
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Pursuant to code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code, where the
directors are aware of material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the issuer’s ability to
continue as a going concern, they should be clearly and prominently
disclosed and discussed at length in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The auditor of the Company draws attention to note 2 in the
consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$13,105,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2022 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$125,949,000. As stated in note 2, these events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Auditor’s opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

In view of these circumstances and the impact of COVID-19, the
Group has been continuously implementing measures to improve its
profitability and operating performance and to mitigate the liquidity
pressure. These measures include (1) implementing business
strategies to enhance the production efficiency of the Group’s own
brand products and aiming to reduce the product cost by self-
production, (2) continuing its measures to control administrative and
operating costs, and (3) looking for other sources of finance including
equity financing to enhance the capital structure and reduce the
overall finance costs.

With respect to the Group’s bank financing, the Group maintains
continuous communication with its principal banks. As at 31 March
2022, the Group had unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$48,100,000. The directors of the Company are not aware of any
intention of the principal banks to withdraw their banking facilities or
require early repayment of the bank borrowings. Taking into account
the good track record and relationships with the banks and the fair
value of the pledged properties, the directors believe that the Group
will be able to renew the banking facilities upon maturity dates.
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The directors have assessed the Group’s cash flow projections cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31 March 2022. The
key factors that are taken into account by management in the cash
flow projections include the anticipated cash flows from the Group’s
operations, capital expenditures, continuous availability of banking
facilities and the impact of COVID-19. The Group’s ability to achieve
the projected cash flows depends on management’s ability to
successfully implement the aforementioned improvement measures
on profitability and liquidity and the continuous availability of banking
facilities.

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
expected renewals of the bank borrowings and the unutilised banking
facilities, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within twelve months from 31 March 2022. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the period from 1 April 2021 to 1 August 2021, Mr. Wong
Chung Him, the financial controller of the Company, served as the
Company Secretary. On 2 August 2021, the Company appointed
Ms. Polien Kho, an external provider, as the Company Secretary. In
performing her duties, Ms. Kho reports to the Board and maintains
contact with the financial controller of the Company.

Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the effective conduct
of meetings and that proper procedures are followed (including
organising meetings, preparing agendas and the written resolutions
or minutes, collating and distributing meeting materials, and keeping
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved at
the meetings). He/she also advises the Board on compliance and
corporate governance matters (including updating the Board on
any legal and regulatory changes and facilitating the induction and
professional development of the Directors).

The Board has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary at all times. Ms. Kho has confirmed that she has attended
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election as
a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company in Hong
Kong or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days. The procedures for
the shareholders of the Company to propose a person for election as
a Director are also posted on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for Raising Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns together with
their names and contact information to the Board by addressing
them to the head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1213-1215, 12/F,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by e-mail to
contact@hinsanggroup.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. The latest version of
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board, the Board committees and the external
auditors will be present to answer Shareholders’ questions in
the annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be
distributed to all Shareholders before the annual general meeting and
any extraordinary general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.
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As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquiries.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guidelines for the Board on determining any
declaration of dividends and the level of the dividend to be paid to
the shareholders of the Company, which allow shareholders of the
Company to participate in the profits of the Group whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. The Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future plans;

4.  the Group’s liquidity position;

5. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and

6. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no

assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Goals and Obijectives

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. The Board acknowledged that the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Main Features of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board places great importance on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and has ultimate responsibilities for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
is also responsible for overseeing in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board is committed to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
the qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Audit Committee
oversees the systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group and continuously communicates any significant matters to the
Board.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management framework comprises the following
phases:

° Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio according to such analysis; and

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and ongoing monitor the residual
risks.

Such framework provides a systematic approach to risk management
process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as
an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value for
stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its corporate
governance responsibilities by proactively identifying, addressing
and managing key risks within the Group. The Risk Management
framework is aligned with the Committee of the Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) Internal Control
— Integrated Framework. The components of the framework are as
follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for internal control across the
Group;

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to
the achievement of objectives are carried out;
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o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is in place and
functions.

The management takes direct risk management responsibilities as
risk owners.

Risk Assessment

During the Year, management of the Company: 1) conducted risk
assessment to identify, filter and prioritize the key risks faced by the
Group; 2) established a risk register to document the Group’s key
risks and their respective risk levels; and 3) identified the mitigating
measures for the identified key risks, and the person-in-charge to
monitor and follow up the implementation progress of the mitigating
measures.

Moreover, there are top eight priority risks which have been identified
under four categories: 1) business and strategic risk; 2) operational
risk; 3) regulatory compliance risk; and 4) financial & reporting risk.

Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) is an independent and
objective body, which performs the Group’s internal audit function
and directly reports to the Audit Committee and the Board at least
annually. The manager of IAD has a direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Board.

The IAD has an unlimited access to reviewing the Group’s activities,
internal control, risk management, and corporate governance related
issues. One of the functions is to assist the Board in independently
assessing the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control
systems, risk management process, and more importantly seeking
continuous improvement.
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To align with the Group’s growth and latest business developments,
the IAD will always review its adequacy and competency of
knowledge and attend corresponding workshops and/or seminars
whenever thinks fit.

Internal Audit Activities

The IAD has adopted a risk-management based approach in
developing the annual internal audit planning memorandum, which
corresponds to the risk management framework. Risk assessment,
which is regarded as a major and dynamic process, is performed
on a regular basis so as to identify, prioritize and scope business
activities and simultaneously cover business activities with significant
risks across the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and approves
the annual internal audit planning memorandum. In each individual
audit assignment, significant risk areas such as finance, operation,
compliance and fraud risk would further be assessed in order to
evaluate internal control effectiveness and the mitigation efforts made
by the management.

All audit findings and corresponding recommendations on control
deficiencies of each audit assignment would be well communicated
to the management, who needs to initiate any remedial actions to
correct those control deficiencies within a reasonable period of time.
Subsequent reviews are purposefully done to monitor whether those
remedial actions have been performed right on time and correctly.
Significant deficiencies of individual assignment are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Through the ongoing reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of
the management’s awareness of some key operational processes,
the IAD discharges its duties of performing audit assignment on
those areas on an ad hoc basis if necessary.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company’s
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Audit
Committee oversees the system of risk management and internal
control of the Group and continuously communicates any significant
matters to the Board. The Board considered that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate during the Year under review.

The Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience and training programs of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting staff and considered that
staffing is adequate. All staff has sufficient competence to carry out
their roles and responsibilities.

Findings and recommendations concerning improvements to
the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Board considered the Group’s risk
management system and internal control system of the Group,
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting, internal audit, and financial reporting function,
and their training programs and budget, are effective and adequate,
and have complied with provisions of the CG Code during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (fT4)” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumer’s trend, the Group
continues to expand the e-commerce business through electronic
platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase profit, the
Group also trades in skin care, personal care and slimming products
of reputable brands. It is also developing its business in mother
infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment
services projects. Details of principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. There has been no significant change in the
principal business of the Group during the Year. The segment
information of the operations of the Group for the Year is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year including a fair review
of the business and discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the year ended 31 March 2022 (if any),
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
certain financial key performance indicators which complement and
supplement our financial disclosures, an account of the Company’s
relationships with its stakeholders, and the environmental policies
and performance of the Group are set out in the sections namely
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
“Corporate Governance Report”, “Five Years Financial Summary”,
and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION

The Company completed a subscription of new shares in June 2016
(the “Subscription”) and the net proceeds of the Subscription were
used to invest in a joint venture company (established with Fullshare
in July 2016). The following table discloses proceeds from the
Subscription and the Shareholder’s Loan injected or to be injected
into the joint venture company during the Year:

B WG

REEENAEREMAR

RABER201656 AR REF MK ([R
BEE)ARESENAESRIEFEANE
BERAEE AR (FR2016F7 A BEBEK ) o

TREBAFERBESENMGRIED E
ASFEAZEERAINREER

Remaining Injected Remaining

to be for the to be

Capital injected as at year ended injected as at

Structure 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2022

R2021F  REZE2022F R2022F

3A31H 3A31H 3A31H

Source of Fund (HK$'000) EERR(THET) EREER XA EEEEA EEEA
Subscription of JV Shares by ARARBELERARN

the Company (51%) of HK$60,000,000 60,000,000 7T251% 30,600 - - -

Subscription of JV Shares by Fullshare L REA % 1 57

(49%) of HK$60,000,000 60,000,000/ 7T 49% 29,400 - - -

Shareholder’s loan from the Company ~ REARRARIHRE S 69,400 34,910 - 34,910
Controling Shareholder’s loan from RENTEOERREER

Genwealth 58,280 58,280 - 58,280

187,680 93,190 - 93,190
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OPERATING RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 141 to 142 of this annual report. The details of the reserves
of the Group and the Company during the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 145 and note
41 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2022 were approximately HK$635.0 million. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, subject to the provisions
of memorandum of association of the Company or the articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), the Company’s share
premium account may be applied to pay distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date of
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movement in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 26 September 2022 to Thursday,
29 September 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
23 September 2022.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The AGM of the Company will be held on 29 September 2022 and

the notice of AGM will be published and dispatched to Shareholders
of the Company in due course.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 272 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
and redeemed any of the Shares during the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group’s total charitable donations for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$83,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The followings are the percentage of sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers of the Group for the Year:

Sales

— the largest customer 7.6%
— the five largest customers 29.6%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 41.9%
— the five largest suppliers 58.7%

During the Year, none of the Directors, or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the
Directors, hold over 5% of the issued share capital of the Company,
had any beneficial interest in the major customers or suppliers of the
Group noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Ms. Tian Shanshan (Appointed on 1 December 2021)

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Suspension of duties with effect from
16 June 2020 and retired on 29 September 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Pursuant to Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the number
required) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. In addition, code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code
also stipulates that each Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Ms. Tian Shanshan and Mr. Lee Luk Shiu will be
retired at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will be available
for re-election as Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three independent non-executive Directors pursuant
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they are
independent.
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BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 26 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each service
contract is for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the Company or the
Director giving to the other not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company under which each of them is
appointed for a period of one year.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have any service
agreement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other
than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required to be disclosed, under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long Position in Shares and the Underlying Shares R4~ 51 8% 19 R (BB IR 19 19

of the Company #r
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity Shares held options held (Note 3)
P ¥ Aotk
EsnR 14 R&HEE BREHE (B5E3)
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 8,385,000 8,125,000 1.51%
Z TR E BB A
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 5,223,000 5,885,000 1.02%
Ao B s (et 1)
Interest of a controlled corporation and 554,242,000 - 50.76%
family interest (Note 2)
REHAE R KK R (i sE2)
567,850,000 14,010,000 53.29%
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 5,223,000 5,885,000 1.02%
AEEXL EnfEEA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 8,385,000 8,125,000 1.51%
BB e (MHaE1)
Interest of a controlled corporation and 554,242,000 - 50.76%
family interest (Note 2)
RiEGEE R R kR (HFE2)
567,850,000 14,010,000 53.29%

Note 1:  Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. Each of  BiE1: DR EABBEL L 2B - ALt

Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore deemed to be RIEFFRATRD  ZPTRERBE
interested in the underlying Shares held by each other under the SFO. TR BN E T FHERE R (5 P
B o

Note 2:  Genwealth is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and M2 : $TESRIBEEATTAENEESL+ER

10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Accordingly, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. HHIO%RI10%EzZ - ALt - BRIBFHF R

Kwan Lai Man are deemed to be interested in the 554,242,000 Shares HEEG 2T R ERBEBREZ TS

held by Genwealth under the SFO. BT E R A 8)554,242,000% A% 17 + #
B o

Note 3: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at 31 73 1 ZBEDLLJIER2022F3A31HHE %17
March 2022 (i.e. 1,091,796,000 shares). B3 (B11,091,796,000A% A7) 5t & »
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Long Position in Genwealth, an Associated
Corporation of the Company

RAQBEEEEITE PRFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
P BAFR
EENE 54 BHEE Bk
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 36,000 90%
TR E ExnEAA
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 4,000 10%
BB EmEA A
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive B FXAIIRBEEIN MBS EH AN T T

of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions therein that they shall
be deemed to have pursuant to such provisions of the SFO), or
any interests or short positions which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or any interests or short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, so far as it is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons, not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had, or were deemed
or taken to have an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

120 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

BITHRA BRAR RS E AR AEH AR (F
ERBEMHEKEMEXVE) 2% - 1
RN EEEFEEEARBEESFREE
RBIEXVERET R8BS AR 7] R B AL
iz AAEES AR (BEREESFRPE
BHBRGRXESEER AR 2 BEIX
B)  AIREESREAEGHIEIS2ERLA
KRB AFEFEZERMAZEMERES
KA KR ETRAINEE T E . BT
BOANESHTEHFR G ZBRESTRAN
EARRNE KRR T2 A THERIAE o

FTERRRAXBNRMDRE
ERMHEER AR

R2022%F3A31H * MEEXARRIEETT
BABFTA  UTAL(WIEEEHARA
FETHRAB)BRARRRD RKIEBRHD
HHEARIEREEHRERBERES RPE
GBI EXVEBFE2 X3P 2B Z & XA M AR R]
WENEZIAE @ HERHENRAQF AR
BEAELHEERNEIB6KEE 2 B2
BmAR  AAEMBEERNARTR
B ZFTE R RSOR R

Annual Report 2021/2022



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

B WG

Long Position in Shares RROFNEFE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Shares held interest (Note 2)
Fr¥s Bk
‘| A 14 RGEE )
Genwealth Beneficial owner 554,242,000 50.76%
= EnfBA
Viewforth Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%
BEmEA A1)
Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%
EERERAR AT EE R (1)
Magnolia Wealth International Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%
Limited EE R ()
Ji Changqun Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%
=5 EE R (1)
Note 1:  The 250,000,000 Shares are held by Viewforth Limited, a Company  Fi#E1 : 5%250,000,0008% % 5 /o 2 1E ik A

which is wholly owned by Fullshare Holdings Limited, which in tumn is
owned as to approximately 38.69% by Magnolia Wealth International
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Ji Changqun. Ji Changqun
also directly owns approximately 4.62% of Fullshare Holdings Limited.

Note 2:  This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at 31

March 2022 (i.e. 1,091,796,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, so far as it is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, there was no other person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

R Aal% B %A 2 A" Viewforth Limited
A - mMERERERAFBMagnolia
Wealth International Limited# A& #738.69%
##E 2= + Magnolia Wealth International
Limited B ZFE SR 2 EHE - TEHNTEE
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective associates nor was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
their respective associates to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in
this report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 25 September
2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme under the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
the contribution of certain employees, executives or officers
of the Group made or will make to the growth of the Group
and/or the listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period
from 25 September 2014 to 15 October 2014, after which no
further options will be granted. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one Share. The total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 24,640,000 Shares, representing 3.1% of total number
of Shares in issue as at 30 September 2014. The offer of a
grant of share options shall be accepted when the offer letter
has been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has
been paid by the grantee.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The exercise price per option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.826, being 30% discount of the offering price
per Share in the initial public offer on 16 October 2014.

During the Year, no option was granted, no option was
forfeited and no option was exercised. Details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s

prospectus dated 30 September 2014.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

during the Year:

B WG

BRAHEEBREFEETS
MERENITEEAR0.8268TT ' &
2014F 1016 B B X AFEE TR
DEEEEHTEI0% °

RAFE  UTEBRECERY - &
BRED SRR EERED EITE -
BRAARABENBRETESZFHFBE
RARG HEA2014F9A30H 2

REIZAWEE -

TEEBRAERREERAHEE
BB AR A 2T B 2 A A T AR A ¢
2T

Exercise Asat Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name price per 1 April during during during 31 March
of participant Date of grant share  Exercise period 2021 theYear  theYear  the Year 2022
BRBRG 20215 #2022
SEENERIALE ReAH ke 58 4818 ERRY  FRRW  FRTR 3A31A
HK$
BT
Directors
2
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2018-24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
2 p e 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2019-24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
5,440,000 - - - 5,440,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2018-24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
BETAL 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2019-24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000
Employees
&8
Employees at aggregate  25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2019-24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
EE(GH)
288,000 - - - 288,000
Total 8,928,000 - > - 8,928,000
53
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B

(2) Share Option Scheme

124

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may
make to the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and attract, retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 16 October 2014,
after which no further options will be issued. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of
the Shares), unless approved by the shareholders in general
meeting (the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time). No option
may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options already granted or to
be granted to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant exceeding 1% in aggregate of the Shares in
issue as at the date of such grant. The offer of a grant of share
options shall be accepted when the offer letter has been duly
signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been paid by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the acceptance of the offer
of share options.

(2) BIRESTE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Eligible Participants include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company beneficially owned
by any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group
or an Affiliate.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day; (i) an
amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option; and (i) the nominal value of the Share on
the date of grant.

During the Year, no option was granted, no option was forfeited
and no option was exercised. Details of the Share Option
Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 30 September 2014.

B WG
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B

The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s TREENAFERIEBRERT S
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during 2 A RHE A Ry 2
the Year:
Exercise As at Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April during during during 31 March
participant Date of grant share  Exercise period 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2022
sk #2021 #2022
SRENBRRLE REAH k@ s 4818 HRRL  HARW  BRfGR 3A3MA
HKS
oy
Directors
2
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
2RIyt 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2017-2110/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 3110/2019-2/10/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
211122017 142 21/12/2019-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2020-20/12/2027 432,000 - - - 432,000
2,685,000 - - - 2,685,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
BETAL 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2144 3110/2017-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 3110/2019-2/10/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2019-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
2111212017 1412 21/12/2020-20/12/2027 432,000 - - - 432,000
2,685,000 - - - 2,685,000
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o

Exercise As at Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April during during during 31 March
participant Date of grant share  Exercise period 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2022
SRk #2021 #2022
SRENERIGHE REHAH TEE 8 4818 HRRL  HARW  BRGR 3A3MA
HKS
oy
Employees

]
Employees at aggregate  28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 90,000 - - - 90,000
EE(AH) 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 120,000 - - - 120,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2017-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2018-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2019-17/11/2026 36,000 - - - 36,000
300,000 - - - 300,000

Consultant

BR
Consultant 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
B 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 240,000 - - - 240,000
600,000 - - - 600,000
Total 6,270,000 - - - 6,270,000

@it
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2022, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographies of members of the senior management as at the
date of this annual report are disclosed in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. Pursuant
to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code with effect
from 1 January 2022), the emoluments of the senior management
(excluding Directors) for the year ended 31 March 2022 are within
the following bands:

B WG

RAFHRAH  SREEEKENBEER
AEFREZEERSREERE | —HHFE - BIE
&SP R Z ST AME X EB. 1.5 (H 20224 1
A1BEBREEHFRRACE TR ZTAEX
FEALK)  BE2022%F3A31R ILFE -
SREEETEEER) ZHFMN TUTE
:

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (HK$) SN E (BT A
2022 2021
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ Z%1,000,000/%8 7T 3 3

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary
or other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he
or she may incur or sustain or about the execution of their duties in
their respective offices. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of the
relevant legal actions against the Directors.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules since the date of the Listing to 31 March
2022.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Controlling Shareholders, including the company wholly owned
by each of them respectively, have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the deed of non-competition have been
complied with by the Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please see the “Corporate Governance Report” set out on pages
85 to 111 of this annual report for details of its compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire as auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and a resolution for its re-appointment will be proposed at the said
meeting. Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditors
during the past three years.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business are set out in the note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of which constitutes
a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS
OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company did not have disclosure
obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

130
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any significant event that has occurred
after 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this annual report which
requires disclosure.

ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report is printed in English and Chinese and is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk under
the “Listed Company Information” and our Company’s website at
www.hinsanggroup.com. Printed copies in both languages are
posted to Shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Pang Siu Hin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
¥ 57 A% B R

BT A EHTE R A
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
141 to 271, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

132

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street EITH115%
Central B i Ei5

Hong Kong EETITKREINE

BOTEEEEBRZERARAA
EBRR
(RASHEAMH L2 R A])

=z
z§\

EEEERENFI141BEEF27T1ENTE
EE(EB)ZRER 2B (EARD REK
BRRI(HBIEEEDNGEMBHRE - B
e IER20224F3 31 HH4R W?ﬁkﬂ
X BEZHIEFEMNGREER &Hwi
HREER GEEaZHREGEHEENR
X UREEMBRERME %I%
DETBRBEE -

E/\’/\'—I%

EER REMBRRCBRESES
%“Aﬁﬁﬁ FEIIA Ebﬁ%m§%%%
HELER(BBHBREENDEEMAR
iﬂz&ﬂﬂ% E £ EMN2022F3 A31 B4R E
BRARBZEZALEFE BE£BNGE
ﬂﬁ%%fﬁﬂ/ﬁ;éﬁﬁ%/mi I BB RES
NGB BRREZARER -

RREE

EECRBEEBSHMASHEMNES
ZEA) ((BABZERNDETEZ - TS
EREETAENETEERREZH
ﬁ%%&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#%f&kﬁﬂ%
— B - REFE S ASEMAL
<§%:u+% EFAD (=PRI - EEB
W E&EH - ie%ﬁ?%#%ﬁ@%%
EEEMT - EFMHGE EEMESHER
%%%ﬁﬁ&mmm  EEMNEZERR
AR o

ZANE==S

D

$

Annual Report 2021/2022



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$13,105,000 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and, as of
that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$125,949,000. As stated in note 2, these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B 37 4% B e

Key audit matter

BARELER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

¥ BERREUREHEEENBETE

Refer to notes 17 and 18 in the consolidated financial
statements.

FE2HE AU BHRRMEI7TRI8

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets were approximately HK$362,371,000 and
HK$230,204,000 respectively. The Group incurred a net
loss during the year ended 31 March 2022 as a result of
the negative impact from the continued and prolonged
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Management concluded
that there was impairment indication and conduced a
review of the recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2022.
20226 3HA31H - EBEXEWE  KBERREN
REAEEENREMED AL A362,371,0008 7T &
230,204,000/87C - BEENEE202243A31H 1L
EEAFER - DHR2019BRASEBFE R REH
BRENBETEMY - EBERS - N2022F3H31H
FEREDR  WEHDE BELRIKBANEREEE
BRIl O e FEETTER o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNIBRAREZEE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets included:

EEEAYE  BEREREARERBEEENRER
HEFELE -

Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional valuers engaged by the
management;
HHEREMERNELABREXMGLEMN
BERE e h REHIE

Assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and assessing the impairment
assessment methodology adopted with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

Bk EREEENRENGERN - BREFNG
EREBMNNRETR R2ERITEFERDN
R IE ALAG P ER AR BB AT AR 0%

Assessing management’s identification of CGUs
and the allocation of assets to each CGU with
reference to our understanding of the Group’s
business and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

S2EEEZY BEEEXBNTHRERTEIE
AMHRE - FIEEEEEREEEEURA
MERTEXBUMNEEDE
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Key audit matter

BARELER

Management assessed whether there was any impairment
of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2022 using
value-in-use calculations or fair value less cost of
disposal. Preparing the value-in-use calculations requires
management to exercise significant judgement, particularly
in relation to revenue forecasts, gross profit margin and
discount rates. Preparing the fair value valuation requires
management to exercise significant judgement including
selection of comparable sales information available in the
relevant market.
ERERAEREBEAERRTFEREEXATEY
X BERREBAREREEEN202243 431 HH K
HESSEEMRE wREDEEFEFTEEEEE
HEARAE  CHEABRATEAL - EFERAREK -
MEANTEGBETEEBITEEAHE - 215 EEARRD
TSR R LLIHE &R o

We identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as a key
audit matter due to significant judgements and critical
assumptions applied by management in the impairment
assessment.

EEHNYE  BEREBAREREZERNREN G
RERAREZFEDENEEBETRENGKER
BARH G LR ERR

E

M o7 % B e

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNIBRAREZEE

° Checking on a sampling basis, the mathematical
accuracy of the calculations of the valuation; and

o  REREMEAENBEERE X

° Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to
assess the appropriateness of the methodology
used and reasonableness of the key assumptions
made.

s ZEHEZERBEBRMMEAAIEZNEEIE
NAEL AR ERRAEIEMN -
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B 37 4% B e

Key audit matter

BARELER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 BRI R e

Refer to note 23 in the consolidated financial statements.
B2 E MR FE2S -

As at 31 March 2022, the gross carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$14,777,000 and allowance for credit losses amounted
to approximately HK$2,373,000.

202246 3A31H © BHXREMNEFHEWFIAKREARE
#)/R14,777,0008 T REEBEBEEL /2,373,00078
I e

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement and
estimates by management in determining the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for the Group’s trade receivables.
EEMRAREIRUCRIENRENEREAREZEETD
HREREEET E£EZEZRUKENAREEER
(TR E E B 1R ) s R 38 A I S (st -

Management estimated the amount of lifetime ECL for
trade receivables based on provision matrix. Estimated
loss rates are based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without cost
or effect.
EREENBBRERMTESRKFIBBNFERARGE
EEBEE% MiBAEDERNEBABRREFHRNZE
SERENX  WREBEHFANHKAIEIMAGEEZ
AIREMEERIEITRE -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNIBRAREZEE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

EEAREZRUGIERENGHNREF B

Obtaining an understanding of how management
assesses the ECL for trade receivables;
ERMEREBNAFHRESREKFIBZEREE
Eia

Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including ageing analysis of trade receivables, on
a sample basis, by comparing individual items in
the analysis with the relevant sales invoices; and
MAEEREH EREERMERZERZTE
1t BREFHEUFIEZRKRST - KR
ER oM EREE BEFANHEEERETH
R

Assessing management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables, the reasonableness of management’s
grouping of the trade receivables into different
categories in the provision matrix, and the basis
of estimated loss rates applied in each category
in the provision matrix (with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information).
AHEREETESRWNEZ EEERREG
e EER HE - BEEHE S EERIAR A
BEEETTIRENNEEYE  RERERER
TR B BRIFER A ERR EE(BRERS
BHRLATEEER) o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

M o7 % B e
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

BB F RS M IR
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

B F
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: PO5769

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 1 46 o B B il 4 1 U 4 R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #2022 3A31H I F/Z

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FHT
Revenue ON 6 120,546 119,441
Cost of sales SHE KA (51,471) (50,648)
Gross profit EF 69,075 68,793
Other income E A 8 7,155 3,903
Other gains and losses e & Ei8 9 10,106 (357)
Selling and distribution expenses HER DAY (6,839) (10,962)
Administrative expenses THRAX (78,069) (87,009)
Finance costs BE A A 10 (12,846) (11,040)
Loss before tax BRELRIEE (11,418) (36,672)
Income tax expense FrEBiAx 11 (1,687) (174)
Loss for the year FAEER 12 (13,105) (36,846)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Ha2m@EAXR), WA
income
Item that will not be reclassified B TEEHN D EE B
to profit or loss: mIEE -
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets & AFEFAEMEE
at fair value through other WA EBEELRTE
comprehensive income (B8, W= (10,065) 7,444
Item that may be reclassified HEMEET L BEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz ZHE -
Exchange differences on translating MBS TS 2 [,
foreign operations =X 5,395 11,791
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FREMEEEX), WA
income for the year (4,670) 19,235
Total comprehensive expense FRAETHMAXEHE
for the year (17,775) (17,611)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

o 1H i e LAt % i U A R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #2022 3H31H IF FZ

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Lz FET FHT
Loss for the year UTELFEEFRNES
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company S /NEIEZ =N (11,910) (31,950)
- Non-controlling interests — JEFERRAE 5 (1,195) (4,896)
(13,105) (36,846)
Total comprehensive expense A& LELFEAZE
for the year attributable to: Bk #aEE
— Owners of the Company S /NEIE Z= N (16,684) (14,210)
- Non-controlling interests — JEFERR A RS (1,091) (3,401)
(17,775) (17,611)
Loss per share BRER 15
- Basic (HK cents) - EARGE) (1.09) (2.93)
- Diluted (HK cents) - g (B (1.09) (2.93)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
#a A1 B 5 IR Dl

AT 31 MARCH 2022  R202243H31H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e e 17 362,371 360,414
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 230,204 242 939
Investment properties REME 19 10,243 10,523
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEFABER
profit or loss SREE 20 6,029 5,806
Deposits for acquisition of property, WM - BERS&EZ
plant and equipment By 17 1,530
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFERAEMEE
other comprehensive income WARNERIE E 21 19,757 28,780
Deferred tax assets EIERIRE 30 389 371
629,010 650,363
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 22 27,258 20,091
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M REW IR 23 19,413 18,741
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERABRA
profit or loss EREE 20 3,182 2,905
Tax refundable ARER AR 513 616
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIR 24 14,395 15,143
64,761 57,496
Assets classified as held for sale DEAERIERNENEE 25 = 3,958
64,761 61,454
Total assets EEH#E 693,771 711,817
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E A e FRIE 26 49,626 39,770
Contract liabilities sHaE 27 18,615 5,673
Bank borrowings IRITIE R 28 119,108 116,308
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 967 2,499
Current tax liabilities BIEARE 1B & 18 2,394 620
190,710 164,870
Net current liabilities REBAEFHE (125,949) (103,416)
Total assets less current liabilites ~ EEAERRBAM 503,061 546,947
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A o1 B 5 IR Dl %

AT 31 MARCH 2022 20224 3H31H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank borrowings RITHE 28 199,508 220,537
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 1,325 6,156
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE 30 428 679
201,261 227,372
Net assets BEEFE 301,800 319,575
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital [N 31 109,180 109,180
Reserves fEE 192,414 208,929
Amounts recognised in other O EL A 2 T R A FERR I Y
comprehensive income and e Rt B B AIFE
accumulated in equity relating to non- HERNERDEENSTE
current assets classified as held for sale - 169
Equity attributable to owners of RAEEE AL
the Company = 301,594 318,278
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M A 206 1,297
Total equity ERmE 301,800 319,575

F1MBEEFT1EFH 2GR BRERE
R2022F6 A28 EE =it L IRET
% WHUTRRESE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 141 to 271 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
E20% 0] BEX
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN
Amount
recognised
as other
Foreign comprehensive
currency Share income for Non-
Share Share  Merger Revaluation  franslation  options Retained assets controlling
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  profits  heldforsale Subtotal interests Total
REELE
BERZA
H2ERA

RE  RGEE AHRE EMEE MBERRE BRERE REE He® G FERER &5
HK§000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000 HK§000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén T TEn Thn Tér  TEr  TEn Tén TR TEn TEn
(Note 31) (Note)

(W&31) (D)
At 1 April 2020 202054718 109,180 705890 (71,463 (449,160) (16,650) 8,831 45,739 - 332367 4698 337,065
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - I - BI04 (B84
Other comprehensive income for the year EREBZEUA
Fair value gain on financial assets at fai BATETAEBZERAN
value through other comprehensive income SREAEATENE - - = 7444 = = = - 744 - T4
Exchange differences on translating foreign BENEER/ERER
operations - - - - 10,296 - - - 1029 149% 11,791
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRIEERES - - - 7444 10,296 - (31,950) - (42100 (B4on) (f7610)
Recognition of equity-setfled share-based! ElRREEN RN AERY
payments 3 - - S S = 121 = = 121 = 121
Transfer upon classfication of non-curent assets  RIFRBNEENEARELE
as assets held for sale BEkER - = = (169) = = - 169 = = =
At 31 March 2021 #2021%3A31H 109,180 705890 (71463 (441,885 6,354) 8952 13789 169 318278 1,297 319575
Loss for the year EnEE - - - = = - (11910) - (119100 (1,195 (13,105)
Other comprehensive (expense)income for EREM2EER,/ WA
the year
Fair value loss on financial assets a fair BATETARBZERAN
value through other comprehensive income SREELTESR = = = (10,065) = = = - (10,065) - (10,065
Exchange differences on translating foreign BENEERCELER
operations - - - - 5,291 - - - 5,291 104 5,305
Total comprehensive expense for the year EREERRER = = = (10,065) 5,291 - (11910 - (16684 (1,001 (17,775)
Transfer upon disposal of non-current RLEABARELEL
assets classified as held for sale FREEERER = = S 2 = = 169 (169) - - -
At 31 March 2022 H202E3R318 109,180 705890  (71,463)  (451,950) (1,063) 8,952 2,048 - 301,5% 206 301,800
Note: The merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital  HfisE : AHtHEHREREEBEHAAR R MR AEA
of the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of other SEETHMARRANBSEGEHEEER
companies comprising the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation, AARIERER) 2 FBERE -

after elimination of intra-group investments.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i 7 Bl B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #2022 3H31H It FZ

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities BRETHMEBEERE
Loss before tax R A B 1R (11,418) (36,672)
Adjustments for: ERTISERAE :
Finance costs BB KA 12,846 11,040
Interest income FBUA (120) 97)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BE &&E W=
plant and equipment (1,251) -
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESEARELHEERE
as held for sale Z e (8,221) =
Share-based payment expenses VARR D RERN SR = 121
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZTE 7,952 10,376
Depreciation of property, Y - BERREITE
plant and equipment 12,437 10,907
Gain on fair value change of BRATESABGNEREELZ
financial assets at fair value through N EEB WS
profit or loss (518) (619)
Loss/(Gain) on fair value change of WEMHEZ RN EE
investment properties &iE, () 719 (11)
Impairment loss recognised on trade RNE SRV IBEREREE
receivables under expected credit loss EEENIB T 2 REBE
model 113 1,063
Gain on lease termination I FHE W (263) =
Gain on lease modification RGNl - 67)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B AR 2 W (16) =
Gain arising from use of trademark FEAREEE 2 KE (1,042) -
Operating cash flows before movements LBEEEHHI 2 KE
in working capital REM=E 11,218 (3,959)
Decrease /(Increase) in inventories FERAD, /(35 m) 1,855 (3,556)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and B 5 & H b fE U FRIE (3 ),
other receivables A (501) 25,730
Decrease in financial assets at BEAFEFABRNSH
fair value through profit or loss BERD 18 154
Decrease in trade and E 5 R H A FKIB
other payables Ve (1,129) (5,948)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities BHEEEEmMm,w 12,636 (3,884)
Cash generated from operations KEEBMSIRS 24,097 8,537
Income tax refunded R EIFTSH 571 2,351
Income tax paid EFEH (676) (238)
Net cash generated from KEEBMISIR S FE
operating activities 23,992 10,650
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i BB R R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMEBEERE
Interest received =S 120 97
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  BEEEXERE
plant and equipment KIE 4,667 -
Purchases of property, plant and BEME - BE &K
equipment (343) (62,342)
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified HEDEAFIELENEE
as held for sale FriS 18 12,098 =
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WEmE  BEEREBEZENEZS
plant and equipment - (1,470)
Increase in restricted bank balances S PR I $R 1T A5 BRI AN (1,346) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEFR(FTR)BESFE
investing activities 15,196 (63,715)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETEHMERERE
Interest paid ERF A (12,846) (12,384)
New bank loans raised MEBLIRITER 61,184 132,191
Repayments of bank loans ERIBITERK (88,617) (62,055)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHERAE (1,387) (2,410)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEB(ATA) FIBEEFHE
financing activities (41,666) 55,342
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRASEEYORD) &
cash equivalents FE (2,478) 2,277
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNREMREFEY
the beginning of year 15,143 12,428
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes ~ [ER&EhF & 384 438
Cash and cash equivalents at FRNEESRESEEY
the end of year 13,049 15,143
Representing: &
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 14,395 15,143
Less: restricted bank balances B ZIRHIIRTT R (1,346) =
13,049 15,143
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fs o1 B 5 A [ L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #2022 3H31H It FZ

1.

148

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its parent and ultimate parent is Genwealth Group Holding
Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing,
selling and distributing of personal care products, healthcare
products and household products as well as provision of
Chinese medical healthcare related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“‘HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$13,105,000
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and, as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$125,949,000. These conditions indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In view of these circumstances and the impact of COVID-19,
the Group has been continuously implementing measures
to improve its profitability and operating performance and to
mitigate the liquidity pressure. These measures include (1)
implementing business strategies to enhance the production
efficiency of the Group’s own brand products and aiming to
reduce the product cost by self-production, (2) continuing its
measures to control administrative and operating costs, and (3)
looking for other sources of finance including equity financing
to enhance the capital structure and reduce the overall finance
costs.

With respect to the Group’s bank financing, the Group
maintains continuous communication with its principal banks.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had unutilised banking
facilities of approximately HK$48,100,000. The Directors are
not aware of any intention of the principal banks to withdraw
their banking facilities or require early repayment of the bank
borrowings. Taking into account the good track record and
relationships with the banks and the fair value of the pledged
properties, the Directors believe that the Group will be able to
renew the banking facilities upon maturity dates.

The Directors have assessed the Group’s cash flow projections
cover a period of not less than twelve months from 31
March 2022. The key factors that are taken into account
by management in the cash flow projections include the
anticipated cash flows from the Group’s operations, capital
expenditures, continuous availability of banking facilities and
the impact of COVID-19. The Group’s ability to achieve the
projected cash flows depends on management’s ability to
successfully implement the aforementioned improvement
measures on profitability and liquidity and the continuous
availability of banking facilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
expected renewals of the bank borrowings and the unutilised
banking facilities, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31
March 2022. Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, - Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (continueq)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Sale or Gontribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended
Use'

Onerous Contracts = Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (continueq)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continuead)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions
is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 and investment properties
which continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b)
the most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment
of whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in circumstances during
the reporting period.

Refund liabilities
The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects

to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.

4,

FESTHER®

EREHWAE

AHBEEREAEBERELPERE RN
REZET MAEBEREERAE
FURBAB(HEHHTKERES
) ©

HERSNEHENEGHNEERANE
BERFREEARNZTD -

THAE

RESAEKENSHNME » A5HE
FERATNER —BAGFAREE
RUWERHKESE  (FEHEEENK
(o)ZB AN SRR FARBRTERE
ERAXKESREDMNKESEM

=

TE) °

ERERATERERE I TRERE
BERERR - HESBERETEEH
EAWm B - f#EREZAE
AR AR SER °

RS HR $’$IE¥M$#§%
Fﬂ(\ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ—f EREEF R
xBEZnJHE) \;}iﬁﬁ&#&iﬁﬁﬂiz
/R&#&iﬁﬁWZ\ NEE)

Ed=

§'¥
.
Al

1ﬁz]s$.ﬁﬁg L@?ﬁé%}fl&ﬁﬂﬁ’]*ﬁ
Iﬁﬁﬁftﬁﬁi ! /EJJZ’K%.EED/IL\

F o

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B ok MRk
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange for
dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the following:

(@) revenue for the transferred products in the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
(therefore, revenue would not be recognised for the
products expected to be returned/exchanged);

(b) arefund liability/contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales)
for its right to recover products from customers and are
presented as right to returned goods asset.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly
or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year,
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments
to be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payments
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified as
right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the
Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
A leased property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset
is derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor classifies
the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

4,

FESTHER®

REW=

REMEEFERDAES R HER
THEZ!ME -

BREMENBRENAEERELEHE
EPHALERREAEEENHEED
#,

BREMENTERAN (BREMERE
HRAX)FTE - RPHERE - RED
ERHERNFEFE  #HE/TERIME
AN KETELEHERA - KED
ERVEHEIFEEZ BHEHEER
HEAME AB= -

BREMERHEIKAE LERRRA
ARSI R &R EERREE S
B FLARILRER - A KE(ERT
MHEEAN B E I BR—HREM
g AMRSERAREENHEDE
RILTER - RILERZMERELEZ
EAIR S B8 (IR E TS SIS R
HZEEZRMEZRAE)NZYE
MR 2 B AEF AR -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B ok MRk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

U the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Financial instruments (Continuead)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

U)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuead)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iiiy  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

M

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #2022 3H31H It FZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(o) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(i) ~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)y the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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5.

19

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory
items. Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
based on ageing of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
are disclosed in note 39.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the recoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6. REVENUE 6. WA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue: ATAREE Z WA :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Sales of goods HEEm 118,938 118,413
Provision of healthcare services TR AR AR TS 1,608 1,028
120,546 119,441
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts i) BEFEHNWADF
with customers
For the year ended 31 March 2022 B Z202263A31HLFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development ~ Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total
Em mERR Em
BRI REELS HEMN  RESB CH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Segments 23 TET TET TET T T
Type of goods or services EmREER
Sales of healthcare products REERHEE 79,622 = 158 = 79,780
Sales of personal care products  TIAEEEREE 36,635 1,070 130 = 37,835
Sales of household products REEMHEE 1,020 281 22 = 1,323
Healthcare service REER% = = = 1,608 1,608
Total aat 117,217 1,351 310 1,608 120,546
Geographical markets it
Hong Kong, China hEEA 70,265 1,343 310 54 72,459
Mainland China HE R 47,012 8 = 1,067 48,087
Total At 117,217 1,351 310 1,608 120,546
Timing of revenue recognition  FERRULA KB5S
Anpoint in time EEBE 117,217 1,351 310 1,608 120,546
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

6. REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

6. WA

(i) BEEEHNWADIFE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE2021F3A31HIEFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
Em migm%E B

REDH REBAY  BENH  BESH At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segments P FHL FHL FHL FHL FHL
Type of goods or services ERRREER
Sales of healthcare products REERHE 96,533 = 348 = 96,881
Sales of personal care products  TAEEEREE 18,306 1,634 9% = 20,035
Sales of household products REEMBEE 1,111 340 46 = 1,497
Healthcare service REER - = = 1,028 1,028
Total EE 115,950 1,974 489 1,028 119,441
Geographical markets [ty
Hong Kong, China REEA 60,793 1,074 489 8 64,004
Mainland China HE R 55,157 - - 280 55,437
Total CH 115,950 1,974 489 1,028 119,441
Timing of revenue recognition TSR A KBS
A point in time EEMHY 115,950 1,974 489 1008 119441

SRR TR A 4 R B R B R A
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

200

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

Sales of healthcare products, personal care products
and household products

The Group sells healthcare products, personal care
products and household products to retailers and
distributors and directly to customers both through its
retail outlets and through online sales.

For sales of goods to retailers and distributors, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to their specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the retailers and
the distributors have full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, have the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
The normal credit term is O to 75 days upon delivery.

For sales of goods to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.

For online sales, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred to the customer, being
at the point the goods are delivered to the customer.
Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location. When the customer
initially purchases the goods online, the transaction price
received by the Group is recognised as a contract liability
until the goods have been delivered to the customer.

6. WA
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Healthcare service

The Group provides mother-infant Chinese medical
healthcare service. Generally, the Group charges one-off
healthcare service fee based on an agreed pricing for a
specific healthcare service. Revenue from providing this
healthcare service is recognised at a point in time when
the services are rendered.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. Specifically, the
Group’s reportable and operating segments under “HKFRS 8
Operating Segments” are as follows:

1. Product Development Segment — sales of products
developed by the Group under own brands

2. Brand Development and Management Segment — sales
and distribution of products with exclusive distribution
rights

3. Trading of Goods Segment — sales and distribution of
products purchased from authorised dealers, independent
traders, manufacturers or parallel importers

4.  Healthcare Segment — development of mother and child
related health products, medical center and related
services

6.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2022

7. DEHER®

DEPRA R RE

To B dE REE D & 0 A

SEBARZENDN ©

B ZE2022F3831BLLEE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development ~ Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total
Em IS Em
BN REESYB EESB  RESY &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TER TEr TEr TEr TEr
Revenue KA
External sales HMEE 1,351 310 1,608 120,546
Segment profit/(oss) A&/ (BR) 123 (379) (3,191) (2,661)
Interest income T ON 120
Gain on disposal of assets classiied ~ HESBABELEEEL
as held for sale Wiz 8,221
Gain on fair value change of financial  IRATFET ABHENLREE
assets at fair value through profit LATVEES 2 e
or loss 518
Gain arising from use of rademark ~ FRAZES 7 Wia 1,042
Finance costs AN (12,846)
Unallocated expenses RARFZ (5,812)
Loss before tax BREAES (11,418)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

7.

DEER @)
DEBW AR EE (B

HZE2021E3A318 ILFE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
Em miE R Em
RENE REENH  BEAB  EEND At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Revenue A
External sales BOMEE 115,950 1,074 489 1028 119,441
Segment profit/(loss) P/ (ER) (16,796) 293 140 (4,402) (20,765)
Interest income IS HA 97
Gain on fair value change of financial AT Bz ABH
assets at fair value through profit SRHEEZATE
orloss 28 Wn 619
Finance costs BER K (11,040)
Unallocated expenses RARFAX (5,583
Loss before tax BRRER (36,672)

There were no sales transactions between operating segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of corporate expenses, gain
on disposal of assets classified as held for sale, gain on fair
value change of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, gain arising from use of trademark, interest income and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Board for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

24

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment.

HER @
PTEEERERE

7. 7

To B HwE REEDH
SEMNEERABNDN -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Segment assets PHEE

Product Development Segment EmRAESH 648,435 655,370

Brand Development and mhE R R EE D EB
Management Segment 222 428
Trading of Goods Segment EmBEEDE 318 335
Healthcare Segment fZER 5 &6 532 2,063
Total segment assets DESEELE 649,507 658,196
Unallocated RoHEL 44,264 53,621
Consolidated assets eEBE 693,771 711,817

Segment liabilities PEEME

Product Development Segment EmAEsE 66,955 44,515

Brand Development and migFREREE D
Management Segment 426 334
Trading of Goods Segment EmEEDES 140 230
Healthcare Segment i BE 73 &P 146 364
Total segment liabilities HEEERRE 67,667 45,443
Unallocated RO 324,304 346,799
Consolidated liabilities re Ak 391,971 392,242
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and tax

refundable.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, lease liabilities, deferred tax
liabilities and current tax liabilities.

Other segment information

DEER @)
THEEREE®

RERDBREA N HEIELER

o).

N

cu

PMEREC PEERE D R
RNFEFARMBEEBRARN S R
BE  RAFEF AR aH) &
BE  SRTEHNMAE  BTR
IREENMREBRRERIN ©

. Pﬁﬁ%ﬁa DI E K E (3R
TER - HERE BEEHAR
ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁl\) 0

Hitt o 8P E R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BIE202263A31HLFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development ~ Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total
Em mERE Em
GRS kEESS BEAN RESH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T T T T T
Amounts included in the measure  FTESH G FlZER
of segment proft or 10ss or PHEERANEE -
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets FRBEENE 10,612 - - 36 10,648
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ [FBEEEZHE 7,937 15 - - 7,952
Depreciation of property, n% - BERZERE
plant and equipment 20,575 17 - 345 20,937
Impairment loss on trade REGTAERNES
recelvables recognised in EUFERESR
profit or loss 113 - - - 113
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE - BE k#R &
plant and equipment k%) /B8 (1,682) = = 431 (1,251)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) DEER =
Other segment information (Continued) Hihp I ER &
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE2021F3A31BILFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
Em miEF% B
FENE REEHH  EEAN RENW At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THEL TAL TAL TAL
Amounts included in the measure  FTEAE G IS E#E
of segment proft or oss or PHEERTANEE -
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets FRYEERE 129,427 31 - 80 129,538
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ [FEEEEZHE 10,379 65 = = 10,444
Depreciation of property, n% - BERZEE
plant and equipment 15,353 36 - 778 16,167
Impairment loss on trade RERTPHRANE S
recelvables recognised in ERFERESR
profit or loss 1,063 - - - 1,063
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. DEER @
Geographical information Hh 15 & R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and AEBRBEBRPBEAMALE SR o
Mainland China.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers EBRASBERBINEEFHBRAER
is presented based on location of the operations. Information RIEEEBHUEBEE D ZEY - BAX
about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial SEFRBEEMTEEESREERE
assets and deferred tax assets) is presented based on the EHIEEE)NERIZEENMIENGE
geographical location of the assets. gD 25 -
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIMBEFHBA FRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FERT FH&TT
Hong Kong, China REE S 72,459 64,004 222,429 237,196
Mainland China H B A i 48,087 55,437 380,406 378,210
120,546 119,441 602,835 615,406
Information about major customers EEFEEFNER
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group'’s HE2022F M2021F3A31HIEF
revenue for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. B BESE-FFEARAEEKA10%
A E o
OTHER INCOME 8. HaA
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Interest income on bank deposits RITIFRFBUA 120 97
Rental income el A 821 217
Government grants K 5 47 B 4,933 2,719
Others Hib 1,281 870
7,155 3,903
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hitlhamz R EE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gain on fair value change of financial A FE ABHAE R
assets at fair value through profit BEZ ATFEEZYH NS
or loss 518 619
(Loss)/Gain on fair value change of WEMEZ R EZE
investment properties (B18), Wz (719) 11
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE¥ - BE MR E
equipment Z Wz 1,251 =
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HE DB AFIEHELE
held for sale 2 WEs 8,221 =
Impairment loss recognised on trade NE F NIRRT
receivables under expected credit FEEBBEEREAXEBET 2
loss model VERIEYEiE! (113) (1,063)
Gain on lease termination RIERE WS 263 -
Gain on lease modification B E WS = 67
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary T35 — BB QA 7 2 Wz 16 =
Gain arising from use of trademark FRAMEEL 2 Wi 1,042 =
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNESF (B518) W (373) 9
10,106 (357)
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. L& BN A
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest expense on bank loans IRITEFRNEMAX 12,689 12,126
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAREMERAX 157 258
Total borrowing costs 1dEE KA 12,846 12,384
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost &, : & &R EERAH
of qualifying assets BRI &R - (1,344)
12,846 11,040
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 March B 220213 A31HILFEEA LA
2021 were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 5.49% fEERARTBBEREEREEMX
per annum to expenditure on qualifying assets. B E ML FEFE5.49%5H & ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. IEHMAX
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Current tax: BIHARIR -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNEH
— Current year - KFEE 2,187 608
— Over provision in prior year - BAFEEERE (198) (662)
1,989 (54)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BT HR
- Current year -REFE 65 12
— Over provision in prior year - BEFERRERE (74) (192)
(9) (180)
Deferred tax (note 30): ERERE 18 (M17E30) ¢
— Current year - RFE (293) 408
Total income tax recognised in RIBEERZ TSR
profit or loss BEE 1,687 174

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

MR2018%F3A21H » EAL AL B
BQO17TERBEUEE]) (B7THR)EHE
R)([EBIER] - 5| AFBHEMK
Hl o &M EZRR2018FE3HA28HEE
RAEERRE  IRBRTE - RIEFE
MEMEH @ AEREEERE2ES
PETT 2 8 M S R B R 8.25% = £+ T
HBiB2H & T2 8 M R E16.5%
R AMHEFEBREMBH 2 EE
BRI HMNBEELRSTE —FHE16.5%
S At AEREEERELF
SN E2E BB TR ERFUEF
1E1R8.25% T K EH - MBE2E &
B TTH ST FE R A A #8512 16.5% /)
R o
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

No provision for taxation has been provided for companies in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands as they are
not subject to any tax during the current and prior years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

25% °

o

1. FiE8EX @

RBHBEREAEHE(EEMEN
BN REXZMAEHRAERGEH -
BHBARNMEFENHREAS

FERBAXHELES
Wt RERTATEEERAT

i

HRAFEREEFERSBEESRE
BRZBESN AR AMNEMH

B B EL % F A R EHR T IR &

Ba R EMEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Loss before tax bR A% A &S 18 (11,418) (36,672)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax BREBNEHRTE16.5%
rate of 16.5% FTEHTIR (1,884) (6,051)
Tax effect of expenses not AT OB
deductible for tax purpose T 56 1,506
Tax effect of income not taxable AR A BB 15
for tax purpose - (1,540) (36)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIBB BN B
recognised wE 9,007 8,143
Utilisation of tax losses not B A ARTE LR AT IE
previously recognised B8 (1,697) (620)
Effect of different tax rates of M REEE AL
subsidiaries operating in other BB A RHE TR B R
jurisdictions MR B (2,577) (2,186)
Over provision in prior year AT EHRERE (272) (854)
Others Hith 594 272
Tax charge for the year FEMIELH 1,687 174
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FREE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): FAEE LM GEA) THEIE
BIZER -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Depreciation of property, Y BERREITE
plant and equipment 20,937 16,167
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEZINE 7,952 10,444
Total depreciation ez 28,889 26,611
Less: amounts capitalised in B ERIEEANMERKIE
construction in progress - (68)
Less: amounts capitalised in B FEENMERIA
inventories (8,500) (5,260)
20,389 21,283
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIXAK(BEEEHS)
emoluments 39,327 45,887
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories & : 17 & &4t ZIA (7,024) (4,905)
32,303 40,982
Cost of inventories recognised as RERZ 2 FEKAER
an expense 36,246 43,409
Auditors’ remuneration % 2B BN & 850 900

Gross rental income from investment &YW ¥ 2 B S UWA
properties (821) (217)
Less: direct operating expenses B EEREKERY 22 64

Net rental income from investment EWEZFHES WA
properties (799) (153)
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

212

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief

executive of the Company were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2022

<=

SHMEnT

B ZE2022F3831BLLEE

13. EERETETHAE

ENKENARRIEZERERTERA

Other emoluments
HitM e
Contributions
Salaries Share- to retirement
and other based benefits
Fees benefits  payments schemes Total
FER BB 5 RUKER
ik HihER ERNEX HE 5 &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THET TR
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note () 2 DA (PR REG) = 2,496 = 23 2,519
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZLL = 2,016 = 23 2,039
Non-executive directors FYTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERTL 180 = = — 180
Ms. Tian Shanshan (Note (i) FR 39 2 B =) 60 = = = 60
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note (i) e ot (. R (1), 2 = = = 90
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FRkEE 240 = = = 240
Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HERELT 180 = = = 180
Mr. Lau Chi Kit Edwin ABHRESE 180 - - - 180
930 4,512 - 46 5,488
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13. EERFETHRAE

EMOLUMENTS (continued) < =)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE2021F3A31B It FE
Other emoluments
Hivde
Contributions
Salaries Share-  to retirement
and other based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
Fek  NURGA RIKEEH
me  HtEN  ERONR ArEIfR G

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TRT TRT TET

Executive directors BTES

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note (i) 0074 () - 2,540 61 76 2,677

Ms. Kwan Lai Man HMEZUL = 2,016 60 77 2,153

Non-executive directors FHITES

Ms. Wong Wai Ling HERLT 180 - - - 180

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note (ii) R A (Bt e (i) 180 - - - 180

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FRkEE 240 - - - 240

Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HEAET 180 - - - 180

Mr. Lau Chi Kit Edwin AEGEE 180 - - - 180
960 4,556 121 153 5,790

Notes: Fff5E -

0] Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the chief executive officer of the Company. 0] EALTRE BN TR TEAES, -

(i)  Appointed on 1 December 2021. [0} 201 F12 51 BER(T -

(i)  Suspension of duties with effect from 16 June 2020 and retired on (i B202046 A 16 H E{=Hki% 17202149 A

29 September 2021, 20HRME -
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13.

14.

214

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments and the independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

None of the Company’s directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2021: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Company’s directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2021:
Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2021: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2021: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

13.

14.

BEERFETHRAE
€ )

EXFRAITETZME EBEHHRK
FHARRRAKREEESHRERZ
IR# o EXFIRIFMITE S KB
HITEFMHS T 2HERFIER/ER
mEFRHE 2R -

FR ARRAESHERZETAHNE
(20214 : #&) o

FAR - AREYTERARBDEFNES
SN - AERBBE AR IALR
£ B 1% & 52 B) sk B BB 47 1B (20214F -
) o

hEBREHFMNES

FR - AEENTEESFTHESR
EWB(2021F « MB)ES + HF
HBEHEN EXHEI13 FREB=Z
(2021%F : =ZR)FARFBEFTREE
TBAEBRE=E MES NS
By

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TFATT

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmER 1,589 1,535
Contributions to retirement RREFIFT I

benefits schemes 48 54

Total emoluments [0} ek G 1,637 1,589
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

14. BB FMNER &=

FMARUTHENEEANESR
SHBEE ABMT -

2022 2021

(Number of (Number of

employees) employees)

(EEAED (BEAZD

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T 3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals of the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

FR - AEETERTANAEERS
ERTMATIAIME  UEARE
A SR A 7S 5 B 18 #) 52 ) ok B B 4
18 (2021%F : &) -

15. EREE

D FHE AR TR ER RS
1B TYEAN TR B18

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Loss 8
Loss for the purpose of basic and AU ESRER
diluted loss per share (Loss for NEEEE  Bia
the year attributable to owners of (RRTHEE AR
the Company) =R EE) (11,910) (31,950)
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15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 15. BREE @)
2022 2021
’000 000
F & F A&
Number of shares RBEE

Weighted average number of ordinary  Fl A ST & B AR EAS K #58
shares for the purpose of basic and B8 2 B R AR N 19 8

diluted loss per share 1,091,796 1,091,796

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended @i2022¢ &2021F3H31HIEF
31 March 2022 and 2021 does not assume the conversion of B sEEREFEBELEBRAR
the Company’s outstanding share options since their assumed Gl lﬁ RITEBRECDEER  BH
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share. RFBATE S BEREERD -

16. DIVIDENDS 16. IR E
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders HZE2022F3A31HIEFE » AAF]
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022, nor 7 #8% [m) 3 38 IR AR SRR fF 3k s IR A
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting ARE - NEEZER RS HRIKAE
period (2021: Nil). AIp% B (20214F « &)

216 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A U 5 Ak B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BMENRKE

Furniture Leasehold

Owned Construction Plant and and Motor improvements
properties in progress machinery  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total

BENZ

BEYE ERIE  HERHE GARRE RE  KBRRE ait
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TARL TEL TiEL ThL TAL TEn  TEn

Cost A
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4 A1 56,907 175,163 - 11,127 9,620 16,782 269,599
Additions WE 583 63,908 41,692 19,783 222 - 126,188
Transfers &% - (248,935 248935 = = = =
Reclassffied as held for sale ENDRARELE (1,359) = = = = = (1,359)
Exchange adjustments ERER 1,034 9,864 7726 833 126 303 19,886
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 57,165 - 298,353 31,743 9,968 17085 414314
Additions ME 611 - 9,035 1,002 - - 10,648
Disposals = (1,009 - - (78) - B0 (4850
Exchange adjustments A% 578 = 12,910 1,060 74 - 1462
At 31 March 2022 K002 331 57,345 - 38 B8 10042 14005 434733
Accumulated depreciationand B ERFE

impairment
At 1 April 2020 R2020E4F1R 9,041 - - 8,458 8,179 12,393 38,071
Provided for the year FRER 1353 = 8,825 3395 648 1946 16,167
Reclassified as held for sale ENABARELE (1,359) = = = = = (1,359
Exchange adusiments A% 163 = 235 246 78 299 1,021
AL 31 March 2021 Ro01%3A31A 9198 - 9080 1209 8905 14638 53900
Provided for the year EREE 1453 - 12617 4790 604 143 09
Eliminated on disposals (L E R (162) = = (780) = pee)  (355)
Exchange adjustments B 103 = 618 311 51 = 1,083
At 31 March 2022 202237318 10,592 - 22,29 16,420 9,560 13,495 72,362
Carrying amounts BEE
At 31 March 2022 R2022F3A31H 46,753 - 298,003 16,603 482 530 362,371
AL 31 March 2021 o1 §3Rs1A 47967 - %08 164 1083 2047 30414
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

218

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term of
the lease or 3%

3%—20%

20%-50%

20%—25%

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 25%

Owned properties

Plant and machinery

Furniture and equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements
and fixtures

The Group has pledged owned properties and related
leasehold land classified as right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$259,074,000
(2021: HK$258,176,000) and plant and its related leasehold
land classified as right-of-use assets with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$271,574,000 (2021:
HK$268,976,000) to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.

17. 9% - RERKR®E=

BRERTRS  LAnE  BERS
[BIE B G B S EERAERER
TR R I8

BEME RHEEH3%
(ABREERE)
= K e 2s 3%ZE20%
ST 20%Z50%
AE 20%Z£25%
MEMEERER B E#525%
RE (AR EEBE)

AREBECEREEDRLELD A
259,074,000 L (2021 4F :
258,176,000 7L) 2 BEBEMER DR
RERABEEE2HBAEE T - LR
BRI AE{E L) A271,574,0008 7. (2021
F : 268,976,000/ 7T) Z BB &k %8
RERBEEEZHBAMEE T - DA
BETAEE 2 —RRITHE -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A U 5 Ak B R
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EAEEE
Leasehold Leased Office
lands properties equipment Total
HE L HEME WA%E &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
At 31 March 2022 M2022%3H31H
Carrying amounts REE 228,031 = 2,173 230,204
At 31 March 2021 202143 A31H
Carrying amounts REE 234,602 5,216 3,121 242,939
For the year ended HZE2022F3A31H
31 March 2022 LFE
Depreciation charge TERY 6,486 518 948 7,952
6,486 518 948 7,952
For the year ended B E2021F3731H
31 March 2021 EEE
Depreciation charge HERX 6,608 2,373 1,463 10,444
Capitalised in constructionin ~ EET2E KL
progress (68) - - (68)
6,540 2,373 1,463 10,376
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

18. ERREEE»)

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Expense relating to short-term leases BRAGHEERHEEHRNE
and other leases with lease terms RIERE BB mEZER
end within 12 months of the date of 5 165% B AR ET 12 A
initial application of HKFRS 16 B HmEE 2R 1,241 2,158
Total cash outflow for leases MEREMHBRE 2,785 4,826
Additions to right-of-use assets CREEERE - 1,880

The Group leases various land, office premises and equipment
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 50 years, but may have extension options as
described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings and
industrial buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the underlying leasehold land.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

The Group has extension option in a property lease. This is
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
the asset used in the Group’s operations. Period covered by
extension option is included in the lease term as the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended.

AEERELSEHEE T L0 B
GHkEE  HEANE-—ERTF
B E S BRI L - MERT REP A AR TR
B (T prat) - EIS R E RIS
AEE AR A Z AR RRK AR
EEAH L ETIRERRORE
B AEBEAEHEELEFE R
HEMITA LR

BN AEEEREZERLEFTRT
BT  AEE/ZREMEER (B
HERELNELEBA - AEH
ERRBZFMEED N —RER
NFIE - BHEREHAI SED BCE N IR
WIERT TEBU2IZEEED
FWHEE LA D -

AEENMEHRHETBEEHESE
B ARSTEBREELEMREE
TEZEBBEEMEERA - AXHE
ENAEREMTEE  BHRERE
P& < AT ATHE -

220 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B ok MRk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

19. REWE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At the beginning of year REH] 10,523 11,766
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value RIERERZAFE
recognised in profit or loss CRA) /18 hnFEE (719) 11
Reclassified as held for sale EMOBEARHELE = (2,247)
Exchange adjustments PE 782 439 993
At the end of year RER 10,243 10,523

The Group leases out office units under operating leases with
rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 3 years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease
beyond the initial period granted to lessees.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain a residual value guarantee or
a lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2022 and 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on the respective dates by independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group.

AEBRBELLEHELEERLEE
iz AWEDEE - ZFHE—KRY
TREP-—ZE=F BErEAEKEY
RERERTAEANTDLZHR -

$EII[4H-TH R B A INE R

AR EHENAEEERRE
Eﬁﬂ]ﬁ%i@? fE - HEANYETES
FHEBEERIAARANREHREE
VIRAIEZHE

AEBEREYMER2022F 202143
A318B 2 AT AR AL B &
BECRIAEIREEGBERMNIEH
HHE#EIT 2 i EER -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 10. REWE »®
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information REPBRAEEREMERAFES
about the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period FEBEERFBRT

are as follows:

Investment Fair value Valuation Significant unobservable
properties Fair value at 31 March hierarchy technique inputs
EATABEE
REWM* M3ABIEZAFE AFESZH HERN WARE
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Office units located in 10,243 10,523 level 3 Direct comparison  Market unit rate, taking
Mainland China approach into account the

recent transaction
prices for similar
properties adjusted
for nature, location
and conditions of the
property, which
ranged from
HK$31,427 to
HK$52,480 (2021:
HK$33,047 to
HK$44,831) per
square meter (note)

IR B, F=H BEELBUE Min B ERE - ZEIH
MAREAL WML - 2 R

HEEROUMENRS
B NFZFAK
31,4277 7L%E52,480
AT (20214F : 33,047
AT E 44,8314 7T)
(ftE)

Note: A significant increase in the market unit rate used would result in a izt : MSBUFERARABELASEHATF

significant increase in fair value, and vice versa. BEAEIEMN - R2IFA -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20. R AFET AB=HY

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Financial assets at FVTPL: RO EFABRD
PRIEE :
— Deposit and prepayments for life - ABREZZE AR
insurance policies (Note) KA (M3T) 6,029 5,806
— Equity securities listed - BB LETIRAES

in Hong Kong 1,593 2,905
— Call option arising from an - R AT EFAREMSE

acquisition of financial asset at fair HERNERmEEES

value through other comprehensive B3R i HR v (P 52 42)

income (note 42) 1,589 -

9,211 8,711

EEME 20 ¢

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current assets mEEE 3,182 2,905
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 6,029 5,806
9,211 8,711

Note: In 2013, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Company Mzt : 720135 - ARRIZEMBRRK

Limited (“Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into life insurance policies with an
insurance company to insure Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai
Man, the directors of the Company. Under the policies, Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical is the beneficiary and policy holder and the
total insured sum is US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,600,000). Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical is required to pay
upfront deposits of US$671,383 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,237,000) including premium charges at inception of the
policies amounting to US$40,283 (equivalent to approximately
HK$314,000). Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical can terminate the
policies at any time and receive cash back based on the cash value
of the policies at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront payments of US$671,383 plus accumulated interest earned
and minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense
charge (“Cash Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made, there is a
specified amount of surrender charge. The insurance company will
pay Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical a guaranteed interest of 4.0% per
annum for the first three years, followed by minimum guaranteed
interest rate of 2.25% per annum or above 2.25% per annum for the
following years.

The deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies are
denominated in United States Dollar (‘US$”).

MEREEFEB)BRABR(TANER
B ERBRAFFIZASRE - AN
NARIEEZPTEERBEBELX L
BIR - IBRIBRE  KMER LT
TAMREHEA BRBELESR
2,000,000 7T (16 & F #915,600,000
HBIL) c AFERBEAEL FBME
©671,383% 7t (1HE 11 495,237,000
BIL) c BEREAKAHARE
40,283 T (FHE R 4314,000%
JL) o KA R BRI FER AR | EIRES -
WIZBHHE A2 REBSEERKE
B4 0 A TENFIE671,383% TN
ZHAECHAERZARERRERH
T((REEEDAETE ° o+ i
BEEERR - BIBAIMIETSEZER
RFESB - RBRABBRE=ZFM
AN E BB FF4.0%MREF
B HEFERSERBMNESF
2.25%8 HHE2.25% A EX A o

ABREZRSRANRIBATINAE
FT(ETDEHE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #2022 3H31H It FZ

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. BAFEFTAHMZEEY
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE ANERMEE
INCOME
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ M&EB LRI A E S 18,772 28,780
Unlisted equity securities (note 42) FEETMRAE S (Fi7E42) 985 =
19,757 28,780
The above listed and unlisted equity investments are not Lt R IE ETARAIE B I FEIFIE
held for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic BE MERERMAXEALZ AR
purposes. The directors of the Company have elected to AESDRESZERATAKRERE
designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI EREATEFAEMEEKE @ R
as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these AAFERANERERZERER
investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent FHEEHESEASEERAREZ
with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments for long- ZERERRRERERRE N 2K
term purposes and realising their performance potential in the T o
long run.
22. INVENTORIES 22. 8
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Raw materials R 4,626 5,574
Work in progress FETRE 1,305 888
Finished products PX &t 21,327 13,629
27,258 20,091
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZ R HEWFIE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 14,777 7,981
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (2,373) (2,259)
12,404 5,722
Prepayments to suppliers M FE R TR SR8 1,373 852
Prepayments for other expenses MRS EN IR 1,620 1,259
Deposits e 489 2,148
Value-added tax recoverable AT g o) 32 (E F 3,527 8,211
Other receivables H b & W IR = 549
19,413 18,741

AT RRHmERRAKENE 5 R
REFREEEERE) KK DT
ZBEREEHZT) :

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for credit losses at the end of the
reporting period, presented based on invoice date:

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

0—-30 days 02 30K 9,975 3,382
31-60 days 31ZE60K 479 541
61-90 days 61290k 315 582
91-365 days 91E 365K 1,635 1,140
Over 365 days B iB365K = 77
12,404 5,722
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23.

24,

226

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group’s sales to most customers are made on cash on
delivery, whilst the Group generally allows an average credit
period of 60 days (with 15 days of grace period in certain
cases) to certain major trade customers with established
trading records.

At 31 March 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$10,682,000 (2021: HK$4,104,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, approximately HK$1,635,000 (2021: HK$1,217,000)
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default based on good repayment records for those customers
and continuous business with the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 39.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% to 0.35% (2021: 0.001% to 0.35%) per annum.

At 31 March 2022, certain of the Group’s bank balances
and cash with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$11,222,000 (2021: HK$7,579,000) were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The government of the PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

At 31 March 2022, certain of Group’s bank balances with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,346,000 (2021:
Nil) was frozen under court order in relation to a litigation
proceeding in the PRC (note 43).

23. EG R HMEWFIE %

24,

AEERMAF D TP HHEATIRM
eI RET MARE-—RETRS
AHERHFNETEIEE S EP60KRH
FHEEHR HTERTTEFARIGX
RRH -

MN2022%E3A31H » st A\RNEE R
SRERBRFEBEEHNEEREL A
10,682,000 7T (20214F : 4,104,000
P IT) B EWER N IS B IR @A -
@R+ - 491,635,000 T
(20214 : 1,217,000/ 7T) B #1 90
HAE ERZERFPHNRIFENR
REEMEAEENFEERITERS
EBH o

ZEH5REMEWRBRETHFBE
M EE39 °

RITERRRE

RITHEBRIZRFTF0.001%20.35% (2021
F:0001%20.35%) I THFI R B o

MR2022F3831H » KREBEEBENA
11,222,00078 7T (20214 : 7,579,000
BILME TRITEBRIRSUARKE
TAR®DEHE - MARBILIEBRE
M5 ENEBLREE - FEBAE
EITIMNEE S - ESEHPBEIRINE
XA BT B B RO IE H PR I FTARBR o

202243 A318 » NEEH TIRT
KRR AREE 41,346,000/ 7T (20214 -
|/ ERBEFBAR BEFAR TR
SR (M17E43) ©
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24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continueq) 24, BITHBRRRE @

25

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Bank balances and cash shown inthe IR& & & KRG A BRI E
consolidated statement of financial AR ZRE
position 14,395 15,143
Less: restricted bank balances B RREIRITAEER (1,346) =
Cash and cash equivalents shown in AR RERNIRZ
the consolidated statement of ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@vﬁ%
cash flows 13,049 15,143
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 25. P EABEHEZEE
SALE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets held for sale: BEHEZIERBEE
— Owned property and related - BBEMERABEE L
leasehold land - 1,711
- Investment property - REYE - 2,247
- 3,958
Included in assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March MR2021F3A31H » pEAFBIEHE
2021 were properties for which sale and purchase agreements LEEPRERBEHHEETEEW
had already been signed as of the reporting date. ELWNEE o
On 15 January 2021, the Group entered into a sale and R2021F1 8158 - AEEE—FF
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of owned =FHENEEHE  NHEMLRES
property and related leasehold land located in Hong Kong MNEBMEREBAEE T - Hel
at a cash consideration of HK$9,800,000. The disposal was /49,800,000 - HEFHEDZ R
completed in April 2021. 20214 B 5ERK °
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25.

26.

228

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE (Continued)

On 19 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of an
investment property located in the PRC at a cash consideration
of RMB1,920,000. The disposal was completed in May 2021.

The investment property classified as non-current assets held
for sale during the year ended 31 March 2021 was continued to
be measured using the fair value model in HKAS 40 Investment
Property. The fair value of this investment property as at 31
March 2021 was determined with reference to the price of the
disposal. This was a level 2 measurement as per the fair value
hierarchy.

25. PEAFFHEZEE®

R2021F3A198 » AEBE—FE
=HAVEENE  AEHEMRE
BEHitEmE BeREAARE
1,920,0007T © & FEHE MN20214F5

HFER

REE2021F3A31BLEE - 787
AFEEHEZIERBDEEMREY
BETABESSTTENFIORKREY
EI2RAFEERGE - ZREWER
2021F3A31B 2 R FETIKL2EL
EERET - WHIRFESHAZE=

Bt -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EZ R HEMEFIA
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Trade payables B S FIR 11,901 7,499
Accruals and other payables FERTE M R E M E IR 37,725 32,271
49,626 39,770

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
payables at the end of the reporting period, presented based
on invoice date:

AT RRRERRAEENE H RN
FIEHFRE DT (RBEZAHZ7)

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FHET

0—-30 days 0E 30Xk 4,134 2,163
31-60 days 31E60XK 1,692 504
61-90 days 612 90K 558 1,691
Over 90 days HBiEo0K 5,517 3,141
11,901 7,499
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. EHEE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Receipts in advance TAUFRIR 18,615 5,673
Contract liability is recognised when the Group receives BRHEBBEEAEERBRERRNTER
consideration from the customer before the goods are AP R ERFER - NFEEE
delivered to the customer. The increase (2021: decrease) in the 20214 : FP) FERHRIERE

current year was mainly due to the increase (2021: decrease) in PRI (20214F = D) FTEL »

advances received from customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TREYERZ WP HEESNE
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BER M 8EE -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue from sales of goods FFAFEVIE B EERD
recognised that was included in BERRIEE & mias
the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year 5,111 9,328
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28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. SRITIEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Secured bank loans BEEMIBITER 318,616 336,845
The carrying amounts of the bank AR A TR EEERIRTT
loans are repayable*: ERREREE"
Within one year R—FRA 86,708 91,808
More than one year, but not more —FRETHBBMRF
than two years 29,243 27,576
More than two years, but not more MWEZREBETBBRE
than five years 144,937 86,862
More than five years HF1E 25,328 106,099
286,216 312,345
The carrying amounts of bank loans & AR EKEEKHEZER
that contain a repayment on demand ~ —FAEEMRITER
clause (shown under current WEREER RS AE
liabilities) but repayable within one H7R)
year 32,400 24,500
Total carrying amount of bank loans ~ RTTEKEREERE 318,616 336,845
Less: Amounts due within one year B OREAEE TR
shown under current liabilities —FRI NS (119,108) (116,308)
Amounts shown under non-current FERBEEEBE NI TS
liabilities 199,508 220,537
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out ZEINHeBORBERIBZEAETE

in the loan agreements.

EEEBHSMES -
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

28. RITEE®

7 B4R 1T {E B A0 BR (B A T 5 595
S -

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

HKS BT 99,957 117,547
RMB AR 218,659 219,298
318,616 336,845

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s variable-rate bank loans
denominated in HK$ and RMB carry interest at HIBOR plus
1.2% to 1.3% (2021: HIBOR plus 1.2% to 1.3%) per annum
and LPR to LPR plus 1.49% (2021: LPR plus 0.975% to
1.325%) per annum respectively. The ranges of effective
interest rates on the Group’s bank borrowings are 1.19% to
5.29% (2021: 1.42% to 5.18%).

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s bank loans and undrawn
banking facilities are secured by charge over the Group’s
owned properties and related leasehold land with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$259,074,000 (2021:
HK$258,176,000) and the Group’s plant and related leasehold
land with a carrying amount of approximately HK$271,574,000
(2021: HK$268,976,000).

R2022F3A31H » ZEBUBE TR
ARBGENZERITERD K
EARITAEFREINEF1.2%E
1.3%HF Rt B (20214 : HBRTT
FERBZINI2%E1.3%) RERT
BREMNEXZERMISREFNE SN
BF1.49%0 M X5 B (2021F -
RIS HMEMNESMEF0.975%F
1.325%) - A BRITEENERF
KEEHB1.19%E5.29% (20214 :
1.42%%25.18%) °

R2022963A31H » REBIRTE
HAERERHRITHEBZAERAE
EEERmMAELY259,074,0008 T
(20214 : 258,176,000 7T) M B
EMERBBAAE L RAEBEER
E{E4271,574,000/%8 7T (2021 4F -
268,976,000 L) WM B MBI E &
THb o
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HE & &
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEARE
Within one year R—FNK 967 2,499
More than one year, but not — FRETHBIBMRE
more than two years 698 2,591
More than two years, but not MERBRETBBRF
more than five years 627 3,565
2,292 8,655
Less: Amount due for settlement with & : RBI B &EIE RN3I/RE
twelve months shown AR+TEARA
under current liabilities HENIHSRE (967) (2,499)
Amount due for settlement after ERBEEE TR
twelve months shown under ART=@A#%
non-current liabilities EERND e 1,325 6,156

30. DEFERRED TAX

30. IELER IEH

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement RREGEHBRAKEINME - &T
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities BLEHBEERAREHIE - AT A
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred M BHEREmETHRELEHIELS

tax balances for financial reporting purposes: BROHT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets EETIEE = 389 371
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & (428) 679)
(39) (308)
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continuea) 30. LR IE ()
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RAFERBEFECRRNEEZERE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and EFRIEEE,/ (BB REEHHT -
prior years:
ECL Revaluation Tax
provision  of properties losses Total
BHEE
BRRE MEER HEER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAET THET FAET
At 1 April 2020 R20205481A 122 (495) 495 122
(Charge)/Credit to profit orloss ~ (308) /3T AfB# 249 (148) (509) (408)
Exchange adjustments B 3 38 2 - (48) 26 22)
At 31 March 2021 Ro02143A318 371 (691) 12 (308)
(Charge)/Credit to profitorloss ~ (#18),/3T A Bz 18 287 (12) 293
Exchange adjustments P 5 A = 24) = (24)
At 31 March 2022 M2022%3831H 389 (428) - (39)
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30. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

24

At 31 March 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$140,757,000 (2021: HK$107,229,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of HK$140,757,000 (2021:
HK$107,182,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses in Hong Kong may carry forward
indefinitely. The tax losses in the PRC will expire as follows:

30.

EEBIE 2

M2022F3H31H » "EEBERKREH
FRIEE1849/45140,757,00078 7T (2021
F 107,229,000/ 7T) © 7] A{EE
S AR ORI o B A AR AR s A 7w B LA {e
5T B RE140,757,0007% 7T (2021
F : 107,182,000/ 7T) R E LR IE
BE AADEEBBRIIERASHE -
AR B A IE B 1R A R T 51 e R FE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Tax losses expiring in R T5I BFE E i A R TE 5 18
— 2021 to 2022 — 2021 220224 = 105
— 2022 to 2023 — 2022 £ 20234 3,915 4,524
— 2023 to 2024 - 2023F £2024F 15,171 14,585
— 2024 to 2025 — 2024F F2025%F 14,425 13,834
— 2025 to 2026 — 2025 £ 20264 28,760 27,581
— 2026 to 2027 — 20265 £20274F 33,598 -
95,869 60,629

At 31 March 2022, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$10,083,000 (2021:
HK$8,246,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

R2022%3A31H @ "EBER A
RE R ZEE4)A10,083,000/8 7T
(20214 : 8,246,000/ 7T) - ART
AN A]RER FE R BER A AT A B 85 1T 40
BE R ERE MW ER AR AR
TREEEERECHRBEE
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. &
Number
of shares Share capital
KA [N
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EFRMEE.108 T
2 EmAR
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 R2020F4 /18 -
and 31 March 2022 2021F3H318 &
202243 H31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE :
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 and R2020F4H1H -
31 March 2022 2021F3H31H X
2022%3HA31H 1,091,796,000 109,180

32

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 25 September 2014 to recognise the contribution
of certain employees, executives or officers of the Group who
have made or will make to the growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
24,640,000.

No further options could be granted by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme upon the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

32. DA 0 R ER T 5K

BRNRBENBRE
=r &l

AR E R EESBRER S
(TERAFEERBRETEDRE
2014F9A26H BB ZRFBRER
Mo ABEEAKEETES - THA
EXRRABHAEBNERMEL
FHEIEHEER

BIEEBAX RS BERETEIT 8
BREZBEREMSENRGEE &S
& iE24,640,0000% °

RRABBDNREBERFrER EHR - &K
RATBREARAFEEANBERE
At BIE — R h AR -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinueq)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

At 31 March 2022, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 8,928,000 (2021:
8,928,000), representing 0.82% (2021: 0.82%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share

2. URGAEEBRNSR @

N T
HEC)

2022638318 @ BIFEH X AR
EAERESERE R RITERE
RS kB AR & B £8,928,0008%
(20214 : 8,928,0008%) * #HE R A
NEIRZ B BB BTN 2 40.82%
(20214 : 0.82%) °

BRI B R AR E AR RS 8 MR

Option Scheme are as follows: HEERE 2 FBAT -
Number
of options  Exercise price Exercisable
Tranche Date of grant granted per share Vesting period period
FR#R
#R REBH BREHE BR1T FERA TR
1 25/09/2014 23,040,000 HK$0.826/ 7T  25/09/2014~ 16/10/2015—
15/10/2019 24/09/2024
Note: ek -

(@) Tranche 1 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall vest as follows:

(i) 20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

(ii) 20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024;

(i)  20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024;

(iv)  20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2018 and
exercisable from 16 October 2018 to 24 September 2024;
and

(V) 20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2019 and
exercisable from 16 October 2019 to 24 September 2024.
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HEH R ERES R T -

0] 20% K RE AR FE A5 7R 2015610 A
16 H BB XA iR2015410A 16
HZE2024F9 A24 HHARTT(E

(i)  20%HEEARIE K 2016510 A
16H BB R AT R2016510516
A ZE2024%9 A 24 H BRI TTH#

(i)  20%HEEMRIE K 2017410 A
16 H BB XA 2017F10A16
B Z=202449 A 24 B HIR1T1&

(V) 20%HEEREHE 2018410 A
168 58 LA 52018410516
B £20244F9 A24 A #RITE
&

(V) 20%HIEARHE K 2019410 A
16 H & EB XA R2019F10H 16
HZE2024%9 A 24 A HARITTIE ©
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 32. URHBAERNTRE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BXABBEABRE
-G )]
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREBAFEARAREBERAMAE
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during ERBRETE T ERES

the current year:

Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding

Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2021 the year the year at 31/03/2022

R202145 R FR 20224
SEEER I/ 4B1BRTE TE#A RBEE 3AMARTHE
Directors 1 8,640,000 - - 8,640,000
%
Employees 1 288,000 - - 288,000
E&

8,928,000 - - 8,928,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 8,928,000
RERAITE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.8263% T - - HK$0.826}& T
TR EMETHH
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2. URGAEEBRNSR @

N T
arEl®)

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinueq)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

TEREB L FEARARERAH
T BRI BT 2 BRAR IR

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during

238

the prior year:

Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2020 the year the year at 31/03/2021
20204 A FR 20214
2EERS| Bix 4R1BRITE TE#A RWEE  SANBRITE
Directors 1 8,640,000 - - 8,640,000
=X
Employees 1 288,000 - - 288,000
€8
8,928,000 - - 8,928,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 8,928,000
RERATHRE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.826/%5 7T - - HK$0.826/8 7T

TEEMETFHH

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B ok MRk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 E{ 202243 H31H IF F/Z

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinueq)

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 25 September 2014. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contribution that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the
effective date of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period as the board of
directors may determine in granting the option but in any event
not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

2. URGAEEBRNSR @

BT S

AKARIBRE2014F9F 258 BB
REBERRMNERRES S (B RER
g]) o B ARD BT
EERERETEER2EEZRN
AgEmAEEIEL 2 BB o BBARERT
LB AEBRETE 2 EMB
REET T4 o

REBRESS - ARBESEEAM
AEEKARERFERE L RBINZ
RAZMBARZENES &8
BE - BXAL TP HER K
B ABARBAATEBERH
A RBARRBIRND 2 BAKE -

RIS 8 R AR R E b 8
IRIERTE - IRECEBREY R &
BROHBE AETBBBEAART
RFEZITR N 230% » EARBEIARD
AR ELRBEZIBRT - REM—
FRERBERNALEFL KA GRS
ZERES R BEITRE T EITR
PEE TN EBBARRRMEARHEE %
TIRN Z1% © MM E BT KB ILIE
BITESHE 2 BREBBARQ AR
K201%HBEBBEES T - Al
ABLEBEIADRRRELLE

BMBRER - AR ANERAR A
1B ERERBREZNRE - B
BRI RIB B B 2 RN ES
SRR E < R BB IE (AR
RSB HRRE A BER )R
RIS T IAFT(E o
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32.

240

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinueq)

Share Option Scheme (Continuead)

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

At 31 March 2022, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 6,270,000 (2021: 6,270,000),
representing 0.57% (2021: 0.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

32. IR RERNT K@

BT S

TEEHARRESETE @ EERT
BER ) B AR R Iy 2 W
B ()EERLAMAAESRBK
D2 FHRTE  Ri)ARFRMD 2
HEZRSE °

MR2022%F3A31H © {BiEERE
BEREEHRRITHEBRERS
RZBRHEE 56,270,0000% (2021
F :6,270,000%) ' HERAQ AR
ZHBEITIR’ 20.57%(20214F -
0.57%) °

RIF AR T8I X B ki 2 7F
BT :

Number
of options Exercise price Vesting Exercisable
Tranche Date of grant granted per share period period
FRrig
#R rEBH BREZHE BHTHEE HEH TR
1 28/04/2015 2,400,000 HKS$1.460/87C  28/04/2015- 28/04/2016—
27/04/2018 27/04/2025
4 03/10/2016 2,160,000 HK$2.1447%7C  03/10/2016- 03/10/2017—
02/10/2019 02/10/2026
5 18/11/2016 90,000 HK$2.264/87C 18/11/2016- 18/11/2017—
17/11/2019 17/11/2026
6 21/12/2017 2,160,000 HK$1.412/87C  21/12/2017- 21/12/2018~
20/12/2020 20/12/2027
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinueq)

Share Option Scheme (Continuead)

Notes:

(@)

Tranche 1 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest as follows:

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2016 and exercisable
from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025;

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2017 and exercisable
from 28 April 2017 to 27 April 2025; and

40% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2018 and exercisable
from 28 April 2018 to 27 April 2025.

Tranche 4 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest as follows:

M

(i)

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2017 and
exercisable from 3 October 2017 to 2 October 2026;

30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2018 and
exercisable from 3 October 2018 to 2 October 2026; and

40% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2019 and
exercisable from 3 October 2019 to 2 October 2026.

Tranche 5 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest as follows:

)

(i)

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2017 and
exercisable from 18 November 2017 to 17 November 2026;

30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2018 and
exercisable from 18 November 2018 to 17 November 2026;
and

40% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2019 and
exercisable from 18 November 2019 to 17 November 2026.

2. ARG AEEENTRE

BT S

p

(@)

w

R IREE AR 5T &1 1 % 0 A9 R 1 BB AR 4
BEEBT

(i) 30%HIEE IR #EHE7020165F4 A28
HEE R AIN20165F4 H28H &
20254 A 27 B BRFEIAT(E

(i) 30%HAEAXHE K P 201744 A28
HEERAIR2017F4A28HE
2025F 4 27 HEARTTE &

(i) 40%H)AEAR#E K 7201854 A28
HEBRAIN2018%F4 A28 &
202554 A 27 B BARS1T{E o

R FE A At &I i 1% O HE R ARB R
BT

0] 30% M FE AR BEHE 2017410 A3
BB N AIN2017E10A3B &
2026510 A28 HAR 7% :

(i)  30%HIHEARAE KR 2018F 1043
BB N A N20185FE10A3EE
2026510 A2 B AR TTIE : I

(i) 40%H)EAAE K 20191043
HEE RAIN20195F10A3H ZE
2026510 H2H AR TTE ©

AR I RS T 8 T 952 ik A E R S RE B b
A ERE A

0] 30% M) i IR 72017611 A
18 BB XA R2017F11H18
HZE2026F11A17H BT
f#

(i)  S0%HIEEMBEFN2018F 11 A
18H % E K] R20184F11H18
HZE2026F11A17H BT
F: R

(i)  40%H)HE AR HE #G 7Y 20194F 11 A
18H & E KA R2019411 718
HZE2026%11 178 HE1T
i o
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinueq)

242

2. URGAEEBRNSR @

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRETE®
Notes: (Continued) Mizk © (&)
(d)  Tranche 6 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall (0 IREFEARES S L e # R 6RE AR 1

vest as follows:

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2018 and
exercisable from 21 December 2018 to 20 December 2027;

(ii) 30% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2019 and
exercisable from 21 December 2019 to 20 December 2027,
and

(i)  40% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2020 and
exercisable from 21 December 2020 to 20 December 2027.

AT

M

(i)

)

30% K EE AR R 1§ 72018412 A
21 B BB R A R2018F 12 A 21
HZE2027%12A208 BT
fi#

30% K EE AR R & 7 2019F 12 A
21H 5B kA R2019F 12 A 21
HZ2027F12 A20H BT
fF: &

40% K BE AR A & 7 2020F 12 A
21 H BB & A A2020 12 A 21
HZE2027F 128208 A/ 1T
f& o

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREEANFE AR TR ERET S
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the T2 AR EE

current year:

Exercised Forfeited

Outstanding during during Outstanding

Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2021 the year theyear at 31/03/2022

R20214 FR R202245F

SHEEER #x 4F1BR1TE  FRTEHE RWEE SAMNHRTE

Directors 1 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000

o) 4 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000

6 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000

Employees 1 210,000 - - 210,000

(=3=1 5 90,000 - - 90,000

Consultant 1 600,000 - - 600,000
=1

6,270,000 - - 6,270,000

Exercisable at the end of the year 6,270,000

RERA{THE

Weighted average exercise price HK$1.6913& 7T -

TTEEE INHE T8

- HK$1.691%& T
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq) 32. LR AEBENAR®
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRESE )
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREZE L —FEARARERE
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the prior ST EREEZS :
year:
Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2020 the year theyear  at 31/03/2021
720204 FRX 20214
SLEELER #ox JA1BRTIE FRTFESE RIREE  3A3THRITE
Directors 1 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000
) 4 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000
6 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000
Employees 1 210,000 - - 210,000
&8 5 90,000 - - 90,000
Consultant 1 600,000 - - 600,000
M
6,270,000 - - 6,270,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 6,270,000
RERAIITRE
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.691% 7T - - HK$1.691%8 T
1T EIETI98
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised REE202153A31HILFE © K&
the total expense of approximately HK$121,000 for the year in RN E A AR RQ R B 0 AR i
relation to share options granted by the Company. FERER4RF X 49121,0008 7T ©
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

244

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
approximately HK$1,815,000 (2021: HK$1,723,000) for the
year, and represent contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

No forfeit contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2022.

33. R K@ AT &

AEERFMEBENAERBTIRHE
BHERERE - SFENEEBL
RASENEE  BXFEAZHNE
SERE -

AREE T EEE T B BRI
BIREERRBAFTENKE - K&
BARFERAN—FE B DL REK
BAFEEREFTAR/ZEBHNEHE
AEEFEREFEEWREERR
M EHR -

AEERGEBEEREMEERER
RIERMF S B EE %) 51,815,0008 7T
(20214 : 1,723,000/ 7T) ' BALEH
BIEZETE AT ANLE R HZE
ETEIEAHR -

HE2021FE3H31H &202243 A 31
B BEE QUG FR AT B R FR R SR &
JEFERTERR -
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(a)

(b)
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Transactions with related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

4. B IR S

(a) EEBAEES IR

RAEE - AEBEBM AT
TIHERRS :

2022 2021

Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
S B REME FTHET TET
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Expenses relating to 1,120 1,920

Lai Man (executive directors of short-term lease

the Company) (Note (i))
ZITRENABET L %2 HAPA & 5 =2 (= (i)

(RAFIMITES)
Note: FsE

(i) The rental expenses for premises payable to the above
related parties are based on tenancy agreements entered into
between the parties involved. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, these transactions have been entered into on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of the Company’s directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in note 13.

0 BN LEAREESNMEESRX
ABRERT X0 7T L E 1 A
HE - ARBEERR  ZER
HTRERHEGTINRAEE
—REABELBIETRIL °

b) TEEE A SRR

ARABEE(NRAKBERE
MK E) B F S TE13
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35. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 35. R&EHE L HE

The Group as lessor AEBEERAEHEA
Certain properties held for rental purposes have committed ETHRREEB Y EHE &E—
lessees for 1 to 3 years. E=fF o
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as EWHEERFEEERN AT -
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Within one year —FR 441 267
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_FEEFRF
(BREEMSF) 391 178
832 445
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAREIE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted WY - BRE K
for but not provided for in the BECDRTHERTE
consolidated financial statements e M EmRBED
in respect of acquisition of BEARARX
property, plant and equipment - 744
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ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

= A
I%/T\IZI

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 7. MEEHELENEBLER

TRAVNAKEREEDELNEE
28 BRASMERE
ABELANABREREREIARKR
EREBRAEE
BRARELTHMELRESRES -

28 - WA

A B2 2= A
o E IR 7

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
IRITEE HESE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4 418 250,576 10,606 261,182
Financing cash flows MERE RS 58,010 (2,668) 55,342
New leases entered ERIVFHEE = 1,880 1,880
Lease modified HEIER] = (1,421) (1,421)
Exchange adjustments ME 16,133 = 16,133
Interest expenses FEMX 12,126 258 12,384
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 336,845 8,655 345,500
Financing cash flows BERERE (40,122) (1,544) (41,666)
Lease modified HEEE] - (54) (54)
Lease terminated HERIE = (4,922) (4,922)
Exchange adjustments ME WS 9,204 - 9,204
Interest expenses FEFRAX 12,689 157 12,846
At 31 March 2022 74202243A318 318,616 2,292 320,908
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38.

248

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising issued
share capital and reserves).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of the capital, and will balance the
gearing ratio through the payment of dividends and new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

38. EX A EE

AEBEEEEANBRAKREZE
BEUAFELE  FARABBLER
B AR HHFEARERARRZ
Cl¥k - REBEEBREZFERTT

# -

AEENEARERSER (BRERT
EERHERE) RARRER ARG
#m (B BTRARGER) -

AEERENABL R 2 BREERE
BARE - AKRBEEEEAKARE
BEAZEBARR - WS B MR
BREBITH - AREITHERIE
CERBEBAFEERNBELER -

REBRBEPRRZERBFE L EA
I

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TATT

Debt (i) B () 320,908 345,500

Equity (i) T 75 (i) 301,800 319,575

Gearing ratio BRBELE 106% 108%
0] Debt includes long- and short-term bank borrowings and lease i) BEEEERNREHRTEEREE

liabilities. BfE -
(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group. iy HEPREAEEMEERKGERE-
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. 2@ TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@ =mIAEE5
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEFTAEAMD
ZHRANCREE 19,757 28,780
Financial assets at FVTPL BN EFT AEBER
CREE
— Held for trading -RHIEEE 1,593 2,905
- Others - EAf 7,618 5,806
9,211 8,711
Financial assets at amortised B ARG E
cost TRHEE
- Trade and other receivables - B REMEW
U 12,893 8,419
- Bank balances and cash - RITER IR S 14,395 15,143
27,288 23,562
Financial liabilities A Y=
Financial liabilities at amortised RN AT E 2
cost cHas
— Trade and other payables - B REMER
KIE 49,626 39,770
- Bank borrowings - RITIEE 318,616 336,845
~ Lease liabilities -HHEaE 2,292 8,655
370,534 385,270
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

250

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, call option arising from an acquisition of
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income, deposit and prepayments for life insurance
policies, trade and other receivables, bank balances, trade
and other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with certain of
these financial instruments include market risk (including
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, hence risk exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge against the
foreign currency risk exposure. However, management
will consider to hedge these balances should the need
arise.

The aggregated carrying amounts of the monetary assets
and monetary liabilities denominated in the currencies
other than the respective functional currencies of each of
group companies at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

30. EMIT A
(b) HERAREEBEEZR

BER

AEEZTREHMTABERA
BE - WEEATFESAEME
HBANEREEESE ZREY
- ASBREZREREEAMNK
BB REMEWIEA - R1T
e EH R EHMEMNFUR - R
TEEREERE -ZZFERT
AZFBREREHERE - &
EtTzSemIAEEZARES
mEmEER(BEINERRE - 7
Xk hEMGEBRRR) 5
R\ NkmeE 2 ER o BB
L% AR 2 RN T °
EEEHZTRRETEERE
22 DATEE O BB 38 IR 5 28U SR U
B ©

SN L

AEEZETEREENBEN
SNESETE - AN 5% [ T e O RO
BELZER o NREBEIWEITL
EHEHa LR INERRE - R
M EREERNAETERERY
LT REER o

R|ERR  UEEERFEE
N BB AN EBTHENE R
EEMEYBENEREAEN
TS 8

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAT
Monetary assets denominated in: AT E#EEHER
-RMB - ARHE 7 582
- United States dollar (“US$”) o= (E ) 6,133 6,277
Monetary liabilities denominated in: A R 7| & ¥ &HER
BE¥BaE:
-RMB - AR¥ - 1,782
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the currency risk associated
with US$ and HK$ is considered minimal. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effect of fluctuation in RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 10% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rate. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax loss and an increase in
equity where HK$ strengthens 10% against the relevant
foreign currency. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against
the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss and equity.

30. ¢RI H®

(b) HBEREEBERR

BUR ()
SR ()

MRETTEETTAENE - ARAETT
KT EBRERIL NEKX o K
EEFEXARBKBZFE -

TERIEAEEHETEARK
EARTERA0%Z BEEFFIE ©
10% I RERE MEZEERAS
ERINERREF TR A 2 BEE
bE - EBEEHIINEERNEG
Bl et e 2 5T E o TN IESK
BT HAARIINEFAE10%IER
TERBLI& BRI D Az g A0 o
BT LEEINERE10%M
T HEBBNRREEELARS
MR ZZE -

Sensitivity analysis BURZ 2T
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Impact of RMB AR#ZEE
Profit or loss Bi=Fn (1) 120

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of
the inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

ARAEZRR  BREINK
VRERRE R 2 SNEE KR - AR
HE R BRI A RRAFE
P Z B o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

252

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits, bank loans and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank loans. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR and LPR arising from the
Group’s bank loans denominated in HK$ and RMB.
The Group aims at keeping its borrowings at variable
rates. The Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate level and outlook.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank loans at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. 50 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,084,000 (2021: HK$1,227,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk on its variable-rate bank loans.

39. @ T E®

(b) BBEREEBBRER

BUR ()

AEEARZBETF BRITER
RIOTEFRMEERBEERA AT
BENXER - ARETFEHE R
FRBRTERZBAS R EME
o AEEZRESRAMEREARE
ERAEBUBTRARKE
MIRTTERELE 2 BBRITRE
REREFTHREN XK -
AEBEERIDNRERE
B o REBE B A EER X
B EDEE A RO AT BE 2B A A oK
FRAISEEEREN KRR

HE DT

THIBRE D T TR IEF BRTT
ERRImEHRZ M ERRSE
BEMET ° mHZAD TR REK
RBERRZAREERBEERN R
FRAMRERE - RAETREEA
B A BB S A R R B P AR 2 48
InEm D EE S50 0 REBRK
EREHMNESEBEE 2T
(I

WAIE LA TFES0ES: - mAT
EEMEERFTIE  AIAEE
RE R R & EEBEEMN R
L #91,084,000/8 7T (20214 -
1,227,000%7T) ° WIHEEBHER
REBZFBRITEREE 2 F|
KERFTEL o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. Management will
monitor the price risk and take appropriate actions should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity securities had
been 5% higher/lower:

° loss for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$80,000 (2021: HK$145,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of financial assets
at FVTPL; and

° revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$939,000 (2021: HK$1,439,000)
for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at FVTOCI.

30. ¢RI H®

(b) BHEREBREZEERER

BUR (%)
H b E % E kR

AEBEBEER EHBRAZS -
SR A ERER - EEER
SERERAR  YRNAFER
REVBETE °

HEE DT

AT SRED IR BERH®E A
HESHRAERERETE

MM ETRAESER EF
TFE5% :

e AXAEEEBEBREZATE
FAEENEREED
&g w2 %
#780,000/8 T (2021 4F
145,000/ 7T) + &

e AEBEEGMEFEEBEHEAREAR
FEFAEMZEK AL
STREENAFEEESHMmIE
/w4 #939,0000 7T
(20214 : 1,439,000%

JT) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

254

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
trade balances based on provision matrix. Impairment
of approximately HK$113,000 (2021: HK$1,063,000) is
recognised during the year. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

39. @ T E®

(b)

EREEEER
BUR (&)

=B E e R s E G

Eﬁﬂﬁ%KEIMX%%iﬁ
REHEEMEBARE BT
JESTEE’JH R o AEBEHEERR
TREBFHEKTE  RE
b MR S SRITHE B - K
SEI | EANERRSEM
EEEREMAREEES@ME
ENREZEERR -

AEERBEEAEEEREAY

TREELETRENE - B@AX
EEEERKREE  BRAEZEME
S M AR ARG (ER) 2 &
ME% /RN

EFPAHELNEZRENZE

SEERREERR  AEEE
BEDZZKk—<Kh - BEEE

FERELEERZ -BHEH
thEEERIZFF - ARERIRENER 1T

B) - WEIBEAER o tod - A&
ERIEFEHEESEEEAENE
BEEEE ZEHRETRERT
& - FRERREL 113,000
7t (20214 : 1,063,000 7T) °

A EENFBHAR AN
X o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Deposits and other receivables

Management makes periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. Management
believes that there are no significant increases in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For
the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group
assessed the ECL for deposits and other receivables were
insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The
Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances by reference
to information relating to probability of default and loss
given default of the respective credit rating grades
published by external credit rating agencies. Based on
the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank balances is
considered to be insignificant.

30. ¢RI H®

(b) BBEREEBBRER

BRER (4#)
= B 7 iz K R B AT (4
" R E M JE W R

ERERBRATENLE  BE
KRUARFTFEREHEER (8
REFUHAEEER BEE R
H o GRIE 2 PR B 1T E
HERFE - BEEEE @ %F
2 EERBREERNERE
W RN - AEEZ12(E
AEMEERBEIRRE - #E
2022F K2021F3A31HILF
B AEEF AR REMER
HREMBEHREEBBRYTEKX
BR| bt N 4 W SR AT fr] S PR B 4 o

RITEBRZEERRAR BB
RHGHFREBREFZRT X
EEBREEFARBETREER
AR - REBEB2EIEEERTR
HETIERNBREEFRZED
R 2 {1 2 B R A IR
TRz 12EATRREEES -
RIBFHERE - RITHEHR212
EARBEEEREARLTE
X o

CEC R CUUEER ERMEBERARAT 255



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fs o1 B 5 A [ L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #2022 3H31H It FZ

difficulty and the Group has

no realistic prospect of recovery

EEBRNESAEBRETR
BN B30 48 B R U E R
AJHE

NIE 7

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. EMIT A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEEREEBER
policies (Continued) BUR (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S B R R E S ()
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REE AR EERRSRTE
comprises the following categories: BETIER
Internal Trade Other
credit rating Description receivables financial assets
RBEETR B 5 EWRIE HitemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
KRR default and does not have any not credit-impaired 1218 A JEHZ &
past due amounts GEHHEREE B8
REEFZEYRRIK - B - RE&E
B3 g B IR =ERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
BEER dates but usually settle after due not credit-impaired 1218 A FEHZ &
date FERESREE &8
BB ALERBHEEENIE B - REE
BERBHES &5 EERE
Doubtful There have been significant increase Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
FiE in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed GFEHBEHEE GEHBEHEE
internally or external resources EiE - REAE EE - REAE
EERER B FEBRNBRINBEIR EERE =ERE
BN 2 BRHIIARER AR
EREE 7
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
g =] asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
BRETNEERLEGERE GFEREHEE GFERBHMEE
BE-284E BE-B%4LE
EERE EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
b debtor is in severe financial B EME e
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. €@ T B
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEREEEER

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL

BUR ()
B AR R A AT (4

TRINTAEBAEHEREER
EBiEFEZeREEZFEERR

assessment: EIE
External Internal 12m ECL or Gross
creditrating credit rating  lifetime ECL carrying amount
12BARHEE
ERIAFES
HABEETR ABEETIR RHEEER REAE
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TR
Trade receivables N/A (Note) Lifetime ECL 14,777 7,981
B SRR i (B EE) (provision matrix)
FRNESEE
BB HERER)
Deposits and N/A Low risk 12m ECL 489 2,697
other receivables i (E R 12BREHEE
BE RAMERHE E#
Bank balances Ba2 to A1 N/A 12m ECL 14,015 14,745
RITEE Ba2ZA @A REAEHEE
(2021: A3 to E#
Aal)
(20214 : A3
ZAal)
Note: B EE -

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The
Group determines the ECL on this item by using a provision matrix.

HREZEWHKIENE - AEEEER
BEMBMELNESRAT Z/HET
FHEFRPEMEEERZBER
e ARERAERABEEEEEZ
ERZAHERESE -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

258

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large number of customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

30. ¢RI H®

(b)

HBRREERER
BUR (#)

1= B JE iz KRB 7T (&
BsE : ()

EAAREZEERREREZ —R
AEBEFNBEBAZRRIGERTP
ZHE AAREEFEEAEASR
HARARBSB2EP  ZERFERN
RERZPARIE & DR E 2
RIEZEE] » TRARBEERG
ZESREFENGFERRREES
BORBEEFEERE NERZEERR
ZEF -

2022 2021
Average Gross carrying Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount loss rate amount
FHYEEE IREAE FHEEE ARE A
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHET FHET
0-30 days 0230H 0.72% 10,047 0.12% 3,386
31-60 days 31260H 2.00% 489 4.36% 566
61-90 days 61£290H 20.44% 396 6.14% 620
91-365 days 912365H 20.44% 2,055 9.18% 1,255
Over 365 days 365H A 100% 1,790 96.43% 2,154
14,777 7,981

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group provided
approximately HK$113,000 (2021: HK$1,063,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on the provision matrix.

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

il 5t B 18 R T AR I8 B W BR SR TR At F 1
NZBEBRENT MG YHRA
BRPFRARZABEEEREL B -
EREEHEENEAUBRREAETE
FEUTBR KAV AR B B RHS LA 3T -

HZE2022%F3A31BILEE - A&EH
ERBEBERELE S ERKEBTIR
SEEE#113,000 7T (20214 -
1,063,000/ 7T) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 30. EMIT A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEEREEBER
policies (Continued) BUR (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S B R R E S ()
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL T%ﬁ']x‘ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂbﬁ&ﬁﬁ R
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the %F’EH& RIEFEREBEERE
simplified approach. TE\E’JK
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
FEMES
E8EE
(RBEEE
WAE)
HK$’000
FH&TT
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4A1H 1,196
Reversal of impairment losses WA B ERE (60)
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 1,123
At 31 March 2021 2021 3H31H 2,259
Reversal of impairment losses pERIEY SRR (69)
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 183
At 31 March 2022 742022634310 2,373
Liquidity risk HEEZ R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group Egﬁmibﬁiﬂ PRI
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash ERTHFEREER/THN
equivalents deemed adequate by management to fﬁﬁ&fﬁ ZEBYKTE - AR
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects %Z%&‘é%ﬂ/\,\% AOREER
of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors the ERERDIFE -BEEER
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with BEMNERABR  BRETEXK
loan covenants. Bk o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39. @ T E®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other financial liabilities are based on the agreed

repayment dates.

260

(b) BBEREEBBRER

BUR ()
FEBELEB

TRAMAASESHAR L
RSB HBNEBER - ZRTIRE
TRMBEZARAUBARSRER
2 ERBEEMAAEBEAER
BRZxFEH - ARBME - &
SEREBRERGHRORITEER
AZRRBER  TWR{TEER
REEFITHEEET - Hiee /A
BEZEH B DHRE HEEREH
B -

Liquidity table B E 25
Ondemand Between Total Total
or less than 1 and Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
Non-derivative FLTE FEERH KREEH
financial liabilites £RE& PR—F —ZERF HBEFE RERELE HREEALHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT TET TET TET
2022 2022
Trade and other B RHEM
payables FETF0E 49,626 = = 49,626 49,626
Bank borrowings RITEE 130,656 201,326 27,067 359,049 318,616
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,030 1,374 = 2,404 2,292
181,312 202,700 27,067 411,079 370,534
2021 20214
Trade and other B REAM
payables FEfTRIB 39,770 S = 39,770 39,770
Bank borrowings RITEE 125,221 144,577 111,946 381,744 336,845
Lease liabilities HEEE 2,729 6,402 - 9,131 8,655
167,720 150,979 111,946 430,645 385,270
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €@ T A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MHERERREEEER
policies (Continued) BUR (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B E LR (E
Liquidity table (Continued) REE I (B

BEREREEFRNRITER
SFALRBEBE SN EERY
PR—FINBHEER - REER
SENEEAMENRAFE &
ERRRFRITIANABITER
EMBERERMNEER - TRH
JIRERITERNAHRESRE
B R (R E 5 3 A 808 3
) o

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. Taking into account the fair
value of the Group’s pledged properties, the directors do
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The expected cash flow information of such bank loans
(based on the schedule of repayments set out in the loan
agreements) are set out in the table below.

FIH AW~ B SR BEKIEEKF
KEVIRTTE K (B EEENH

Maturity analysis — Bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

H)
Between Total
Less than 1and 5 Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year years 5 years cash flows amount
FN: 3]
—FR —EZ21F BERELF RERELH RREE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET FET FET FET
At31 March 2022  A2022%F
3H31H 32,692 - - 32,692 32,400
At 31 March 2021 R20215
3H31H 24,752 - - 24,752 24,500

SRR TR A 4 R B R B R A
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 30. €@ T B
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) eI AZAFEE
instruments
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial () FZEEEEDNFEGE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a ZEtHEERTHMEEZ
recurring basis ASSIE]
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured REREPRKR AEESE
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. TemEEDNEAFER
The following table gives information about how the B TREIBEBZES
fair values of these financial assets are determined MEECATFEEENE
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs EER(LEEMAMBER
used). i Ko gy A B ©
Valuation Significant
Fair value technique(s) and unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key input(s) input(s)
M3A31AZ HEERNREERA EXFTAER
EREE DEE DEEER "E WAHE
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$000
THET THET
Equity securities listed in 1,593 2,905 Level 1 Quoted bid pricesin  N/A
Hong Kong classified an active market
as financial assets at
FVTPL
DBERBATFERA F1R KBS mE TEA
ERNEREEL
BB LTRAES
Equity securities listed in 18,772 28,780 Level 1 Quoted bid pricesin  N/A
Hong Kong classified an active market
as financial assets at
FVTOCI
DBERBATFERA F1R RiEBmS mE TEA
Hitn 2 ENRO SR
BEZBBELTRA
EH
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. €@ T B
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) ERMI Az FERE
instruments (Continueq) (&

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial () BEEEELLNFEGE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a ZEtHEERTHMEBEZ
recurring basis (Continued) DFE(E)

Valuation Significant
Fair value technique(s) and unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key input(s) input(s)
M3A31HZ RERMREIEBA EXTAEER
tREE ARE AREZER YE WA
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
FTExT FHT
Deposit and prepayments 6,029 5,806 Level2 Quoted asset value  N/A
for life insurance provided by
policies classified as financial institution
financial assets at
FVTPL
DEAREAFERA EPR EREERENR NER
BamemEEL BEEE
AEREZRER
HERFIE
Unlisted equity securities 985 - Level 3 Discounted cash Discount rate. The
classified as FVTOCI flows higher the discount
rate, the lower the
fair value.
DEREATERA 3R RYRBERE BRI o BRI K
Hit 2 EK = Hm - 2FE
R ETRAZ 5 HUE o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets

Fair value

Fair value at 31 March hierarchy

30. ¢RI H®

(c) EMT ARV EFE
(&

() BEEEELNFEFGTE
ZEBEERETHBERBZ

2 FE(E)
Valuation Significant
technique(s) and  unobservable
key input(s) input(s)

R3A3MEZ HERMREERN EAFITEE
SREE NYE DATESER HE WAYE
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Call option arising from 1,589 - Level3 Binomial model — Fair Volatility. The higher
an acquisition of value is estimated the volatility, the
financial asset at based on time-to- higher the fair
FVTOCI maturity, fair values  value.
of underlying
unlisted equity Fair value of
investments, underlying unlisted
conversion price, equity investment.
risk-free rate, The higher the fair
expected volatility value of underlying
and expected unlisted equity
dividend investment, the
higher the fair
value
W AT ER AR F3R ZHEHARN - AFE ORE o RBEX -
FEKENEREE TIREREEERE - ATEES -
B4 BRE F EmRERE
Mz LYE -  HEELTRERE
i E - EER ZRAFE - HHH
MR HERER RETRARE
AR B A5t ZRAFESS
NFEES
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

30. ¢RI H®

(c) EMT ARV EFE

(&

(i)

S H AT EEL AT
HEZEMEERSME
E2AFE

ARREFERBRRS
ME D EFHR EHA A
AEZEREELRERA
B2 RAFE-

175 R MR SH X AR T
FeemEEREZRA
BEEREEREQFEMN

++

Eo
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

266

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries

40. X AT EEME R A

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

W 2 7 2 — R

REEWK - KRB EHEA A

BN ©

F

]}

Place of Paid up issued/  Proportion ownership
incorporation/ registered interest held
establishment/ capital by the Gompany
operations Class of BRIR FLHRR
Name of subsidiary BRI/ shares held BRRE/ CLLL bl Principal activities
KRA%ZR RI/Be%%  SERGER iR 2022 02 FEEH
Hin Sang Group Holding Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US830,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
i SERRERAR ZERAES HEk 30,000%7T (direct) (drect) AR
(B%) (B%)
Hin Sang Hong Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$280,000 100% 100%  Investment holding; brand
T TARAR B LAk 2800007 (indirect) (ncirect)  development andl management;
() (B%)  and development, sales and
distribution of healthcare
products, personal care
products and household
products
REBR: RERERER:
RA% - BERAHRE
Em BAZEEDR
REEM
EERERFIERA T PRC Registered RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding; Wholesale of
(‘Hin Sang Holding Group i capital ARBE5000000  (indirect)  (ndrect)  health care products of Hin Sang
(Shenzhen) Company Limited”)* AfER () (#%)  (f14)inthe PRC
RERR : RERETEN
REER
iTREE (M BRAT PRC Registered RMBH1,180,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of heafthcare products
(‘Hin Tai Pharmaceutical (Shenzhen) capital AR®1180000C  (ndirect)  (ndiect) o Hin Sang (674) in the PRC
Company Limited) HER () B%)  NPERESTENREER
Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HKS 1 100% 100%  Property holding
& Research Institute Co., Limited B LAk BT (ndirect)  (ndiect) MEHA

BAREHRFARLR

(E%) (%

)
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. A AT EEME A F]
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =316
(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) B ARz —REE#)
Place of Paid up issued/ Prop.ortion ownership
incorporation/ registered interest held
establishment/ capital by the Gompany
operations Class of BRTR FLHERR
Name of subsidiary AT shares held HRRA/ FRRRLLH Principal activities
. PEE2:] R/ BEDS HERGER EfEA 2022 001 IEEE
Beautymate Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property holding
& Hak 100007 (indirect)  (ndiect) ¥EHRE

(E8) (%)

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HK$24,000,000 100% 100%  Packing of products developed
(Hong Kong) Company Limited &5 LAk 240000007 (indirect)  (ndirect)  and sold by the Group
ANERE(FR)ARAA (B#) (%) eRASEFERHENER
TERRREERERAR PRC Registered RMB48,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of health
(*Hin Sang Health and Medical HE capital ARE48500,000  (indirect) (indirect) supplements and products
(Guangdong) Company Limited* R R () (%) LERHERFEERRER
Hin Fai International Holding Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Online sale of products developed
Company Limited (*Hin Fa’) &4 LAk 100000008 (indirect)  (ndirect)  ythe Group
fTEERARERAR (78] (B8 (B%) &KLEEAKERENER
Hin Feng Group (Intemational) Holding ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 51% 51%  Investment holding
Company Limited £ Lk 60,000,008 (ndirect)  (ndirect) AR
TEEEER)BRERAT (B%) ()
Hin Sang Children Chinese Medical &~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 51% 51%  Provision of Chinese medical
Health Senvice Company Limited &5 LAk 1000000087 (indirect) (ndiect)  healthcare related senvices
R EPEREPLERAT (B8 (%) RtHBREABRE
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continueqd)

o A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

A

A limited liability company.

* The English name is for identification only.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

40. X AT EEME R A
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

41. AR B BAR TR R

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY i fa
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary N—EKEARRE 71,618 71,618
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFERAEMEE
other comprehensive income WARSREE 18,772 28,780
90,390 100,398
Current assets REEE
Prepayments BT RIR 177 214
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABREN
profit or loss SREE 1,593 2,905
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE B B A =) FRIE 211,166 216,687
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHRNEIRE 63 17
212,999 219,823
Total assets BEE#AE 303,389 320,221
Current liabilities nBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E M B IR 364 328
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTB B A &) 3k E 4,490 4,490
4,854 4,818
Net current assets REBEEEE 208,145 215,005
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERARBER 298,535 315,403
Capital and reserves BEAXRFHE
Share capital &% A 109,180 109,180
Reserves et 189,355 206,223
Total equity R 298,535 315,403

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June

2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pang Siu Hin
w7
Director

EFE

KRB HBEAR AR E L2022 6 A28
AEESoiEREETIZ  WhHA

TEEREES

Kwan Lai Man
AEE
Director

EFE
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

270

41. AR B BAR TR R

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY REn)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: R EfHREE
Share
Share Revaluation options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RRE
B aE EfhfitE e 2itFR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TAL FHT THT FAT
At1 April 2020 #0204 518 705,890 (452,015) 8,831 (39,882) 200,824
Loss for the year FREE = = = (24,166) (24,166)
Fair value gain on financial assetsat ~ RATETALMZE
fair value through other WAZRREELR
comprehensive income FlEka = 7,444 = = 7,444
Recognition of equity-settled share- B EHLE MR
based payments RERNAR - - 121 = 121
At 31 March 2021 R20214£38317 705,390 (444.571) 8,952 64048 206,223
Loss for the year ERER - - = (6,860) (6,860)
Fair value loss on financial assets at R AFE AL EE
fair value through other WAZEBEELD
comprehensive income TEEE = (10,008) = = (10,008)
At 31 March 2022 720225 3A31A 705,890 (454,579) 8,952 (70908) 189,355
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42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

43

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered into a
cooperation agreement with Hongli Homologous Biotechnology
(Weihai) Company Limited (477 [BJ&R 4 %) &L= (B08) B R
72 Al), to establish a new company, Hin Hong Homologous
(Guangdong) Brand Management Company Limited ($75z R&
(ER)REEIEAR A A (“Hin Hong”), which was incorporated
in the PRC, with registered capital of RMB10,000,000. The
Group injected the right to use of registered trademark of
“Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion (48474 £E)” into Hin Hong as the
capital contribution for 10% equity interests in Hin Hong and
acquired a call option for the additional equity interests in Hin
Hong.

LITIGATION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Hin Sang Health and
Medical (Guangdong) Company Limited* (17 4= fi& 5 &2 %%(/Z )
BBRAR]) (“Hin Sang Guangdong”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, initiated a legal proceeding in the PRC against
Guangdong Liujian Group Co., Ltd* (ER& ~Z2EEER A
&)) (“Liujian”), in respect of the failure of Liujian to complete the
construction of the Group’s production plant located in Yunfu
City of the Guangdong Province pursuant to a schedule as
agreed by the parties, and Hin Sang Guangdong claimed for an
amount of HK$12,572,000.

Liujian counterclaimed Hin Sang Guangdong for the additional
construction cost of approximately HK$7,611,000. At 31
March 2022, certain bank accounts of the Group in the PRC
with balances in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$1,346,000 has been frozen by a court order (the “Court
Order”) as result of the counterclaim filed by Liujian. The
Directors consider that the Court Order will not have any
material adverse effect on the Group and the business, since
major bank balances can be used as usual. The trial has
been conducted and the court is expected to hand down its
judgement by the end of July 2022.

TR R TR A A 4 O B B e R )

42.

43.

TEFRERS

HZE2022F3A318ILFE  A&HE
BAT W REREMEE (B8 BR A A
I A EH B AR H A BTRERR
(BR)REERERAR(PIE] -
HERBEEMKs  sMEEAAEAR
#10,000,0007T ° AEBEGZEITE
MR EREEALTE - 1A
HITR10% KR ENLE - WHITED
BN ARE U S RS EAME -

B

MEE2022F3A31BILEE » AR
Az EMBARITEREE&E(E
R)ARAR(ITERRDRFEMEE
REANEEBRERAR(REDRT
EREFD N B NERERESE
FHEZFTERARERAEBAR
BREEFMEEREESE M7
HERHER12,572,0005 T ©

NEMTEERRBRBINEER AR
#417,611,000/%8 7T ° 7202243 A 31
H AEBRTBEZEFEHEHEL
1,346,000 L2 & TRITERSE N
ERRERBERMEER B S (DA
DR - EERB  AREERTT
HHRAUERFER  ZRa<igTey
AEBEBREKEXNTMERTFE
2. EBEMCHET  BHERR
20226 7 AIERI{E #IR ©
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

. 4F 55 1 B

OPERATING RESULTS REHEE
For the Year Ended 31 March
BZ3AMBLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
AT AT FET FE TER
Revenue WA 188,550 183977 176209 119,441 120,546
Gross profit EF 131,175 127,384 118,391 68,793 69,075
Loss for the year FRER (7221)  (11,619)  (32.253)  (36,846)  (13,105)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEE - -BEKkER
For the Year Ended 31 March
HE3ANBLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TET TET FET FET TER
Non-current assets ERBEE 764258 555503 562,098 650,363 629,010
Current assets MEEE 253256 109,847 72,707 61,454 64,761
Total assets BEAE 1,017,514 665,350 634,805 711,817 693,771
Current liabilities hBAaE 33,703 158,309 107,229 164,870 190,710
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(BE)FE 219,553 (48,462)  (34,522)  (103,416)  (125,949)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTDEE 083,811 507,041 527,576 546,947 503,061
Non-current liabilities kRBERE = - 190,511 207372 201,261
Net assets EEZRE 083811 507,041 337,065 319,575 301,800
Capital and reserves EXRE
Share capital AR 109,351 109,380 109,180 109,180 109,180
Reserves 1] 828,421 370,636 223,187 208,929 192,414
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive R EM 2 EMRA BRI R
income and accumulated in equity relatingto X Rt EES B AR
non-current assets classified as held for sale  {EHERIERB EER
&% = = = 169 -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A &R AE(L % 937,772 480,016 332,367 318278 301,594
Non-controlling interests 3 I 46,039 27,025 4,698 1,297 206
Total equity EReH 983,811 507,041 337,065 319,575 301,800
272 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2021/2022
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